Ooxea® 100 MRdes a3 AN Aoh3
Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited

[ STocEIE Toey B-STEI TTY ]

SROUT T
_a_ﬂ-ﬁ'd‘__-" E=t=1] 2"]“.1? X

m-m“‘.ﬂ“.m

rlmpmdbininly camy g sl e
mepieh maria oot bedbd Tem B wwe

Eahately, & sowady Easdamn Tenasdol ould
Bacichy clamed® read ralies dis Beld BoabEaas
miar dades e SO dRooeoTe dui

o vt

i Heaines Gomplatae

p——

1, S— — ——
s B P P R T W R PR I I O I P P PR P P P P I T P Y T P P P

ANNUAL REPORT AND AUDIT REPORT
SRAES JTOQ aba_qa e3§ﬁe)&aeqsad oo

2017-18



QRR0T 29-01-201900%0 SRR SNRH0ZLTT @qsgéosog (e
®WBS odneRnnyg JNS TO3evmR TP

AT 187 oacs
TRy o w3




. 'H" Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007-18 .

TOL3CS® TROR TRERCEd WX AN ACRWNS
RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED

18 soXET W3 - 2017-2018
18" ANNUAL REPORT - 2017-2018

( =oa® - INDEX )

S1.No - . 2o Boas, | Page No.
3, XO. QT Subject LA ° English
1 8PTE
. 05 93
Notice
2 QTEESTT TTO
i , 10 98
Directors' Report
3 QTEETBT TN OIDWOH 38 126
Annexure to Directors’ Report
4 @%é TIT WHIT FOODF RSN 3B @@mg@ HONONTOT
wwj@ﬂ% 48 155
Significant Accounting Policies & Notes forming part of
Accounts
5 LRTIT %oﬁjae@cf W) SR RITL® TBT 29,200 N 141
& -0
Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
6 S8 TO3ReFIT WOR
3 - 142
Auditors' Report
7 @%é TOBRCTTT WTONR HDWOH 146
Annexure to the Auditors' Report -
8 A & WO T . 173
Balance Sheet
9 TR0 WD) [ 3283
- B = 69 175
Income and Expenditure Account
10 INTD WBORTTWOD a3 - 177
Cash Flow Statement
11 3TN
o 73 179
Notes
12 EROITDWIN TB TeaToesZRD 197 197
Photographs and Charts




B/

Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited

NTCeTTT DOTY

8¢ DO, . V. AF°. TONTIWD
©FER (18.12.2018 00T)

ol 3. TRNJoBTE, po..Be.
QT 3BT (31.08.2018 ©0T)

5T Woll LITHTF TTF, o..Re.
QT 3BT (18.09.2017 00T)

& B OF°. dTTREF, ye.ede.
QTBes38T (09.10.2018 ©0T)

8¢ QT WIRNT® JTT, e.dec.ke.

QBer33 (09.10.2018 003)

&t &0°. Tomen, fa.axe.
QTIeE 333 (09.10.2018 00T3)

&F V. 9%, 3e0TT, ...
QBerTI (09.10.2018 ©0T3)

8¢ ¥BO T, o.e.ie.
QTBes3BT (09.10.2018 ©0T)

&¢ 20. & oFenrr
QTIeE 33T (09.10.2018 00T3)

& B. T, 3.0, (L. 3)
QTIeE 333 (09.10.2018 00T3)
& BT 3R

QTIeE333 (07.01.2019 0033)

& Q. BTN, .ok,
Qe 33 (28.09.2017 ©0w)

mamg TOONEATERT ATICTTTH:

e O3m. 8. WNST 3WTT
Q

Annual Report 2017-15 |}

@ngda (08.06.2018 ©0T3 18.12.2018T =3rY)

N
8¢ 20. %@%’%“34

@C.S?Sgdo (05.09.2016 20T 07.06.2018T =31R)

&0 QO RRCTTE, yo.u.8e

QTee 3BT (23.05.2017 00T 26.06.2018T =[IR)

8¢ . 20. 3BeAmYW
©HTITEST ATICFJTD
(05.06.2016 dow 05.06.2018

&p 8. 3. wWohTe,
©HTITEST ATICFJTD
(05.06.2016 d0w 05.06.2018

8¢ FFTT TS
©HTITEST ATICFJTD
(05.06.2016 d0w 05.06.2018

& TP V..,
©HTITEST ATICFJTD
(05.06.2016 dow 05.06.2018

RN e
©HTITEST ATICFJTD
(05.06.2016 d0w 05.06.2018

& DWW
©HTITEST ATICFJTID
(05.06.2016 dow 05.06.2018

&¢ nongoncsy
©HTITEST ATICFJTD

3 =3R)

3 =3R)

3 =3R)

3 =3R)

3 =3R)

3 =3R)

(05.06.2016 20T 05.06.2018 T =3rY)

QR 30 BJoDd BePHTOONE I DY B TOWCWENY TN, THONFABF BEIHTOONH

mﬁsw% e%& To3RePIDH
I BOTTTILRE 533_39 telén)
I w@o&éo@si

DYOST® A BOTII VOFTED

) st
O e WROT T Q0ROIP
[ B.6.05.2. ADKel 3

O 2.8.0.2. 5908

[ chedodhs IROT ST QOROIP
] 3300 EROF

[J o w0

(J 3moress eoos

O 237 &R0

(J w0 mogwese 2,08

(J 3oorws HTR Mmosvere 908

(O 3ne 35 meaoes 2,08
O ©.8.07°.2 3908

[ woBx vow* 29,08

{zp



- S

Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sri. M. T. B. N. Nagaraju
Chairman (from 18.12.2018)

Dr. J. Ravishankar, 1AS
Director (from 31.08.2018)

Smt. Dr. Ekroop Kaur, I1AS
Director (from 18.09.2017)

Sri G. N. Shivamurthy, IAS
Director (from 09.10.2018)

Sri Vikash Kumar Vikash, IPS
Director (from 09.10.2018)

Sri G. Prabhu, KAS (Sr. Sc)
Director (from 09.10.2018)

Sri B. S. Shekharappa, 1AS
Director (from 09.10.2018)

Sri Akram Pasha, IAS
Director (from 09.10.2018)

Sri M. K. Kempegowda
Director (from 09.10.2018)

Sri R. Rudraiah, KES
Director (from 09.10.2018)

Sri Subash Reddy,
Director (from 07.01.2019)

Sri V. Anbukkumar, IAS
Director (from 28.09.2017)

Ex-Officio Executive Directors:

All 30 Deputy Commissioners of Districts and All Chief Executive Officers of Zilla Panchayats

STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s. Sundarrajan & Harish
Chartered Accountants

Sri U. T. Abdul Khader
Chairman (from 08.06.2018 to 18.12.2018)

Sri M. Krishnappa
Chairman (from 05.09.2016 to 07.06.2018)

Sri Kapil Mohan, IAS
Chairman (from 23.05.2017 to 26.06.2018)

Sri G. M. Thippeswamy
Non-Official Director
(from 05.06.2016 to 05.06.2018)

Sri G. K. Jayram
Non-Official Director
(from 05.06.2016 to 05.06.2018)

Sri Madhukar Jadhav
Non-Official Director
(from 05.06.2016 to 05.06.2018)

Sri B. P. Prakash
Non-Official Director
(from 05.06.2016 to 05.06.2018)

Sri Byregowda
Non-Official Director
(from 05.06.2016 to 05.06.2018)

Sri Mallikarjuna
Non-Official Director
(from 05.06.2016 to 05.06.2018)

Sri Gangarangaiah
Non-Official Director
(from 05.06.2016 to 05.06.2018)

Annual Report 2017-15 |

BANKERS & FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

1 HUDCO (3 Union Bank of India O Kaveri Grameena Bank

A State Bank of India (7 Canara Bank (J Karnataka Vikasa Grameena Bank

 HDEC Bank (J Indian Bank (J Pragati Krishna Grameena Bank
(J Karnataka Bank (J IDFC Bank

J IDBIBank

(J Axis Bank O Indusind Bank




Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2017-15 |}

IRZT [RoD BHTOND
PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

& Q. @a%s;mce, ResEe
wéwm@ws QATEETFR

& V. TR
maaé E9PONOITI

30 OTD 2F. YR, e
TP [TAYTID (ToONF TR WTRT)

8¢ 0. TR
TS [WATIR, (F087)

8¢ V. . NWoITT®
TS BIWTIDL (B ) &)

& TP, AT, WOHTUECAR
TPOI wéwm@w%do (ZomT0eRT @2,,35@@@)

Sri V. Anbukkumar, IAS
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the rules made thereunder and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
and subject to the approval of the Central Government (power delegated to Registrar of Companies)
consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for change of name of the Company from ‘RAJIV
GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED’ to ‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING
CORPORATION LIMITED’or such other name as may be approved by the Central Government/

Registrar of Companies, Bangalore, Karnataka.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Clause I of the Memorandum of Associationis altered to be read as

follows:
I The Name of the Company is RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Companies Act, the
Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered by substituting the name ‘RAJIV
GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED’ with ‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING
CORPORATION LIMITED’ wherever it appears in the Articles of Association.

. &
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Directorbe and are hereby authorized to file the requisite
returns with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and to do all acts, deeds and things in connection

therewith and incidental thereto for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”
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The Company is involved in implementing housing programmes in not only rural areas but
in urban areas also. Therefore in view of this the Board of Directors of the Company in its
meeting held on 29" May 2015 had decided to drop the word ‘RURAL’ from the name of the
Company and change it from ‘RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION
LIMITED’ to ‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED'.

The Company has applied for and has been allotted the name ‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING
CORPORATION LIMITED’” and has sought the necessary approval of the Central
Government for use of the words ‘Corporation” and ‘Gandhi” in the name.

According to the provisions of Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 change of name of the
Company requires the approval of the members by way of special resolution. Further the
change of name is subject to the approval of the Central Government (power delegated to

Registrar of Companies). Hence the resolution is commended for your approval.

None of the Directors or Key managerial persons are interested in the resolution.

QTECTBT BVOTBLOR @wﬁom =0T

& /-
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the rules made thereunder and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013
and subject to the approval of the Central Government (power delegated to Registrar of Companies)
consent of the members be and is hereby accorded for change of name of the Company from ‘RAJIV
GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED’ to ‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING
CORPORATION LIMITED’or such other name as may be approved by the Central Government/

Registrar of Companies, Bangalore, Karnataka.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Clause I of the Memorandum of Associationis altered to be read as

follows:
I The Name of the Company is RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Companies Act, the
Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered by substituting the name ‘RAJIV
GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED’ with ‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING
CORPORATION LIMITED’ wherever it appears in the Articles of Association.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Directorbe and are hereby authorized to file the requisite
returns with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and to do all acts, deeds and things in connection

therewith and incidental thereto for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”
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RPTONe BOITY B3 F9IOT N%ﬂmﬂ@ o:'ifoea:do&m SV aﬂﬁfa%mméd

3 e W, | ROIT | o3 R LFNS
zo. (425sq.ft) [(505sq.ft) | (576sq.ft)| =o.
1 | 3038 Mg, ReFadT TX, Londndd 60 36 256 352
2 | D0rReE008TY, 0DOTOT, WONKRT 36 48 60 144
3 | RONTCNITTY, ONOTOT, L30NARTD 48 60 84 192
4 | 2o9rOT MR, VRO TRV, TIRINAT 8S 72 108 696 | 876
W) 216 252 1084 | 1564

(@+3) 13 T, (B3+]) 3 T,

oRNe F Jecode ToITY 1025 TR LIRS, wowd [wes ona, 2011 39 Towd
TRTBEONIZT Y Y09 539 Y LMD 3[R, TOWEITPRLICITOIT.

QTPFED DI VeROT LOBT' RTEIFOD D2EV0OID FTMWOONT, BeedF i Fe 2013
Sen ANZE awoémaﬂe%& Clnte ~d® @moﬁdwdﬁ QTWIOFED eo&%?bojw CIRTIe BT,
M%Fﬂ@@wd&@@@ 33 @ﬁ@oﬂmo@bﬁ BRRBRYTOT LIBOTIZ, @mo% 14.10.2015 dom
TRRROTNT.

OTRFRPPATVT LT TomINMOONY ﬁd% RONTOONTIBY, 192 FLBND, TYOTT 264 (o7

D12 B oNTA: 252) FINW DI IRES TWeIT 304 (or ¢ 48 I ORI : 256)
wu%ﬁ@ém wasarme@Nm BoOF 83T —odzﬁsrs @0330333033 5@?&3% epi mw@%w %eod%
@ochSeswab DETLRNTOBT.  FJoF ¢33 oo, ma‘:)ésw geoTw) wﬁmoﬁo%é&@oﬁ»@ 192
RS (r « 48, NOww 60 B oswﬂg 84 WD 192) s YWINT, mmmbo&m
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BREF RRPITITT. AONTPONFTHYONY TRLF RRHORBTI 192 Y LN, HI90s: 25.07.2016
SO I INDT 703¢ BOBP FLIODNY Jeor oNTWOZ QWIITN 175 FREFNYI, TOWITTON
IR Tone [TV LTOT TTVIY, ACBSONTTT.

3eBS TRSITYI (gory, : 48 DT oDTR : 256 i) 304) FREFNRY JTHEED FODE
BRI, VPRI, BN, 20188 TRIOD @oéédra%?mﬂ TREOFRRVA, THROZORSRMOTT.

YT IRESTOI (gory, ¢ 12 T 0NTEY ¢ 252 i) 264) FRENRY ITPEED TN
TRSONYTR, BRYNTR, [HODT BHOWT® BPT 2018BRYRN TREFRRYIOMIT.

5. =3S Aremsned

BIOF LT AT T MBI BNT TOBBTON BIEI N 3OO IRTIT MORILTANY
AW THACONTY, VW JIRFNYY FTOFLITBI), MBI BN TORBIN  BRFLD OO
TOFBRYONG.

(&

A ATETH VWD SIHENYY 15 ©F DINGT, BRFNARIRBT MHO0DZ, BROVT), T
o) BIRFNATY 2utB, 11.84 ©F DINGI, AWFERNTG.

4

B, WIN NBS 03w

QT ToL, BFOFTT TWO3RBFIT CIRELTOITNTD, MR0eEd TTWeSTY SHFTION 3T
TOTIFON S0TNVT FHS TION B[HE PO, BOIRMDED. 33 C3ReEIODR HLRDLINY
TONET WTIVOD WSO, Bw. 32,000/~ ANOTRICONT. PO NS e;soﬁ%ofnmol o
VOO MR FOD BT B BT FTEIWOT SO, BRBLRMIT. FFFTLOT
TS DIN SRFT IBONTS 3R, 1,20,000/- RN, 2015-16 00T Madece TL3e3TY
RCY BIE BRRINGR NINY Fws D[y ow. 1,50,000/- RLTIT. 9@TY
8. 1.20,000/- N, AFF TR ZHODTFITON JETWER, ¢v9T3 Te. 30,000/~ FHepTe3odd
BOSE CRTTY PORICITIOTT. FFOFTRY BT THOONY Fe.10% VOROLIDZ Tone
YT 3e.90% SES) 7136033539l mmséﬁasd BRETRON WeRITSINT.

FOONLPNON WT/ETD WIVNWOT T3 FSNT08 :
® TP MRIL TANT TEIORYTH ©Te MDTY STo0N0 0RTONTLICR.

. PO WBII TeBNOT TR STODFYRTONTLIEB (TRT WBTS Seadod
WS Tw. 32,000/- 33.)

o 20D TI/@BY, TT/ WOT TT/00TY TI/QTHONED L PD FLODLRCH BHOIY0DE
QoLIeR.

° FERTLBNOIN B3 0T RIS VU033 eﬂmm@sr{ra%dm ClRRTe RS odRexd
90 O3VFYTE QRABCWOT YBT =Y C3RCHRICNR 20T WTHWO TN VWF AL
ONTOD DHBLTLIVTTR.

RFOFTR) WAN ©BE 0dReRSONA 2017-18F¢ sHFE IRFTY 2.t 1,70,000 DING 100
JINOTRATY, 1,27,975 DINTR, TRODFARYZSONT.

WAD BB 03RewZTONR 2010-11 dow 2017-188 =3t 16,25,735 DI 713(3033330l
QeRT), B3 TOONR DTRTN Qe AN 14,11,582 BeodIORTI), ejoﬂ%mwmﬁd%,
9,13,020 mﬁmf@{ TROFRPYICINT. V=T YOETE.
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2 = = oo
Beed 0 FORDBPING [TRrRRORT | FRSCHYLS oG QoS oo W
) <oRnsd <oRnsd — RN

2017-18 394289 221447 27969 101630 88349 2524
2016-17 226500 202199 76905 61599 11474 2789
2015-16 197206 197206 138696 29218 1990 3006
2013-14 108722 108722 88781 8451 269 1730
2013-14
%25%5@ 51079 51079 37686 6330 430 800
2010-11 647939 647939 569875 61661 6991 9373
) 1625735 1428592 939912 268889 109503 20222

. TPOR W0 Wt CdeckR (MRoerd)

TS W0 TIF Resd (TRere) oI 30T ITF 0T MRANImIRE Q) H0TOONT
TRITOT 0IREEBAIPNT), 2016-173¢ MOVOT VOLTD SF CIRERBODT, SOTLTVNITED
TR, BEOS 0 BT CIRER (MREEd) 0T, 200K STLONIIT. 30T FToF T
TOWIORT BHFT 08 &I Need (SECC-2011) &T00T wvees 2, 6,38,757 FORDZINY
T3 DR, KSReBOD SPNE BRWONOZ B3 TLLHYHLN VTF PLODPARTIE ok
BITWICITOTT. MO TOWWODIOWOT FWO TEFODT, TOSCART), i) 3,67,068 WTE
) 2,71,689 HTTE POODFIND AR BOR LORHIT.

33 03RCTIONR POODPINT), MO [0 RO esoﬁ% TRTOOMTT. 33 8REEIOD
BWIRNEALRI0N0Z RTOONTITIY, 3e.60% TR, TOSTF, 208 W) TOIK TONRBNYN TN
3e.15% SES) @egﬁomsé@ﬁ TonR T 3e.25% o=, QBT BNAFTRON sNCROTWSONT.
msad 3e.3% O, LONRNTOOMN NeROTBSONT.

83 CIREEIONR VTOMH FTIONFIHZ, 3¢.60:408 ZITWITOZ §¢0T, Tore To,
RTOFTNEd ORI, 30T AT TF SPNFAMICDOT T DJOD s 3¢5 Te.1,20,000/~
REINTIT. Tots, FTOFTT TYORCRTTT DY CIREIIONE FFOFTHOT TOWIT, SNF T
Fovbgoner FEohEI Sn. 120 w3ner I DodF e T BOLT, BOREION
Sp 150 0FNYD, ANOTBAT, Tpos oS, wmwa odeend (M) ©& Tw. 30,000
nesy, ézﬁgﬁﬁ@ ATIONTT Ty RFOFTe PO,

BE THE 30T, ATOF TP SHFT TN P3T OO, ANOTIRRST, ©WT0Z 2017-18
Se mOR 83 FENTOZ B DINY GPET THOODT, AEBSONT.

=.3Jo.

933
16088

..
17776

wgﬁomﬁs&
4826

iy
52284

13594

BT WO, SR O3RERBONA (MRwerd) 2017-18T¢ BHFE IRFTY 223, 85,000
DING ™0 INOBJRATH, 200 Zeedod TRSODYT JINW e¥RROT/OS 64,690
DINGD, TROFRRPIEONT.

TS &0, w0 O3RCRS (TRENeER) /00T $w0a O3ReRSoNE 2011-12 003
2017183 =378 60T, AFOFTROT 6,44,023 HINT MOOORT), JeRT), 83 MO TN,
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MY 7.30,750 HEORDIINTR), SORTRBERNTY, 5.82,546 DJINT, TROFRAVBRNT.

QBT Q0ET.
$eow Eipele)
Sees gy |FOIREANS |Ferorioon | RacbOnE |2 ;’; | me
) ~
(Elevy) TR DR TR
o 3 dne
2011-12 96760 150658 141727 8135 0 796
2011-12 adnl 31806 39510 36139 3062 0 309
2012-13 107210 121737 111029 9452 0 1256
2013-14 87816 93524 83851 8759 0 914
2014-15 94995 95986 84224 10812 0 950
2015-16 80087 90183 77318 11786 0 1079
2016-17 93065 90733 40454 28003 20748 1528
2017-18 52284 48419 7804 21214 18895 506
Wi 644023 730750 582546 101223 39643 7338

IO LTHOHY P8 Torie SHFE TRS0HI), MOHH FROWOT ANZTF) BOHCITT
PP POORNFANIR ANDOOTSe LuPTOCDH SPINT, BT SeToN SF-SF RS
OTT RN T WRNE SRS BFF, WO0NYT, 2017-185c SHFF IXFTY
SR. 888.64 BRcedny mgmaol DD BTSN,

Q. TOHEICOW INT RIS BRews

ATF0x) INT TREBTY SHF TN Tonw TOR[DLTRON LOTNYT FRE TLIONR THE
APBODFIW, BORIYTTYN 2010-118e mOI0T INT SZoD 03eeTo LTERN 0250
JINT [BS BRERS D0 BHF SRCRFONT), 20N ITLNTOITT. 38 C3ReEIoNR
2017-183¢ ©QF3 JRIETY 25,000 71360333301 MOCBS% B=[3R 27,677 msmﬂs{l
TROFRPVITING. DTS Q0ET.

SNT THEBT AT BBE cdeexsod@ 2010-11 00T 2017188 QTR ToONTY
w0 2018 BYTBOZ 2.3, 62,192 FINGR, TROFRRVAT.

ETHeow NS B deewSod Ferdmeth DTT FENT0IT 1 (SNTF, 20188 wOZTOTOL)

oy | RIS |RoRuone senriieon | gochgns mr%ff;’; _| e e
= o ) DR RN 3 TN
2010-11 50000 64237 26068 8177 185 834
2012-13 100000 9999 3280 1341 466 216
2013-14 20000 16089 10237 1676 81 453
2013-14 adnl 9275 2669 1431 305 623 74
2015-16 29080 23913 11970 4358 2670 366
2016-17 40000 18879 6905 5221 6488 265
2017-18 25000 13889 2238 6009 5373 269
2017-18 adnl 25000 3268 63 1145 1828 29
Wt 298355 152943 62192 28232 17714 2506
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oty VG R%8 AeeiRndRty $07 50rtn Tms Hog wina® dieess (JNS) o Bocketss

3600 RFOF TP JNOT FZFONR BT LBNET I TEos 0 Be0x" 8eesSobI,
BRT 2015 3Q ORRVA. FBO FREIIONE B3 IYTOR 4 YOI TNV, WINY
QWPEEOTYN OIDJTIE 2,00 YVTFTEIT HRODY THICDT, DWFALD WITVT TLEODLITTING.

1. PBRICDZ), FOTIHVTITNABHOB “In-situ” [PTOONY 3oFe TWeSNY BIT
@2{35@@
[}
2. daw @os; QB odexS (EWS/LIG & MIG | &ll).
3. Affordable Housing in Partnership (AHP)
4. PP IeBITY FONO T IWIFED

TAET ATO wROIRTY 271 ST Feeod FOFNYY oWIMINANST. on Y edd
BEBOIN TREOFTIRORT)Y, BNAT, 2018 T ©0ZF wid 19.20 ©F Se@ W), WO
BLDOWNY B[P0 30T, FFFTT D0.0.08 I BT el IPBOINT. TRE
BEOS W0, BT BRCBIONT), To%E TBE CSRCBINGIT [owTHeoR [TBE odpew
DB worleBT B[RS 3w, TeBTOXRY VTR VIR BB 03RS, TT TNFT T[T
gor, SRS C3RERINT AIZONZ0IR0OR BDTWIRANES.

©T00Z TG IR WBP, IRFTBOR TR, 2.70 ©F (Becd INT IBE cdnewSode
SR, 120 ©F DT WWIRP/; WRBODNY Tw. 150 ©7) DT T WY T.TONE
BRFTBION Twe. 3.50 ©BNY (To, B[RS YERBOD BFE BRERINTRODY Tw. 2.00 ©F
) &@W@ﬁé WRONY SR. 1.50 ©T) FZONTT ETBLRNIYID.

83 O3RenIONT, YDTWINLVAL) TIvFws 8oV @apwe@@ WOBY, FIFLE T
RDOTL, 57160&55&)6% TRRTOND, INT x@@?ecda :‘)oﬁ@mfﬁ)el OTRI mﬂ@o:mﬂ MTOSTSINTS.

BTN FTO 9POSPITE 3,34,949 mémmel QNFILL TR. 16,82,012.99 ©§ mgzs 968
C3RERINW WDTWIRANES. 80T ATFTT Twed Tw. 5,02,423.50 ©FNH, Doz,
[TFOT T TR. 5,14,252.42 ogneéo, DOONLONE T TwR. 5,73,388.83 ogn@;o
DI, B.FFO T TR, 97,017.05 ©FRTNT. AT 2018 S ©oFE, 0T AFETHY
3. 1,73,528.00 03N, DENBROPAIT. 2.3, 40,528 DI TReFRRORBTY, 49,564
BB BRECPYTOER.

B3 T3eTo0EE 9T FTBS 3RewE

TToF 0 @SR @RS O3ReRIODAR 2014-155¢ TODAOT Bo&aso&wQ nod anammgd%,
8 39B0TB 14 D3R BAFT BIS 03O RRE @5033?5% &adm'b%d. 2016-173¢
TOV0T DB TBE 0IReRVODI, TeTTLT VTR B[RS 03Re%RS DOTD W JTwTTTED
VDI« ] @m@smwmmgﬁ 14 IR INFNY V=T Q0ST.

. 8% wh/onANY kHIORY Tog He¢ DOMEE ANF ST,
= QDIOBEIT,

= &%&@eﬂ@od TN DTITI ST,

= TeF.20.0. BARCOTITV,

= BONTTNDODT,

= eﬁéor\% TOORNFTSE 0NV,
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= T3eTTIDACITV,

= TNV,

. ReBHOT WNITTIWI,

= TTO0W TR WBWONKD,

" PBRESIRTOTBR,

= WECON NOY ToNR BRRNINYOT TOANRITTOTDV,
Ll HOTIVO LWTOONTTIV,

= NIeR B STT TOOTND.

T3 eSS EPRIT THOVT T TOODEINTR), OO, ejo:'i% RO TN ONBRCTH
AR RS @@&% LBNRD 88 3PNT RSN, Te3TeRNT.

BRRTON: e.—az;zsida
ma)s TOONFADOF BFBOHTOOND emmc;égda
BRE BRBFST WO, BUY BJOWODNS BB

SeemTo AT TIW, B mmm@@@ BeR, (3)
BURHTONY eI

ATHONT S0IVIL
GOINTI/ENITDFOND g INT FPeod FOFND
TOVRD TOWIONE FTONF VOF BFOHTIONED

a

&l
g g8 8

a

2o n oAn A
2L 2 2 2 2

a

Eslel Aol mg QUBOD B m@gai HOTOND TOONFTWEFNE

e300 WO BHE 0IREBRZONE MoNer? TNk INT TREBNTY BTE Q03 Tonwe
VT QURBNYOT BRI HOONT), Le¥L0TOZ 2014-15 00T 2017-183¢ FIZBTH
2.3 33,457 INTT, BROFRRVAT. LW|ONWD FINTOLI

e Tecor— [ IRCDY- | TmEBoL eF | T3 IR
Seps o RRo® SR et 9oE| ol piteeplen sty
) ne =od
3 e | dnsd DIMD | IR |(Te. VIRLY)
2014-15 17430 17430 11310 2457 3245 269 1.20
2015-16 12371 12371 7756 1979 2288 164 | 1.20/1.50
2016-17 22885 22885 13937 4960 3714 247 | 1.20/1.50
2017-18 69000 7598 454 2269 4773 29 | 1.20/1.50
2t 121686 60284 33457 11665 14020 709

Tesooer TR FBS 2017-18B¢ $HFF BRETY 15,000 DINTRY, BREOFRAVIL 1O
TRODT), VAT YUVBNVOT LOLT SeI0NR VBT JN HeOWOZ  [PesF 2018
©OZE 15666 IDINTD, TRFIPYILONS.

Tesooer TR FBE 2018-193¢ SHFF SRFTY 12,000 IR, BROFRAVIL 1O
TRONT), VNG ALVBNYOT 20N JeeFONR ACBSRT DIND Fe0TWOE &Nz’ -2018
©OZE 2888 VINTT, TROFARYITONT.
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QU. . .30, e.-oozScc%ce QzT® 03RS

REOF TR INT TOMe MRNCEd TTWeSTY SHF TN TONR TO:ILFN S0V TOSH
208 TNL TOIFK TJONBT S[RFTHOR [TBE APFODFHI, 3OR[TTN 2015-1633¢
TO0T ol VBT, WOBFT AT CSRCHIONT, SRTTON 20K TGN
RBO BRERIONR WRFHITT BFS APOLBI), BEODLD & FTTOR QY WTFINTI),
BTYODTON BROVTLICTNTOTT.

L
2.

923 TTOO %@aofnmf\ mé% 308 még T0dR

€

TONT®T INETBTONLIED.

LTIV BEYODTON EFAIPNTLICR (D0&T WP DT & WESIT
n,®es) [ FATW, DT, WONDIOTY B &O0H TONOFTINT Y FTDTOIHI
A® ©TFTINTTT.

WRETITTLL BEDOWTY) SHE TN WY FOTWPLFWN ODIOTR), WIXET STIDOD
MRewece TLeSTY T, 32000/-308 3R TR INC JeITY TR, 87600/~ 308
Q0COTLIOTR.

83 o3penSod® 2017-183¢ MOT SODJONT PRROTY O TOSF 808 TN TOSH
TONBT ARSI BPODTIT RRE TLHIONR 23eBF 20ecs mﬁmf?nol QETED FHRCARSONT.
TE IR IBTONFS Meoerd JWeIWY Twe. 1,75,000/- Tone INT TWe3TY
ow. 2,00,000/- _NQTRIRNG.

. V.7, olerT® AR Seend (Mysesd) JRd =TA ¢

= _ = _ =
gos | o |FESES- ol et gl s ol i :);o?;?;
® | 2dnsd | wbdnsg | WAL | 23Re |ce. 03ngd)
2015-16 | 100000 98666 58102 20578 18226 1461 1.50
2016-17 | 160000 | 142352 66671 40273 33068 2039 1.50
2017-18 | #156000 | 147634 6812 59889 76986 667 1.75
283 416000 | 388652 | 131585 | 120740 | 128280 4167
* 2017-188¢ mITY Berdod et DINII, BRI,
. W.ET'. WoleRT” A’ deeny (SNT) I ST
= _ = _ =
ueh D3 | I DED | DB |©w. 03R9Y)
2015-16 50000 20077 9746 3892 6032 150 1.50
2016-17 90000 29685 11213 8287 9585 186 1.50
2017-18 | #156000 7541 319 3454 3563 31 2.00
2063 140000 57303 21278 15633 19180 367

* 2017-188¢ mITY Berdod et DINIT, BRI,

Annual Report 2017-15 |}

0
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83 odpenon@ 2017-183¢ SHFF SHETY 1,05,000 IR, TRDFRLITLD 1O
BRODT), LOOT BerdodB BT IR Ae0TOZ Jwere-2018 woZF 1,12,159
DINGD, TROFRREIEONT.

83 cdpexon@ 2018-193¢ wHFE IXFTIQY 112,000 DINTD, TpFRLITLD 1O
TRODT), 00T ZeeIoNB BT TDIN FeOTOT SN -2018 ©0ZF 26918 IR,
TRFRPYATING.

Y. TRRDEED STOH Tone TewHoWw INT KT AREIT BreERNAW

BIOF LT BFOFTRY JREIT TLION ABeTT APOPTI, LTBNIL) TR CIReBINGDT
MOgeEd BBODH JFeTI CSReET Tore WBTBECW INT JWEBT 3ReRBNI, ToBT
PP RNBYODR ODTWINAVRIT. FFFOOT WDTFRAVITT [IE 03RewIoN:
B[RS TTODF THEODLD FLOLIOID FEYODTN TS BROWTLIEEOL) TRTJE HIT,
DRISONTRTOOT MRNEEd ) INT TT3e3TY VIBYE), POOLIND ©HS TOTORNE
TEODLD WTFTINFT BB IeTI BROTT QDPTBOOT  [AS FPOPNOT  BOWBTINTIT.
BTOOT B3 VFCST TLION JReIT LBNEB/ BOWOT BRT BFOFO LW MOTSRODT
VDO STOAN WA DD TRWRT BITJJ NG, BROITW, INT JHEINTY
VBT, POODFANTR IFeIT AQOTRTOOT INT B[RS CIRERINTR AN 0T
O MO ATPIOMEY. STOOT MY MOEd 3B INC TPeITY BAS ABe3TING
TOWE [RBL DFeR 2.8 Ae@IeFTNDIBT. 2015-163¢ IR FFoFTY MO0 0B
JINT TPeswY 20,000 JFEIINYIY, BOWE [PRLD MO IND TIRBLRNTY, ATY,
QTN BsenSe 10,002 [BE AFeTINT, TOWSPNT. 2016-175¢ IR Mmogeed =B
SN TPe3nY 20,000 JWeIINGT), TOWE [RHTBLO OO INOTRAT, SHETR i)
13,453 QBeIINT, Towd JIPROINT DI 2017-20183¢ IR megerd JFeII
035ezI0RAR 10,000 JFeTINGZ, TOWE [RBWED THO INDTBATY, TNT T MO
QB3I 03eemIONER 19,228 IFeBINGT, TOWS SRBONT. DTT 35 FYTOBOST.

B BRFF IR ™o EN 333
1 2015-16 20000 10002 50.01

2 2016-17 20000 13453 35.93

3 2017-18 10000 19228 192.28
283 50000 42683 85.37

TRINEED TPNR INT JHEBNTY WeT V0D [IPWT TROWOT ATOFTey) 20D
EVCNARNN-IeWN mq@smm@md. S0OBN 23N DOCHRT BOWOT BTOF TR NG
TRAT TOFF eeesd DOD TN 85 IINT0LT

L Tes SoneRo 83 nog =3

Rogs,

1 To0eEd TE3e3 TJOLY, T, Sw. 9.00 ©3NWH
2 Tero TOTVONS dw. 12.00 e)gmﬂo
3 TR DR T S®. 15.00 ©3nsH
4 Snoxe oR. 2250 ©FRW
5 DTOINT TDE S®. 37.50 ©3NH
6 2T BONYHRTD DHINT TIE S®. 75.00 ©3nsd
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9. [, WFoINE HoNHRD WomH OF WIIHTIR [V deexd -

‘ST, IRDTOLNY 1 03 WIRDDIR BonTeD [IE oIS’ FOWOHATOZ
2017-183¢ HIRY B[, WODFOZONTJT T, SODTOD LPTET DoRE 232008
Boneedd INTTY SHFTTN DWFO JINFTION 0O OF WIRDDIBR INTI,
QNEF IR w{?\ TReATTIT. WTTOZ XTFTT BTeT 50585 =Y 57 [T 2017,
23onieetd HIvo% 23.10.20178 ST3e3BOZ S5 03ReRFON), WTRRRYDT W THIW,
83 FPNTOS WLIONT.

PO/ PING esoS:&

200D O WIRDDTE B[RS RRERIODRCNY w23F 3@5‘9@6%& TOWORATIOB HPUOILINED

ST RQ 9o, BYIL VT IOFORN), VTE, BEFOHOITN 2., : 48,614

3 OO
POORNLANG BN @oﬂe%esmﬁdagd QRNG WO FLTOWOST.
WRE WFTTTTY WOONTT WR/E 9IIETIOTTY
o. . mm% oJ) ) 0. 0. 0. )
xoar%écﬁ: w%m emgyd dise
1257 24600 9371 48614 4130 21570 13461 48614
SRR WRDE BIFTTOTTY

S 1236 AOTHRIYT SoD FRescre T3 | 84
QGHTT /2 GRTmoed SEen 28
SDOD TNBEETD 412 St BROTHEIRRODZT | 487
[anpleater) 634

) RODRYT WORTY T Redseo T3 | 115
E90NNTO T BRODTIVI = =
923 50T 92 230MERTD ATVANTYTITD 163
S 17 283 1001
DA 35
933 46102
%Y 48614

fotvelavoles) Qo=

0T 38518 DHDR 24259
BOHRT 9232 %S 24333
5900 836 g ech YONnH 22
2330 20 283 48614
3 3

(]
,%a)mdo 5
z.;é&ga 48614
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TTTO WeRCAT HOWRTVS.

BT, BODTOLNE 2,00 OF WIITE ©BS CIReRIN BOWORATOZ, VAT TOTTY
TBF0 sT3e3 50&% S0°@ 229 HeredR 2017 Hm00F 15.11.2017508 49 5@%371%5@33 431.11
BT TETBJ), Tone HTBEIC BOITY FFFO BTWeS FoL TR 19 e 2018
Qm00% 19.03.2018T08 89 5@@?71%5@23 582.39 DBTONOZ 2., 0N INT RYOD
RQ0DY 1,014.10 2T FTOFO DI, TOLIE” MOOL MRVEED B[RS AT TAVOBORLD
BT IPBSRNIT.

83 3eIB0Z OLATHT LENEDNVT FOLOTTES T SFTH DS TotsF A0EFFLNRLOOR
INTT ©HTONY FoBR) 49 IAJF JoWTVNY  RNEINTY  A[FTIONF T,
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b.  2000-013Q 28 THRTT STWONTZ, AN STRONWOT TWONSTCONT.
2001-02 00T 2RO, C3REBTOIHOD WONRTON TJOMEFTLRNT. S{opipicH
SHFT IRE 2005-063Q NP 3T, SZTT, TVODF IO, LTSOCWAT),
2001-02 50T W& TRIT SWOODT/I), AN ESTTRONWOT TONEBTONT.

I, TWT IRE 2008-09 TY NP 3T, Iy TF Fo0DFICSODNI,
LTTOORATR, 2000-01 SHFT S[REOOT WG CRTT STIDONTI), 03B
DECD LOMON TONRT ) STOD B @oaﬁecice WTRHBNTY TRVROE
@66571%?330{ LWTNTD ) ATOF T @CS(’SCS%OZ’D O3PRTE DOF TORETYN
28 TEHOT dazsd TRART DTOIBWD, QUTOIRENAT W TEFIOTD TONEATI.
I, I CIREFODROD THBOPT BeEAD Hed NYAT PP, BRTTRA,
AMTOOT NYIT DY 030D WRHONT, CIREHTNVHOD ¢S NYAT 2T
QOTD TOMEBTONT.

BOTR @oﬁ% 201330 9= 3 cﬁg%oja TBOET TONR B33 ITFO VRANYOT
;ge%@;%cs 2 $FOSHNRT @&mswm‘% S0 T &3%56 SlrlowlIietle
NN DOTD JONESRSONT.

2G0D BeRHTIOND ) B8R TOLWLCDSCD W03, FOORE A TFFRFOND
DI TR ToLREDEND TP BRCBY GOROIRENAT TR, “YVOTOILENTOL,
O3ReRTO PO Q%; (program funds utilized account)t3 ©RONY, WIAT
RTOONTIT TEOTI, BRHOTESE BIRRT I0TT EREOTLONT. FLOILIDNRDT
QETBERT TEIB/T, “YOTOILENAT C3REHTD AR” DO SRCOATITH T 33
TOF) OO INPOT RANRY RI0BITT ToOT ©OBWIR, WHTRORT.
BAROT WOT BEOTY, AN @%é RRITY Neadnt SRDBRORY. $B0TT,
FLORYANVOT SRR [RRT, WOT TEOTY, FeTwoN FTF3H DI
BT BRBIMST. BTN, 030eTD AHOD LFIOWOT YZSXIWT SAND
NN m%éﬁ%& ReOBPOY :E) BTOOT FTO SRR zdam (depriciation)
g3, DY, DBRE WOTN oDIeTTE0 [P, TOW D0W LD DT
ROTIOT a0BO FWETT YRYNY 02 ATFTLOT JNFHeos BT

LLOTHRYTOOT, &8 ﬁzgﬁ@abol BTROD BB 5?,;3 23:B80DY SROTTRNT.

TOIRENAT 030eETD AHAN Y B VYLTRTOOT VT, TFeFwon
RTRANY 0BT 3 SQTTFR TEIONY S00FSONT.

5. aadra&c / WO TROT WHW DI w%oﬁaaﬁ:ol DTTRS TRT® ur?\ O[O
QTON: 53&%@@ / ROT TOT DI w%oiaab@l TOWSRED 59@55{1 [TT0R) 35@1
SODTONT TRVT LTNPYTOOT, T, FTFTT DDTOTROTD TORRRMDERD,
330 w%odamol wc&r%e / méo%ﬁ TOTE FRTRN, FTFVTY) B3 OLMON eRT
ONTFTY  TROT0EIS m@me%emméd. TUOF LT AOTOTR), INVT T[T
&c&@ée /méoseﬁ TNVTNTE SRR @5@&01 m@; / WROT FO TNTVTVISON
8303)550336 2R3E  (provision) TROT JCRT WOTROY IO (Capital grants)
QROTD JONBRTONT.
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10.

RFOF Y 2010-11 BQ WIB [THE CIREET D0 TR CIRELTODT), LVORRPAID.
83 O3ReIONRONY MR TOWOWENWD INIT [BrFEISY BIDT SO
BREON, TR [PART SEOTT 0eTN OB, FLOFANY 2502 FeTzon
BN SRBOIMET. AWTYN AN 3e007 3 LROTTY oBNYY FURRPINY
SN, ITOT. PORDRINY 098K Teo WRHNTE [o& BRBSe BT, “WIBCIRT
TZOONFT” Q0T TWORBTRNT. DFOTT WAD BBE AEReRTONRONY TOTRF
T [WBW, FTONFIT SRTTY VENE SRBEOMDET.

2014-153¢ mOR NI BYNY BRPRTOND, B8Oy TOWOOWIOR =0,
FOONF AVF BFHORTOONWD, TVVRE TOWDOWS0P FODNF VT TEHTIONLD 02
Bojwidomgméfb?m@ﬁ% RTINS T0DB/INT m@%/@dﬁaﬁ/&é&% TOIVONENLD
VTSR TRBERT BHTTE, BOWOHATOZ B, BB, TONF VeSO, WTSVBE
TRTOUNG. &5 TG SoDY NP WITH, Ten wRordeowen Sedmen BT°
e%af ROT WTWTOTONY IR [MoF CFRMET, ARWETT ) BRI
o, BRERINT BOWORATOZ WDTOTVI, BCPPTONT AR ALFOTLRT
TROBING S0 e JroF oINS, AN FLRLINYG BIONR FJTED
DTOAL) ORTWTOHTONSR WHTVT JEBLRNT. AN DY WVTWIHTONY
TRON STORT LROT A HetF MY, TB BTO WROT TWA ST NYOT
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AMEDOOT WMoF NALRT BWIT WD LROT A SetF NYY TR DWFNT,
To¢ TOTURTOZE. & BRFE JRFTY WROT A ST I ToFTRT WY,

“03RemT0 AR WEE” L0 TONRBTCONT.

2017-183¢ AOTY IForTay §e0T w)d@é RBRERINTOT THOS =0, STET
Odewd (INT) D) Toelesy SeoA” oiraemﬁmﬁ VTR 208 00DT, A=Y
BT, INTFY) 230 C3ReRBONY, Tt TTOFTT ma oirae%a’iri%cﬁ mzmeom
INT BBE odRexS, ol w.eﬁcf. @ozﬁecics DT ABeexd (INT) DB
R. BeRT0TF WTF ®RE O3ReRINGLOON Smgojaﬂ@@?% @mmosmmgcs. [TO
CIReBRIONR AN FTLONTVZ, FeTToN FODRINY 003N 2.20.0%°. STTT
wnees wmndmm@m R0 IBNY JFTLNIY 5@0&555:& BUYHTOONLY/
SN *@eoﬁa NONH@ﬁ B SOINTI, 3.0%.3.2. T=on ?,S)C%JHCS mwmméd
8 6&% z%emaﬁamﬂo/sm N@eofo Noﬂﬁ@ﬁ DB BOINTR, B.OR.8R.2. dabﬁ
RRNE BPBERT moﬁ:cﬂswm “oiraeum AR w@é@” @ocﬁa Gefelataors[ontalal

ANIF) 03ReETD @@oﬁ:abol NTTH BIOBD INW AW B 555%0535301 (Cash
Management System - CMS) 23007 3003, 9TT0E &0d0 2GoHOTHI @@w‘?@@@ﬁ@ﬁ%
QeRT ) méoiﬁme;o TRBEAT zéﬁ%ﬁeémol ANINT IRCTB/® méosemﬂ OFOOLFNRYR

DWF TOTLRMOIT. 3% 008 T[N CIRERTD TEVY  DWRFTOB/ITR VTZY,

BREBF WROFNYY WeRTY BeBBODY BRI,

IR SR (RTRAAD) 1 ATANY SPOTRTII, VNG LIS0hY F33 3
AFPFOBLRNT. () FADT @Nﬁ%ﬁm& %@@eﬁmcﬁ *’53553 ‘?@eai TRIBROT

ITID DTIOF LT WD aﬁeﬁﬁ YD ARFOTRNT. RO zSeSQm @371%553 ROLIOTHTES
erowoi:aeﬁ@éﬂ WIRRZ TN m;pmm» DRDFRRT ﬁz;ﬁﬁ@ab@l LYRROBTTT.

<
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11.

12.

13.

() 2OoTZY BOZRTT ) @ma DQCWOT TWT AT BANK ANRT
emri%ﬂdaéﬁ 333 88 ezwﬁ@ém aoocém@é QHOD aoe;%oZDOCS@ SRITOT ms
337 ToOTINS.

133 / Q'S»)OSD TR ?36303353 BEhero 3BO30R)T (Depreciation / Amortization): IO
plevy 20138 wmomee 13 wad BB, ©Y INOITRAT TTHY, ,\écmfm@ﬁ Nﬁéwa’n
3¢ ‘?@5 QPO  (Straight Line Method) w%?d ANVR) &;dfmﬁ @55 5@&%—55@
DOCOTCRT DOCH /[BIVTES BIVTEOT @Nmﬁ z0ees wmwﬁmmﬂ 56@905353
TOBOONT. TRIE GNWR’D & SANY ﬁéo:b%% OO LVPION VIO B

eﬁéa@ 35000 anees emmﬁo @ﬁﬁacﬁ@ WEIN WD DTOTROT mm (amortlzed)
RPTBOONT. Q3T Nd emmﬂ 093 WO B3 FISNT0ST:

BTN 60 IR
wwd B 0D O3 RETIFTEINED 15 @&
s&a mwwwﬁ@;o 05 =&
ébcjaéaf @a‘n‘?@ws 10 S&F
505@5@305 JOTTHBN 03 =&
Eyovaied 06 =&
QCTRCTIBTEANED 08 =&
OTBINLD 08 =&
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3on dag@ W 3y TOTBRRT 3®ﬁﬁe§a$:4 2.¢RPORTIA : 30Y STADH FORODIY

0080 BTROD 0R %?033 1961 d@oﬁn 301 WRTONIN TowSTLIeTONTV
macs 00T wnees acﬁrmmﬂd BROTRRT BTON 3OO I RE THOD
301 TR0 GNIEH] e%wécﬁ ESTOODNY mdd@& BIYE TN &o@aﬁ IRNY
ChalewIt Twon az@éme; wm@wm wéwow,\o%d BROTHRRS 367?03353
%8 HRTm TegoDd @mo%cﬁ@doé -@mw 0% smﬁoé OPT TADT @mdcﬁ
§3@¢3 @cﬁrmd

BRoTRRE B3 FORODH aﬁa%deﬁ Dece3eTT BON BTOD B facs’% QTNTIN
OB omag)de @53233 BROTRRT B3 FOR WO ms md&@mmﬂd
mom@% SR éaﬁoﬁaa‘n F0TIO BNONTIIT FREL msa gont IFNY
ST W30ee3 mdaén)emﬂd O INOTRRE B ORI ma%cs@s eﬁmoda
301 QTR)TN MTETTINT. LOOT TRENYYS momaé B3 00DZ, B
R0 TRBOONT), F0B zﬁ&%ﬁ@ mﬁébcs eﬁmoda 30RR TN Q03 momm%
s, SoRos, BACTHHEE BRBCITLYD.

a%éox iaoz%neéo:

A. FFF0T QNG QYUBNY0T dodeexs HedR ANTTYNS  F03TOR
BOLORATOZ, Te H[eBT, LOWEI-TOST NTY MOERLONT), AoIReRBOD
RIGNONZOMEDTON LOTHIVTT/R), VONNTION FRTWSRMET.

B. TR o33 Hed I 09000 BN JeIRROT FPTTOR, MoLALI0NT),

SRFT TRET @oéécseg 03003 TUT RWW T w0 NI @oémm
(actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method) 35000 3005 TOTROD =PRI,

C. JP3TT HOR QD VOSTIOD, SONTH, T3 POF, A 3e3e0nt WCHNTEoN
DETRMET.
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eﬁﬁé TIW WonmRNTHE WIednwd

1.

SHFTTON LOYT B[NRFT[ON BFFTT B[RS C3ReRINTR), WDTWIRRYAIHT
ANTT 3T3eH3 sSFwémﬂc‘ﬁ. MY BPYTIe GBI, ﬁ@m%g mm@ “eoe
JIF CB” mﬂ@ojm\dagd. STOOT Cog3 Y IF 23 wcﬁmﬂ AN “eST0OD
B [, FeBODD,” oIPORST.

A3RCTTR AP WE:

JNT RS CSRCRINGD BTHS VRWCTIN TONL TVRDLRT FOIONF OSReRINTNR
TOWORATIOZ ANV REBOTOL DY TEOT, ©OTTOZ R [RRW), WITHOIPT
TEOWIY, BOWOPTE3 B3R @%ﬁmréﬁ DWDFE TOTORNT. SRODT), FWATON
TOMP WPWFTF WTOLOLFO0T FREFOAT TEd YVTOIRENR  TesToed SHEVIN
ROWOLTES 28R mmchs RPOD RLRHFTONWD Tonp BeR womofoa@ﬁesﬁ
SANEA @@Fawrawamaﬁ@ocs Neséf\)cﬁ J03T “weReRT @&md” QOTR
eﬁ%mémﬂd

A 2014-153¢ IR INDY) BENT BERRTONW, BT TOWONIOD BN,

FOODNF AT TEORNTION, ToVRB TOWOWECH FOONF AT TEFORTIOND
B SOINTT/BNTRHTOND TIINTC TIE/INT T /2DTHLS /e3¢0
TOLDOWSND YOTOIREN SRRSO WITIE FOWORATOZ B3, &7, Fo0DE
DeEONT, WTRTE [RBEONT. 33 5%3033@2 MNP BITIB[R, IS
wDMORTIN JeTwen &7 &7 [ROT VIVIWTOTONY 3R
T[RFORTSRMDIT, IFEBT T RVLERT FPVY, ARERINT F0LORATOZ
ONTOTIW, BVCROTONG IR AeBOZCRT TARING SwTT  ed
JMOFONTOINMIET. ANDF) FOORFINY TIOR FIoTe3 DBOT
ODTRFHTONYNR WHTIT VEBERNT. AN DR VDTWTORTONY TN
3300eT WROT T SetF NERY, TR B3O WROT I detF NP0
AMTVOOT  WMOFCNHRT WZVTRT W) /0T TOATUTFNYY ToTRT
DWFNYIY, ¢ TOFOIMET. & eﬁ@rﬁ wacﬁeﬁ WROT  TX TR
TOBCRT 9323953 “o&@eam QB WEE” Q0 wéﬁs&)mﬂCS

B. RFFTR 2010-11 e mI0T BLDFT SHROT BJRS 0eRTR WY

POODLING 23031 FeT T WMOFWHBOD TR add@éojamgl 2TO0N BTN,

3 TFoDY 01 &e* 2011 00T MR TORENSTT ANRT HerFALIY

SRROTICOME BLNET S0 BRECH BHOTE ¢S WDTOTH/IY, JeTzoN

POORDPING 20937 VRN SRERMHIT. VBTN VBRETIRROT DY
FOORFINER ANTOOTY $0DF 3 WROFTNRT TPROT B ZoBNYY

BORT BIONT VPTVOD ‘mérﬁeéabc1 SBODRNT. PONPING 5031t TED
QRRAE SPRT TOTT VT, & CIRERTON “WIFBOINT BTIONTT” DO
TOMESRSONTS. BNOTNWTTN, BFFTT ST 50&35: 3.9. 06 2.2.0F. 2013
OT00%: 23.11.2016 TOZ TRI PUOLINSNR ATIONTIVR, VTY/TI
S{aple} 30935033 SR0T e [MRFIH (R.Q.L8) IPBRMET, ITO
RIDNBODD, BB “WIEOTNT BT[IONTFT” DO TONBISONT.
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Annual Report 2007-

BTOF 0T B[RS C3ReBNTRY, AR T GV 000 WDTRTTN AN
TTFTn  Te3 so@sézm 204 TF.0.00. 2009, HT003:22.02.2010803
ToNR ANTT DOBE FLZOD WPRCTH TTS TRTMIER SOTT e
2.3 46 RTT ZeSODT, TEDERORT. WO TRTHEN %z&o@ﬁ@ﬁ MPOREI=R,
83 20 VAT FToF O BSTIETTOZ PUOTDLONPR LENTE TR FTOODFITY
BRBRRVTCRMT BRTOHOT FOTTNG.

TBAIOINT 2,000 ©F DING CdReTODTY, WNT> Y I dedoDd
ODTWITN MNP  FTOF T Clnle! méﬁézm 57 IBF.Q.3. 2017,
0T008:23.10.2017008 BROMOER S0 e D) 07 RIT Fed00I,
TRERORT. IO %a&o@ﬁ%’)ﬁ r@dsmmol B3 e SPRTI XToFD 3TIESTOB
ANDTY ©POTT WG CHTT RRTOOT LOISONT.

3603, BEF OB TRO3ReEE 03RS TEos [0 B0 CIReKs (SNS)oDI,
ODTRINRVRPTTYN BRTMDEN ) WO HETH 2utd), 25 &IT BeIODI,
THEDBRORT. FWO &IV NMPTRFIH, TEOS WOE, S0A" CIRERT (INT)0D
BRNEEBRWONOZ $e0T RFOFTT TWLO 75%TT, 3T T TV 25%T=,
3T FTONOOT LOTONT.

MDY INT THS CIRERING WVTWINRYIL 8 &I B ©PODOTTI, 3
BT NPOMYTONLD, 71 &I §e§ ATOORTW, 74 &I et STIeWT T,
TONL 0.9.8. WEDTLEODR T FOWTIY TOBFWIT TTONT, RETOIELD
TONR B0 I0NTW), AEWPTTN BHTMHER SWoTH e 15 %I Fe30D,
TToFOTm BT3¢ méﬁé:wa 11 B23.2.20. 2017, &T003:05.06.20170 3533303
TAEDZROWT. BTO BROTHENR 2O MPOREIR[I), FFOF T STIe3 50935:5@
11 B2F.2.00. 2017, HT00%:05.06.2017303 RTE YT0A30D RBRE A8RCZZINLTON
WONET @odméojacseg LTNEDET IO IRTH 3¢.10RD, [RSHOT HORLRNT.

RFETT 35303 50935:563 11 B23°.2.20. 2017, HT003:05.06.201733T £.3.2.
2BDTIFODR AN zgwgd 100 SOm?S@%c:, ﬁaaﬁed@: Goe)) W) mw%dsaﬁ@émol
DOCORDNT.

3. ANDHF) 33 I$NTo3 @mmmaﬂ %%csasac%:

SONR TR QTN T I/
(TR. ©3NLY) (TR. ©3NLY)
332821.00 BB QT0ABOWOT FTOODR ;’2%@562@% 419744.83
5337.20 20.2.T8R.83.90T ORTRT 3%6562@% 3899.20
2000.00 & @?«35@% ANFOOT RTODTI %@56%6% 2230.00
500 | =oRPeE DD BHFF WHBOVRES xoi@o:bocs DDTVI ALTOATD 5.37

0.00 | 3T OT IV ALTOATD, 21.46
4500.00 | ®.230./R.T0. ATFEIBOOT DTN %esa%cs% 0.00

|.!~.:.
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SONR TXE QTN TR IR
(Bre. OIRYY) (Bre. OIRTY)

0.00 | &0 YUOACWOT WDWT ALFOATR 64.15
500.00 %émbé =) msé’ﬁafg QLDASCN0T BTRODTS REBOAT) 1080.00
NG WROTIONRYOT/ WY FOLIPCDIOD m;os
TOODF VEF TFTHTONPOT 30 CRERIODA AFFORTRT
0.80 WLBOTONT WD, 0.00
1000.00 %émrj\ 5333 BRY QRBOWOT BTRODTS %%Gz”s@?\)ﬁ% 1000.00
8676.00 OeTFIT® QOTI LIDTIOI RC%G%@%CS% 2200.00
13580 | BOWFT QURAONOT WV ALTOITR, 0.00
7500.00 | AW B YEDICWOT WDWOT RO, 0.00
20.00 | BOTIWOD YEVBOWOT WZTVI ALBOAT), 0.00
0.00 | <REHMDOF BDBOWOT AETOXTH) 2070.00
0.00 | ©OROIVIT YLPASCWOT AEFOATD 67.27
D020 enE CIRRICDNR TR ATF CSTOODROT
0.00 E9DTOI 3%6562)6%, 9533.48
362496.00 Wt 441915.76
HOOTNTRT WDTOI
0.00 | 2geo 2RSR 2014-153¢ TOTY ROTLFPIT I
£8.25.0.0. NSR ac%@ﬁmd OROTOT THTYIRNG. 2025.00

TAE BACTY ©FOH AReRINY SWIVTTN TR/ BOTR FOFNVOT IR
TOOE TIDF T TTFTY TR. 30T, BN (LODT TIHE TR.30T, 3ReND)
REOFO S003O0NZ, VeRWITT. FD0FEdT AFor T Jemeleson Je. 1 T, 23030
BCRDTR), BE SO L0 QW WHLD DB TRETLICTT WG BHTT e
&3, TUFORNT. JRZ [HFT TFOFO 0980 BT S0, 1210.88 ©FNH. (%003
IRE Tw. 1202.66 @?ﬁ%).

Toor Oy SHFE IRE 2017-183¢ mIR MOO0 Bedew® TSN Sw. 1163.00
VBT, (2ODT B[RE Tw. 2422.00 ©INWD) SONTONTY LTNITRNT DB
VTR, INT STIVON[OT TFF TROTEE [IFSONT TONL  TBETLRT
BRI, TBETICTT 08 LVPOTVT 0980 FLCRT' RN BROTIRESS TPBEONT.
RI0UBE 2018%& TOWIXLICTOT 0930 FeNCRD Tw. 1277.81 VBRI (HODT WHE
Sw. 1229.93 oiﬁ@o)
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7.

ANIY Tw. 5,53,00,000/~ (L00T JIRE Bw. 5,53,00,000/-) OITTB/E, A0
BPNAONR AFoF 0T STWEST DRVT THEOWD. BT, INTT TR STHET STWOD
DOTH THTEFONT.

QBT BANY DD I BOH / @oaﬁec%of WEORBADN ROLRT N*'@@z%ﬁeémol
WBNET DTN ﬁzg BRAT WG DOV, ANRP) NPT FOD mg% charged
off TRBSONT. NLIT WRONOT B[RRI f)?,gcieg, SPFSEAODT B3 (purchase of
miscellaneous assets) 200¢0 TRNRR DOF RGNYY STOH DB @oaSecipe WTTORBRDT
TROLIRT FPFORFRT, LBNATT DWDFTIEDd FeOWLIT. B, B3, TOZRTTD
TReECBOAT WY T@PEe TIW SO e STTOTRNTS. FFF IHIL WG
BRTHOT DDF VPRVT TLOWIY, “YVTOIRENAT WG DT DO TOMEFIONTS
B VT, 03REETVIQOD ¢S NYIT W SWTIN charged off IPBSONTS.

INRT QTONTY:

HORBRCOD GRTE: TR 44.22.91432/~ (H00F ITE TR, 46,16,91,560/~) (:3363
13 &, $ecd)

wwmmé)% 1. 20BTE 33030D ‘am %onardfaw% 3TN0 VDT LHOTIVLD méﬁoja
ms msa @CSKD FosIoMa0k mwam@m

- 3T, DI BeexdR FowoHAWoS: Jn. 8772.21 O3 FOWT WOONT
(2003 ITE Te. 953102 ©3F)

esgwam@qssd QemeN TWed3:

DT 2017-18 2016-17

oR. oR.
TRIWG TOBRETT e 2,00,000 1,50,000
301 TOBRCTT e 50,000 25,000
BEVOTBRINONR Hew B, 45,000 25,375
2,95,000 2,00,375

~

QATEETBT =C3: stm@wsc QTEESTON TOWAT 3BT TR, 19,99,263 /- (&0HT

JR/E T, 19,63,753/-) =B Tw. 92,000/- (%0HOT mHE Twe. 23,500/-) 71%35301

QT CTTONYNR NPORTmwoN (sitting fees) TRZST.
FIOFEIT BFOETT 3533 Noﬁ wnQ 64 @as%bﬁ 2004 003 10.09.2004 =003

Neln] wd*’@é Q0T eme 03RewI[OR @smma-b mmewwwa ch]

womojaasmw QB ON0T zmm% EsfelAle 20046@ 5mro§a~mo®33&.
2015-1633¢ TOVOT 30T FToFTLOT moﬁncj@ 3e. 603 mm ooz ATV THOT
ATOONTI 3¢.400F, “&CS QO NIVIZWIOTONT. FTO C3REBIONR INTDT)
2014-1555¢ ZOIAOT BLRT SHOOT §PEF TSOD, Mo TOLTROPENLD ANTT

-u;.

©OBFROBY HNIAT SRR S FOODPHINER [IeTHN SDTOSTZY,

DWNB TPRDET. B3 FOWOF, INTY) PLRIDFINY méoﬁamol ROWOTES

LROT DolNYY STODUONT. TUODLINY 303N VTVT LENEOITNDET FOTF T
ROTREF YWTOITD, “BTOONFI WHE” 0P 65% TONESRCONT.
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10.

I3, DI BeeS: AN FRW BWOCD BRFBION WO %mé%ﬁ BOF I,
SELRE WOV, BIWOD, BOTWE, TH0ZT IFBION FTieddss L3S0NY BHSCDI,
OB TP, WNI” D0W BRI C3RCRTONT), HFONRTL WY SROTWAZ B4
Y303 4 mﬂm@ grieoRs.

X)

Q)

TN 1 TXRRROD T 093 HO/Allot/AS/18300/3627/09-10 &T5003 08.07.2009
65033 32.5 233 zsé)amab zmm% 0% TJPTBOING. B3 O3ewBoN
amo% 31.03.2016 CSQ)C%OB’ Qﬁm@ dJa. 544.93 @iﬁ@&a\ (00T IRE T.
544.93) AOTON JRT. OPOT 32.5 DT HNEAIR DTTN 14 8T
BRI, oS0 [HE CdpeMON WeRITBERNT THF) 5 0IRCEICDRDY
mﬁé NOwcﬁ TR ODIR BPTOONY 876 TR wmfa’n QTIVFED mcéoa

DT, BTTOS, 14 23S TN ﬁzﬁ ow. 222 07 @'c'mfa‘n TRECNYTOI
@mma QO eBz%NeroﬂcS

AN 2004 TOTY ANTT 0BY FF0D wPBecasodnonn
BT .B.ET.HL.R.QC BREROT DBRET TPROTT TRET, BHOIY 2.0
ESCROW 230309, TOW. AN GHRINETE, [RTO HJNG ATIEEOTN,
JOITHBNAY @Oe@ﬁ 65%383 DB 0B 3336 Nmeﬁmm% 53@ 0B f&éde
i)&%ﬁ@mﬂ 2t OR.541. 43 @am%m m mcéemﬂd AN mgw@ %..ao.@.@.zi’).
m@s zma)a wdm&@%ﬁ@o cira457 88 @6 mcsa ma'iﬁ Zbamrsa?mﬂ
Se.12.50 ©3, RAINY m@cﬁéﬁ osds@ﬁ@ém D0eHITD Tw.20.00 @6
Q33e dralo 00 @571@;53 m BRBSINT), @mo% 31.03.2018T0TH ESCROW
0e80DY 2 m3c3Jao®ﬁ cira41 54 osmﬁo BT QI

AONTRODIRTE, 3 o3 CERTRTY, (POTOF W) 1 B3 ATW *’%363@
JFOFTOOT mommd 4.02 2383 &&3@85@ 2+2 TRTOONY mrﬁ OwCS
oDBA 336 7Y m«m QWIVFED TIVT/ED emdeé,ﬁ f&dd@ 31. 03 20163
eﬁoaé Noﬁmodassa@o:b@ 192 & wﬁ@ém w@wFM@NmﬂCS Sonw 176
G3p) @39 mﬁm 30233 mcsmﬂcﬁ

Rwees CSRexme PEE SHTR HeS AONTIONITHY, TRCIT Ty WNY
BB, B3 FYNTOZ TOFORRNT.

MR I o =R 3

IouT B3 | IRoUT TS
o, 3.95.000/—| 457325/~
2073 480,000/~ | 5.55.737/-
oDBE 525000/~ |  6,07.837/-

ERTWS : ITO x@@dg MDY 352 R LFNRTTY, AWFRLD QT AT, B3
BrexZoRRONY ﬁa% @@ﬁ@% =302 ﬁézssaﬁ 0T TIPTBOONT.

30T ARePORRBODY MDY FOVFRITOOT W NER, DIVEFNTY LTSS
RBPOT @m@@;’od. WTTOZ TYTOT 5@@?%& TOWORRATIOZ ézgs WRFTED B FNTT
T00 YT, BRTDIRR YOT FINGY Towsd TFoHoDI, TRFARYIONG.
ANDF) QOJ00F 08.07.2012 3O an&r_aoﬁaé Clatervary eﬁmdaf%d S8 20
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BIOH AR, BREFRLORBIINY. B C3ReI0D DTT IINT0ST:

Annual Report 2017-15 |}

b}
n2er0r o053 ASRewNon | deemdo
. ) @oswmﬂ "oas :;:3_:9 FTO o perzies 503

%eé (273 VoY) a; VoY) - 3

moti- | e | momm | ohIm | win vER N

~ © | P3oDeRR, |FRveheEn
1T9) 2 2

« $RROT $RROT

BRBS 5:00 60 36 256 352 1209.58 2515.09
&mﬂﬁmdﬁ&% 02:01 36 48 60 144 572.87 1229.48
%oﬁmoﬁa%&&% 02:01 48 60 84 192 857.78 692.40
@@émww 14:00 72 108 696 876 3954.72 7647.44
msgs 216 252 1096 | 1564 6594.95 12084.41

THOTB/ITR, THENRTITT L30B/T* FIIYOH ITFHE S[PRTIE QTPYTOOT INZY)
BWO MHIRODT, TWHIRAT Tone TR, 81.56 ERCENT IR TTW, BHOTONT
(20TT 208 FTOTMOOONT), BNTVORARYILD 3¢TOT TOJ HHT Twe. 48.81 doces
+ SBYI, &?,5%56 TN fme%mdm W23 Bw. 27.54 300 Tone TSR T
D @ FPT TR, 5.21 BeLNLD). FTO DRODTY SLFUTTRY 238 JT. ORI,
ANIF) 1564 0TS ﬁé% 736 OCRRITNTI), TJROFARYRT FOWOT
2015-1635¢ IT F ST TTTOZ mg@s C3ReRTD [T/, FOIIWORT,

ANRY) HT0F Twee 31 2018 T @O%ﬁ ROONTE BeTFHNLY, TOWFOITT €923 TTOOT
;ge%@ﬁemcﬁ O FOBNLD TRV 3emm TonR TOBNTY ;ge%@ﬁmcs’ BRIT Hed
RORORT VB TORR BNLDRRELD ToFLRT e,0% SPBONYBHFNROTBOZ
O, 28,89,05,231/— mgaaﬁaol %@6@%&3. (%00T IR 28,71,89,317/-)

II. &FTF ﬁ@ﬁn‘ : AN HT00T 31Je ToFE 2018T @oéﬁ dw. 27,10,91,593 /—
nYRY, BRIODYTVT  TTMPOONOTD  TONESICONT. 88 TIMOONY TRXET,
RBRB00TT TS0 Tone MERTITIROONR R0 TPTF JPRT H[RT DB
FOWIMOOODN VBT m;sm LYRROBTET.

12. ANINF) “©0e3ts 50%@ (not for profit organisation) C33NTH, VB YT SHF TN
LOTYTHOMN [BS O3RCHBINTD, OTMIAAHVAB 20T DIeR VT3
TOBITOND, VBT WTOOT BERATT PBeST, BT D) JedT ATPAND,
QTVONTR, FFOFTY) BONTONTY wBNTLRT WRTTILOT GBORRMHET. 2000~
08¢ SHFTY odpexm AROD RS NPT WPONT, ANTF) BTODTOT
mmésmg. 2001-02 20T 2004-05 THTR, XTI @we3 50@35: = 103
DT 2001 &. 12.04.2002 d%oﬁb ANTNF) NPT &)%Odamo,\ 03ReRTD OB
©OMzN TONLPFLONT. ST3 oR QUL VB, &TOY DB 03RewTD
QROD et NYAT WROD FeS 30RONT), THIWIT. AN STOH 3oR
SOV (VELD) JBVT JNOT STPOH 0T LVT SOINTL TTY BRTBAT
ORI RVOLT STIEBNG AT DREOT, TERT. ST3 VT, BTWOD ielaiiClovnliov
(DRe) 9B/ TORBADPOY, STOOT 2005-063¢ SHEBY AN 3T, SITY,
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DeSONT), WTLROWAB B 3RERTOIHOD e MPAT PONT, STIVOD
DOTH TONBXB). BWT0Z S0 3071 SOINTL (YELD) ATT ATFTTOS
SZTINT, TOFORTDOWD.

9

R ©QOT W ONT/T JTFBTTOZ DB FOINNRIT AT BRI, szsw QPIewwpilew
DeRT SeQFT STPTT 0T 0B ANTT FOONF ) FOINVRDFTT A @ofm-%&
ARTONTORYTOOT 0 DT mﬂ@ﬁ@cfo FTOFWT BFOF OB YVQIONTONTRYTOOT
2008-093¢ @OR JMTNY W II, IZTEF, I0NT), WTLDOWAB W)
O3ReBRTOINOD e NPT WHODTY, C3RCHTD PO N0 TONEIXS
WY YTWT0Z STTIRTRY, TOFOA.

soch Forcd TWI 38 B3 FINTI0ST:

[T} Godovletcd ) TRRSAT K.2.8303° 630D Wt amgl oo
SR é,.%@@ne/f)@; 353035303 g%cﬁaf%as 2{;@%@5&3@@6
9BTF O | TRSTORT 200208 mg
308

2001-02 1,93,96,306 - 76,90,310 | 1,17,05,996

2002-03| 3,40,69,698 - | 1,92,06,071 | 1,48,63,627
9B TFN0ET BONDT.

2003-04 2,88,97,244 -1 2,03,04,239 85,93,005

2004-05 2,21,01,117 - | 2,13,27,888 7,73,229

2005-06 22,59,872 - 19,66,020 2,93,852

2006-07 35,88.557 - 35,65,988 22,569

2007-08 1,48.,34,316 19,90,589 88,20,848 21,39,880 @mmf TNOTI LD
0% AT.

2008-09 1,31,82,849 | 70,09,802 —| 1,31,82,849 | &.2.63035°.83. O
BREOTY, LRI
TORRTY BDIBTC
3TICDTI.

2009-10 5,08.,18,489 13,06,67,285 — | 5,08,18,489 | ©.2.63035°.83. O
DO, LRI
TOLRTY BDIBTC
3TICDTI.

2010-11 3,15,35,234 | 1,66,2,467 — | 3,15,35,234 | 2.2.63035°.83. O
DREOTY, LRI
TOLRTY BDIBTC
3TICDTI.

59
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eRTeshor WY TORIAT [.2.505°.L3CH 2t tamel Een)
R u@az‘ﬁ/ﬁ@; 3733503 ,j%csaz)d g%cﬁazz.%ew:
5T HOLF | THRSTST 000% mg
3oR
2011-12 5,57,26,667 |3,93,35,508 - 15.57,26,667 | 3205 00T L&D
508 AT
2012-13 3,89,33,312 [2,08,99,229 -1 3,89,33,312 | &.2.3035°.63. O

DREOTY, LRI
VOB JBITBTC
e3T3CDRTI.

2013-14 2,94,41,206 - -12,94,41,206 | 2.63033.83. (©9eeD)
QR RWTFO 030
EEMECVIY OVTIRTIE
BT BRTRBATOTT.
2014-15 1,09.,80,022 - -11,09,80,022 | e338 dntedeg) IO
BSTIEDT 20 IR
ROTeD JTFOAT.

2015-16 5.83,45,321 - — | 5.83,45,321
@.2.63035°.83, N0
2016-17 5.88.,60,350 - 5.88.,60,350 BT R0 1398 AT,
2017-18 5,00,16,975 - 5,00,16,975
Zwér% 40,64,22,655 |11,65,64.879 8.28.81,364 | 44,01,06,170

13. S00008 DT 301:
©) BT BornD : WEE 31, 2018 SQBOE VY FFTT, BorohI, Bs FINTOZ

BOWBRYTINT.
NFTNH BdFc’, donne TRT IS 2R @dFos, donn¢
FOTORT S, WOIT S,
ARTY 12,86,524 (9.33.697) 3.52.827
02 INOCBTED 6,18,003 2,68,579 8,86,582
NodEs 19.71,902 0 19.71,902
Wt 38,76,429 (6,65,118) 32,11,311

R03T WuFE $FP0L0L FOFODHTM BROBAT JFTT IRSTOR 22 “wmocd
R0eD3 Forne TWOMRS” 1 TowoRATOZ AN INOOT SHFE TTENTY
O3PR)TE ITHT  STWORTZ, MO @2@2;5333 QWRTOOT BPT, oK B
3. 32,1311/~ R, BOOTRSREBT FRCWOT NS IRTDILORLROY.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

ad.r%c / WREF OB YTy TH3IY u@éo&m& WTTRRS [ ur?\ ORTOAT
QOR: aac&@ée / &ROT OT DT w%odamol TOWSTEN o*osawabol [0BTR)
3T, SONTJLEIT DROT LTNWDYTOOT, VTZ, FTFTT SV apvielnt
mm@xmmgcs%, 330 w%odamol mzﬁ.r%e /méo%ﬁ TOWS WRRTN, FTTTR) B3
ERWEMN VRT YDTRTTY TeoTeds m@&@%mmgcﬁ. BFOOF 3% BOT0T3y),
ANTVT IT@oN mz&a&e / méosfﬁ DNTRE [RRT WROZY, &C&r%e / eROT
OO TTWTWBEMON SCDTODT Te8E (provision) TROT VCRT LOBTRY VTR
(Capital grants) 0T BORIFONT. TR TITY TOT I WE HEd TOB/EMON
80.105.69 BRcENYRD, 0B Te.186.98 BoewNTDY, FOO IDIWTOTEMN FToF ¢33
TTFCO0T ACBOOT ONTOID0T DD RIDBOONT.

wwwsé A @33,356 : BoOFEIE BFFT DB, QORONT mesos@ai TROTZY, TRTDIRR,
o%ac&r%e / DEOTORD mﬂ@ﬁ@?ocﬁ DBT TOON IFoF T mé@oﬁaaﬁa@l moad%,
WL B WG FTTFEMON efojméojacjeg 559@%0335301 TPRDIBT.

MDY ARF, A DT DHI YQING ©RFH TNT 2006 TYNBOF
QBODMOTT w7} [0SO, ACFOAPDY. SFOOT JRFTOZZ 28 RO
T EFITNWI BT, TRR, Lo [ATH 7} 33 TOWTIODRODY TeLFSoDI,
QEBSONTLR)OY.

230MERDS B0Tied YTINTTYTE Towes” MO To0ET Fe0TWY AN IZTE
T 257 FPoDY “FIY ToST 0w 2.0 ITLed FOTII, TYRAT. FTO
30238 FeoTTRY QOWAODOONT THREFTL, RBFRETD TIREFTT, WIQ TFND,
MY 3OATHW, STRORTED, DTN TWFS, QR / LT pT°, S03w0E
T FoH TOFRVRFO BOFRINGY WTE TLIeIPYFHW, ITeIedYFBRD DT
TOBT MRINEEd 30T INT TWeSNFYTST 9TT IWTBRLNNT 00T / [ AT
BOLSeSNTRY, VBN, 5 ToS0ID BTWed TORFFNTTY, kRT 20083¢
IJOT TWTORAT. 2017-18T¢ SHFF BRFTY ANTP) Twe. 3R, (L0OT JRF
msé) 3oded me% SRITY am@rﬁ@od TBORNCINT Tomd Tw. 6,87,469 /-
(00T BRF Te.3,98,125/-). STLIeS0DZ, IWROT S[ERTI, LINROTBOZ 0edF
BRBOONT. THODFFR TOMH STES FPW DWOND 38 FENT0LD:

200N IIF WD TRF TR

(Br.) (B®.)
3,77.839 | Re3x, STesed e B 3, 6,62,000
13,853 | 3e3ed 0BT Sened 0

3300 QWE T

©028 08 ERe00NT” TNTEe SeDT TN,

0 DB 2308 CTIZD 22,884
6,433 T[S B3, / OVFS, WeIN 2,585
3,98,125 Wi 6,87,469

-u;.
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3OF mraomgms DY mg)oamﬁ

2 Oy

@ﬁéag B3AE® TY': “Payment of Gratuity Act 1972” SJod éR 8oeoE ed
3, MDE TR BB TRT® BIVTWERNT. 38

O3eRFOID TRTEOD 22T DT ANTHOT Heo L.BNFTINT 303 0SReH
ROTRFTY 03 :RO FeBT 3D ANDTY BYIT ZeNe [RENON BOLIOLATOZ
2.8 VHIT VIVBRODJI), CTITT. MRRLONTY, JPFORLY WIART B[
N30 WOomowd WD T8 ISNT0S8T:

o, 28 LuTcdeennes

TOTRT WHTLIND

?i. EOne 31-03-2018 | 31-03-2017 | 31-03-2018 | 31-03-2017
1 emmécnmsd 3@@ Lonnsd
@"333 Tewo i)?,g 5,06,930 5,37,141 9,97,502 9,66,572
%O Aeew 3823 — ClReRFoD WI0TF 2,15.877 0 0 0
&J% d?,g 4,80,532 4,34,961 1,97,286 1,59,020
ciReETD FBNPOT J0LFICRT SWOOD 0 0 0 0
QTRNEST I, (25,704) 65957 | (7.18,201)| (4.59.165)
STRCD Y FeF aRBHY Tonedzens
Wi ﬁzgﬂ@éo 11,77,634( 10,38,060 4,76,587| 6,66,427
2 | A8 ORQ TRIToRT i3 FodeewEn®
D &R
TRRERORT F2e003 TOSRCRIND 0 0 0 0
?)e;m RN 0 0 0 0
3 | Qs %3 RO aﬁ&ép&:@ fpolerE) i rlnd
Z«B%ﬂ? w&ﬂ%/(ém%m@%ﬁ%) 31.03.2017 o
@efga; 23T asmw%@oda ?_J]:’g:% 53905 75,59,195 63,81,561 30,96.581| 26,19,994
odesd RECT /5RO méoiroezsé :ﬁaoé
ol 2‘%3 NRTE wagos;g fpolerE) i rind
DT sane/(FRBmOins) (75,59,195) | (63,81,561) [(30,96,581) [(26,19,994)
4 | =oeEs 2017 S ©o3T RORQ
IRFT ST0F3Y @%&; BT
asmwgpodo @":’33 53305 63.81,561| 53.43,501 26,19.994| 19,53,567
@"333 Tewo azg 5,06,930 5,37.141 9,97,502 9,66,572
&J% d?,g 4,80,532 4,34,961 1,97,286 1,59,020
NRPNESS aﬁ% =25,704 65957 | (7.18,201)| (4.59.165)

TRRSRRT TOSREBINTD
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- - =9
3 =R o, 2888 T3REAN | [OTT DT SN
0. 31-03-2018 | 31-03-2017 | 31-03-2018 | 31-03-2017
5 |S%E e.-oo%cseg @%@2 BT TTRLTOD
@’33 53305 75,59,195| 63.81,561| 30,96,581| 26,19,994
gedieoR SRETY FB1nY mﬁo&racass
@Osdg B30 WRRd 31.03.2017
B[R STOFBII cleess AR - - - -
cdnend FNY HedT TFDNT WD - - - -
BOTACD JWTNT BRTN - - - -
cipezd B8 HedT Qe IR - - - _
TRRERTT T3RLIIND - - - -
ST EedehQ cBeexs TR - - - -
6 | ODPNT BROTVEFIN
03100238 B30T BRRNT BROTESE -25,704 65957 | (7.18,201)| (4.59.165)
QTP [H AN9F) LRTRYRT WBCOIE 0 0 0 0
odeesss e 206 ITLIW TBROTEE 0 0 0 0
SR 3%%‘3 oo 5%/ (5] 0 0 0 0
7 | QT ned3 eeRnsh
DCIONE TWT 7.63% 7.53% 7.63% 7.53%
cdnend MY sHedd JDEFRRT ST 0% 0% 0% 0%
BeSI B 7.00% 7.00% 7% 7.00%
@ﬁéa; 3RTR T TRITS AT PIF Y W 202368 APNER VT
BRWRODNTY, EROLRRTT TRF® OTH FYTRITRNG. TPTTT FOWIT TN
QOFF BB BRTIIW, IPFT DY MY TE SN PAF QN T[OSIORZ,
QeTT. ANTNFY) T8 BHTJI), TP B[IVWIN FOWOD BT 20¢S STIDOD
DB eDE 003N BT TR, NTAB DONYTe 25eT o3TYTIe @@@d%&
BRWN AWT BHRB NI, APOY,
19. A TOP : BFT Ty JBohT, “wdeeg wcgpa (Indirect Method)” 03®

BOSPORLRNT. BTG 0RN0T BRTELD BRHOTRESE BRBLRT STONEOT B
QTG eDE Y, INW T FIoTR BeowotdNY 0SS DOTHITN WeTNTOZ BROTHE
JRTBEONT. HOOT VPTD [BRONT STTEWONT INOT C3PRTE BPIT, B
DRDJOTIVIY, ToWS WP TS NI BWOD WP DWRDFNOR  OSP)Te
TRRE WTHO BLRTORI T PRAYR FOWOHFINT. STJILIONT BRART B
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20.

21

22.

TOTAT WTLINGR, T B IQ TFEIACNT. 35 T0AITR, NI
m@ﬁécﬁmmmow 083 RRTO 200N LT WFROE0LT BT VORAIP mﬂ@osmda
BRTRAT T PR 30eOT AS3 Tev3od S08 Hed TR TRBTNT.

™

AN 69F0D FOBYOD FIoNY Jear oNATOZ, BT, $e0T FeOONT, Toezozs
SNTROT D% FBIT, x@emosaf%d. 83 ITQ 200D TWHOD FoMEOMDN
zira.23,79,03»0/—71%%@30l ADF IPBOONT. STV XFor V) ST 509355.%2. DB .R.NR.
2015, 3oneRD, HT03: TYI12.04.2015 TR DAL HIZTY B FTWePT ANT m?%é
BECOODTY, ETWI @wsésé QIRYTOOT ANT FEILOOD, TLdF ToLZOI[NT
BRRE 5@%03%@ SBEDAT. WWT0Z AN DIWLVIOOT ToLPRINTE, 3T,
BEILOODR, 3@%0362)53. TRNR LYIOTED TWHO TTMOON TWB/ERLRT HRTTZY,
B350 ANT BYHOT 2TLIETT BHTFOW SREOTTONT.

QDTN 52233 : TAT MIOTY MDY I, BANTRY, WORWE TRWPYTTYN O3TY)TIe
TOTZ, IR GROBIVRDY.

ANTT BFND BTFNY BT

IRZT FoDd =60 TR 31032018 | aR=T Fmosd | 31.03.2017
S3n¢ BT ST IWE B8 (B8 | I B3 383 (3».)

A WINGN gﬁa@?\@s TOLRWS &EF 2017 ool .23, &R0

00T @nz, 58 3R 857,071 | Q& 2016 00T 3,77,614
m@d 2016 T =BR

Q. OHBTPT OLRTD BT IR

@&%&)09 4 2017 o0 142,192 | eonsg 2016 00T 15,86,139
T 2018 3R T 20178 =BR

19,99,263 19,63,753

23.

24.

25.

26.

fme%ocs@ﬁmoaﬁ, MY BR. 92,000/~ (00T &HE Tw. 23500/-) NE,
QT ETTT MOT=PIwoN (sitting fee) DeRT.

BORT TRET BROTVBE LTo3OD QT WDE Y, FENTPYNIR, LerieoRT.

ESTOOD % 1,24,472/- WDF % 11,235/-

RO OTVRLFON': ANV TN VLN AFOFTT B ARERING VTV
BB, 9 REY VZPMNeY VWREED / @m@@p TOORFN =) STesed TOODF BTN,
WHRRORT. g é)mrﬁ%é ROWORAT THORFTY BITOTNTD BTN DTTBLFOOT,
QRN DWONFR), ATE AT

DT IRTD:  TRE BRFE ITETY 030PTe DT INOT [0 DRDY.

FeSed ToROMOONYY: ANTOR) ToFe0 FIT .30, T0oPeFT 9IFe
BTRONY QOWOONT FOTMONTR), SRedRTCILEN BLOBN Be:ed TTMO

Annual Report 2017-15 |}
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dw. 1,79,73,000/- noR VAT, 88 RO FTO QRABOWOT OSRVF)TIC FToToTO

TNFYOD T|pED T, AERTVPH DY,

27, B® FeoR HeIT SoD: TRT STRFT eI $B[TE 98 ReDRII), SWODIOT

BB DWER, N2 BE HeOT STHODTD), IF, TOTUONT.

TS RedT BTOD / (5%)

(Fe0T VORI, B0 JRY WIT WOINH TR.NYY)

QETNsd

313 =owfs 20183
@0%:3:23303 (Br.)

313 =ewEfs 20173
@0%:3:23303 (Br.)

B33 TeTVTOTON TV, WHON,

ﬁz;’égoé DT SO (1,60,21,391) 25,68,45,505
TS Hedrt Te.100 NYOZ RO NETODRZ,

eﬁ?m&zsw DB WSRO ITORO 5%12%@3

ReNS ZTORO 309325 3,00,000 3,00,000
B HeOT RO BOTRTS A(©0F) (53.40) 856.15
TS Hedrt Te.100 NYOZ RO NYTODZ,

eﬁ?mézsw [IOTEN céémw DRBORT FTORO

5%135@3 RN 30030 509325 3,00,000 3,00,000
BE HeOS FLoty SRERT TRV

BoTRTES A(o0%) (53.40) 856.15

Annual Report 2017-15 |

28. @55@%@, 00T ©03% @0571@553@1 T DONBH :;33_30 T WACETTED IOBOONT3.

/- /- T DJI00BIT sm@ v elnlosveor:]
ol 2. BRBoITE N. @aﬁgﬁomv 2 BOTTT TomSE 7.»3_:9 XO3F JTzNn

QTE ST 5@@@&6 QTEETFTR es-u;wg TOBReTI

FRN 004218 S

B /- /-
D). . DTRT TO3RCTE NTF.
BYADRIY 555@95563 (B R &) (TOLOTRT)
xcmégg 0. 212254
5@@5 N eTat>Intoy)

OTJ003T : 04-09-2018
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20133 30D Fo0doh I0Ped 143(6)(W) WFHODH RTIT IORHCVT DI
BRWOT WRTOTTTD, ToRWR® MOOR MYNeHd [TBE AN AOHWNIT 31.03.2018@&
WOZRROT O3 IJINE Wi VRT IR

20133 30T TOROD wézéwecs 143(6)(2) SRONY BHFT JTOR WRMETN ANDTRAIT
BIODTRTN TR MoK Mogeed [V AN JoBNTH 318e Ses 20188 ©0ZRA0T 3
TING, %c;pad@#o@m BBYZ JNFT 0L OCIPNIT. 20138 FOTR OO ad@a%wecﬁ
139(5)s803Q %08 'éoa"%e@cf DB BRWTT WITS® FEWAT TOFT aoc;p e3§ TOBReFITD
20133 30T TOHOD aﬁ@%ecﬂ 143(10)T08 TeoBoRd TeYINY 2} 33, VRTONTJW), BIVRBHL
&EI0LRTTINTOTIT. LF0E: 17.12.20183 eﬁz‘% VOBREFTT [TOOWOT VW, WIRRTYTH TOW
WORT.

BOTR T003) 20133 300 143(6)() BIJOD T, {RTIT %oa’;@e@c@ D) BRI RITS TET
TOTON, “ToXERT MOR MyWerd [TS AN ORI, Bondeds” 31te [wers 2018 F
@03@@0&3 SHET JBNY B0 eSz‘% TOBRTS SRARTES. msmc;p e%& TOBReFIT
Beron® Hewom), SRR TN 34 TRTT &7 TOZRBIONI, BRERNS. TIIIWG,
&3, TOZREFTD T ANDT AYWOONERTES IFIT VWTH DT NS 305y SO

0DBNY TR faagﬁﬂ RO B JHTT wagséom BTN,

I3, @@mamwﬁo& SRTT e0COT RTHON0S, mxm% e3§ TOBReFIT 56%3 3808
SYTOZRCTIT JOOOHY $YRRT 0T F0S) TOWET 143(6)(2)T0F IRCINY F0edT
mag ‘a@ﬁ@é@l TRTDIBR TR TLRTTeoN waggéwmol WpletAplnlelctelievsnbyinly magcs
HOBNY RO TRTT 63§ GslelioNwiMew) 55@1 ﬁmﬁ% LORTVRHHY.

PRTTT FOBR VT’ B BRWT® RIT TRT TT3oN

2 /-
(8. &. JEedw)
TOS WFTO0LI0EF WITS®
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 18th Annual General Meeting of the members of
Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited will be held at on Saturday, 29.12.2018 at
2.30pm at the registered office at 9th Floor, KHB Complex, Cauvery Bhavan, K.G.Road,

Bengaluru-560 009 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2018 and Income and
Expenditure Statement for the year ended on that date together with the Directors’
Report and Report of the Statutory Auditors and the Schedules attached thereto, and

comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

To note the appointment of the Statutory Auditors who have been appointed by C &
AG and fix remuneration for the year 2018-2019.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.

Change in name in from RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION
LIMITED’ to ‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED’

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following

resolution as a Special Resolution ;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the rules made thereunder and all other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to the approval of the Central Government (power
delegated to Registrar of Companies)consent of the members be and is hereby accorded
for change of name of the Company from ‘RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING
CORPORATION LIMITED’ to ‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION
LIMITED'or such other name as may be approved by the Central Government/ Registrar

of Companies, Bangalore, Karnataka.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Clause I of the Memorandum of Associationis altered to

be read as follows:
I The Name of the Company is RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Companies
Act, the Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered by substituting
the name ‘RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED’ with
‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED’ wherever it appears in

the Articles of Association.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Directorbe and are hereby authorized to
file the requisite returns with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and to do all acts, deeds
and things in connection therewith and incidental thereto for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors,

N. P. Dhiren
Company Secretary

Place: Bangalore
Date: 22.12.2018

Note:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting is entitled to appoint
a proxy to attend and vote for himself / herself and the proxy need not be a member
of the Company.

2. Proxy forms, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed and signed
and must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours
before the commencement of the meeting.

3. Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached hereto.

4. Consent letter for shorter notice is annexed hereto.

<
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Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Item No 3:

The Company is involved in implementing housing programmes in not only rural
areas but in urban areas also. Therefore in view of this the Board of Directors of the
Company in its meeting held on 29" May 2015 had decided to drop the word "'RURAL’
from the name of the Company and change it from ‘RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING
CORPORATION LIMITED’ to ‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION
LIMITED'.

The Company has applied for and has been allotted the name ‘RAJIV GANDHI
HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED’ and has sought the necessary approval of the

Central Government for use of the words ‘Corporation” and ‘Gandhi’ in the name.

According to the provisions of Section 13 of the Companies Act, 2013 change of name
of the Company requires the approval of the members by way of special resolution.
Further the change of name is subject to the approval of the Central Government (power
delegated to Registrar of Companies). Hence the resolution is commended for your

approval.

None of the Directors or Key managerial persons are interested in the resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors,

N. P. Dhiren
Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore
Date: 22.12.2018
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-m.

POSTPONED NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 18th Annual General Meeting of the members of

Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited will be held at shorter notice on Tuesday,
08.01.2019 at 11.30 am at the registered office at 9th Floor, KHB Complex, Cauvery Bhavan,
K.G.Road, Bengaluru-560 009 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.

To receive and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2018 and Income and
Expenditure Statement for the year ended on that date together with the Directors’
Report and Report of the Statutory Auditors and the Schedules attached thereto, and

comments of Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

To note the appointment of the Statutory Auditors who have been appointed by C &
AG and fix remuneration for the year 2018-2019.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3.

Change in name in from RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION
LIMITED’ to ‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED’

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following

resolution as a Special Resolution ;

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the rules made thereunder and all other applicable provisions, if any, of
the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to the approval of the Central Government (power
delegated to Registrar of Companies)consent of the members be and is hereby accorded
for change of name of the Company from ‘RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING
CORPORATION LIMITED’ to “‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION
LIMITED or such other name as may be approved by the Central Government/ Registrar

of Companies, Bangalore, Karnataka.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Clause I of the Memorandum of Associationis altered to

be read as follows:
I The Name of the Company is RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Companies
Act, the Articles of Association of the Company be and is hereby altered by substituting
the name ‘RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED’ with
‘RAJIV GANDHI HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED’ wherever it appears in

the Articles of Association.

565



Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007-18 .

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Directorbe and are hereby authorized to
tile the requisite returns with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and to do all acts, deeds
and things in connection therewith and incidental thereto for the purpose of giving
effect to this resolution.”

By order of the Board of Directors,

N. P. Dhiren
Company Secretary
Place: Bangalore
Date: 22.12.2018

Note:

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting is entitled to appoint
a proxy to attend and vote for himself / herself and the proxy need not be a member
of the Company.

2. Proxy forms, in order to be effective, should be duly stamped, completed and signed
and must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours
before the commencement of the meeting.

3. Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached hereto.

4. Consent letter for shorter notice is annexed hereto.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Ladies and Gentleman,

Directors have the pleasure in presenting the 18" Annual Report of your Corporation for the
financial year, together with the Audited Balance Sheet as on 31.03.2018 and the Income
and Expenditure statement for the period from 01.04.2017 to 31.03.2018.

1. ABOUT THE CORPORATION

We are glad to inform you that your Corporation has continued to play a vital role in
providing shelter to the poor and needy in every nook and corner of the State, both in
Rural and Urban areas as per the policy directions issued by the Government of
Karnataka and the Government of India. The role and responsibility of the Corporation
increased year after year since housing continues to be a priority of successive
Governments in the State.

During the year the Corporation continues to be responsible for the implementation of
the following programs of the Government:

. Basava Housing Scheme

. Vajpayee Urban Housing Scheme

. Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana (Gramin) [Indira Awas Yojana (IAY)], a Centrally
sponsored scheme

. Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Nivas Housing Scheme

. Devaraj Urs Housing Scheme (Special Housing Scheme) (Rural and Urban)

. Indira Rural House Sites Schemes
. Vajpayee Urban House Sites Schemes
. Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana (Urban), a Centrally sponsored scheme.

. Chief Minister’s 1 LAKH Multi-Storied Bengaluru Housing Scheme.

The Corporation envisaged to build 3,00,000 houses for the year 2017-18. As against
this target the Corporation has completed 3,48,134 houses as on 31.03.2018, which
includes 3,03,623 houses in rural areas and 44,511 houses in urban areas.

During 2018-19, the Corporation envisages to complete 4,00,000 houses including
balance houses of previous years is as follows:

Name of the Scheme Target
Basava Housing Scheme 1,60,000
Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Nivas Yojana 1,12,000
Devaraja Urs Housing Scheme 12,000
Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana (Gramin)(IAY) 44,000
Vajapeyee Urban Housing Scheme 28,000
Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana (Urban) 44,000
TOTAL 4,00,000

The Corporation is in the business of facilitating and providing affordable Housing to the
poor. The beneficiary has the first option to construct her/his own house and the role of
the Corporation in this case is to facilitate. In case of the beneficiary is not in a position to
construct on her/his own due to constraints, construction of the dwelling unit is entrusted
to State construction agencies such as KRIDL and District Nirmithi Kendras.
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The experience of the Corporation in the last eighteen years has shown that self
construction of houses by the beneficiary has addressed housing needs better than
building houses by the other agencies, since self-construction facilitates better utilization
and appreciation of inputs contributed by the beneficiary (both material and labour).
The government issues the core housing only. But the beneficiary will construct his
own house by providing his/her one needs and use of designs.

Directors have ensured that the Corporation has remained lean in its organization
structure and has been able to keep its administration and other overheads at the
minimum possible level as compared to the volume of activities involved.

OPERATIONAL RESULTS
The scheme-wise details are given below:

A. Housing schemes for EWS:

Annual Report 2007-

Schemes Target Completed
Basava Housing/Rural Ashraya Backlog 1,60,000 56,247
Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana (Rural) 44,000 21,144
Devraj Urs Housing Scheme 12,000 2,888
Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Nivas Yojana (Rural) 1,02,000 23,112
Rural Total 3,18,000 1,03,391
Vajpayee Urban Housing Scheme 28,000 5,082
Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Nivas Yojana (Urban) 10,000 3,806
Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana (Urban) 44,000 1,863
Urban Total 82,000 10,751
GRAND TOTAL as on 31.08.2018 4,00,000 1,14,142
B. Sites schemes for EWS:
Schemes Target Distributed
Indira Rural House Sites Schemes 5000 660
Vajpayee Urban House Sites 469
Total sites for the end of August2018-19 5000 1,129

FINANCIAL RESULTS

During the year, the Corporation has received grants of Rs. 4,419.16 crores from
Government. The fund utilized during the year is Rs. 5,012.29 crores. Besides this, the
Corporation has incidentally earned an interest of Rs. 69.68 crores by parking the
funds in Banks as short term deposits.

The operations of the Corporation during the current financial year resulted in an
excess of Income of Rs. 1.60 crores over Expenditure. The said income is mainly due to
grants provided by the Government in 2017-18 budget towards payment of Guarantee

15.
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Commission of Rs. 12.30 crores as against the outstanding due of Rs. 11.63 crores. As per
the Government direction this amount has been made book adjustment cosnidering income
of the Company. But due to set-off of carry over excess expenditure over income Rs. 22.30
crores there is an excess expenditure over income of Rs. 23.90 crores, the same has been
carried to the balance sheet.

The Corporation functions as a non-profit organization and earns no margin on the
funds provided by the Government for implementation of Housing schemes. So the
administrative and other expenditures of the Corporation are provided by the
Government through Budgetary provisions.

4. NANNA MANE AFFORDABLE HOUSING SCHEME:

In order to provide permanent shelter to the LIG families viz., beedi workers, auto
rikshaw drivers, film industry technicians, garment workers, vegetable sellers, agarbatti
workers, petty contractors residing in Bengaluru, whose annual income is upto
Rs.1,00,000, the Government has envisaged to provide shelter at the affordable price
with all the basic infrastructure through a new scheme viz.,, “NANNA MANE”".

The super built up area of house will be 425 sq.ft. to 576 sq.ft. with G+2, G+3 model
with single / double bed room house. There are 3 types of houses viz., Bhagya, Sampada
and Yashassu. As of now, 192 flats constructed at Singanayakanahalli, in which 175
flats allotted. The unit cost is Rs. 4,57,325/-, Rs. 5,55,737/- and Rs. 6,07,837/-
respectively. The entire unit cost is borne by the beneficiary through own contribution
and loan from banks.

In the 1% Phase the Corporation has taken up the project in the following places:

(Figures are in dwelling units)

- Place ey e oo Total
1 | Kodathi Village, Sarjapur Road, Bengaluru 60 36 256 | 352
2 | Hunasemaranalli, Yelahanka, Bengaluru 36 48 60 144
3 | Singhanayakana, Yelahanka, Bengaluru 48 60 84 192
4 | Talaguppa Village, Ramanagara 72 108 696 | 876

Total 216 252 | 1084 |1564

* (G+3) 13 Blocks, (G+1) 3 Blocks

Out of the above, in 1% Phase, 1,025 flats have been allotted through lottery system
during August 2011 and 539 flats are yet to be allotted.

As per the Tender conditions the construction agency had to complete the project and hand
over the same by May 2013. The agency has not completed a single project as on dated
14.10.2015. Decision to terminate the contract has been taken and notice has been issued.

Out of uncompleted balance works Singanayakanahalli 192 flats, talaguppa 264
(Bhagya 12 and Yashassu 252) flats and Kodathi place 304 (Bhagya 48 and Yashassu

256) flats work order has been issued to M/s. KSHC (Karnataka State Habitat Centre)
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as per KTPP Act. M/s. KSHC has completed the balance works in Singanayakanahalli
of construction of 192 flats (Bhagya 48, Sampad 60 and Yeshassu 84 Total 192). As per
70" Board Decision dated: 25.07.2016 as of now 175 flats have been allotted to the
allottee and lease cum sale deed has been issued.

The completion of balance works in Kodati place (Bhagya 48 and Yeshassu 256 Total
304) is under progress & will be completed before August-2018.

The completion of balance works in Talaguppa place (Bhagya 12 and Yeshassu 252
Total 264) is under progress & will be completed before December-2018.

5. HOUSING SCHEMES

The State Government has planned to make Karnataka a “Hutless State”. With the
intention the State Government has conducted a survey of the hut dwellers of the
State (Karnataka) and Government has a target of eradicating the huts in the state in
five years.

The present Government has targeted to build 15 lakh houses in 5 years. Over the last
four financial years, a total number of 11.84 lakhs houses have been built.

A. BASAVA HOUSING SCHEME:

This is a scheme in which making provision of housing facilities to economically
and socially backward houseless sponsored by State Government for rural
houseless poor. Rs.32,000/- has fixed as annual income of the beneficiary under
this scheme. The beneficiaries are selected by Gram Panchayats through Gram
Sabhas from the list of houseless and siteless prepared by the Gram Panchayats.
The financial assistance under this scheme is Rs. 1,20,000/-. From 2015-16,
Rs. 1,50,000/ - is the unit cost under all schemes, in which Rs. 1,20,000/ - is government
subsidy and the balance of Rs. 30,000/- is beneficiary’s contribution. (Rs. 30,000/-
for SC & ST beneficiaries, the government will pay). The Government has reserved
10% for Minority and balance 90% of the target for general/other categories.

The beneficiary eligibility criteria are as follows:

. The beneficiary should be a permanent resident of the same village and
enlisted in the list of hut dwellers.

J The beneficiary’s income should fall below the poverty line. (the present
BPL limit is Rs. 32,000/- per annum)

o Sale deed/Hakku Patra/Gift deed/Khatha patra should be in the name of
women beneficiary.

. The beneficiary should not have availed housing facilities under any other
scheme or department.

During the year 2017-18, the Government has fixed a target of 1,70,000 houses
under Basava Housing Scheme, in which 1,27,975 houses have been constructed.
The details as under:
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Since 2010-11 to 2017-18, 16,25,735 target has been given under Basava
Housing Scheme, the Corporation as against this target, 14,11,582 beneficiaries has
been selected and 9,13,020 houses have been completed. The details are given below;

Series Target (?fellf::eofli‘- C(;In(;ﬁl;t:d pgor;:s U;Il(s)t:;‘izd ﬁg;g}s{
ciaries Houses

2017-18 394289 221447 27969 101630 88349 2524
2016-17 226500 202199 76905 61599 11474 2789
2015-16 197206 197206 138696 29218 1990 3006
2013-14 108722 108722 88781 8451 269 1730
2013-14 51079 51079 37686 6330 430 800
additional
2010-11 647939 647939 569875 61661 6991 9373
Total 1625735 | 1428592 939912 268889 109503 20222

B. PRADHAN MANTRI AWAAS YOJANE (RURAL):

Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana (Rural), is a flagship scheme of the Ministry of
Rural Development, from 2016-17 the Indira Awaas Yojana has been renamed as
Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana and is implemented. The Central Government as
per Socio-Economic Caste Senses data (SECC-2011) 6,38,757 beneficiaries need to
be provided houses and as per this data the eligible beneficiaries needs to be selected.
The SECC data has been verified from the grama panchayaths and as per this
there are 3,67,068 eligible and 2,71,689 ineligible beneficiaries are identified.

The scheme is designed to enable BPL households identified by the community
through Grama Sabha. As per Scheme guidelines 60% of the funds would be
earmarked for SCs & STs, 15% for minorities and remaining 25% for other
categories. Over all 3% reserved for physically handicap.

The cost of the scheme shared in between Government of India and State
Government in the ratio of 60:40. As per Government of India unit cost for per
house is Rs. 1,20,000/-. Under State Government sponsored scheme subsidy
component for SC/ST subsidy component is Rs. 1,50,000/- fixed. To bring
uniformity in all housing schemes, the State Government is funding additional
amount of Rs. 30,000/ -.

Every year Government of India is allocating physical and financial target, during
2017-18 financial year following category wise physical target has been allocated.

SC ST MIN Others TOTAL
17,776 13,594 4,826 16,088 52,284

During the financial year 2017-18, a total of 85,000 houses target have been fixed,
upto end of the March-2017 64,690 houses have been completed.
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Since 2011-12 to 2017-18, the Central Government has issued a target of 6,44,023
houses under Indira Awaas Yojane / PMAY (Gramin), as against this target, the
Corporation has been selected 7,30,750 beneficiaries and 5,82,546 houses have
been completed. The details are given below;

Series %:‘111 osfeg;;ieofl;_ Completed pg;;gzs Unstarted | Not OK
-nment . . Houses Houses houses
Target ciaries Houses
2011-12 96760 150658 141727 8135 0 796
2011-12adnl| 31806 39510 36139 3062 0 309
2012-13 107210 121737 111029 9452 0 1256
2013-14 87816 93524 83851 8759 0 914
2014-15 94995 95986 84224 10812 0 950
2015-16 80087 90183 77318 11786 0 1079
2016-17 93065 90733 40454 28003 20748 1528
2017-18 52284 48419 7804 21214 18895 506
Total 644023 730750 582546 101223 39643 7338

To achieve physical and financial progress in time, the corporation has opened
Bank account for selected beneficiaries and the system of releasing funds to
beneficiaries” account directly through online is in practice. The expenditure of
Rs. 888.64 crore has been made during the year 2017-18.

C. VAJPAYEE URBAN HOUSING SCHEME:

The Government is implementing “Vajapayee Urban Housing Scheme” in order
to provide housing facility to the Urban EWS houseless (before 2010-11 it was
named as Urban Ashraya). Under the said scheme a target of 25,000 houses
was envisaged for the year 2017-18 and as against the said target 27,677 houses
are completed, the details are below:

Under the various Urban Housing schemes a total of 62,192 houses are
completed as on July 2018 pertaining to 2010-11 to 2017-18 series, details are below:

Vajapeyee Urban Housing Scheme (As on August 2018)

Beneficia-
Series Target ries Completed| Under |Unstarted | Not OK
Houses progress Houses houses
selected

2010-11 50000 64237 26068 8177 185 834
2012-13 100000 9999 3280 1341 466 216
2013-14 20000 16089 10237 1676 81 453
2013-14
Additional 9275 2669 1431 305 623 74
2015-16 29080 23913 11970 4358 2670 366
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Beneficia-
Series Target ries Completed| Under [Unstarted| Not OK
Houses progress Houses houses
selected

2016-17 40000 18879 6905 5221 6488 265
2017-18 25000 13889 2238 6009 5373 269
2017-18
Additional 25000 3268 63 1145 1828 29
Total 298355 152943 62192 28232 17714 2506

Integration of the Central Government Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojane (Urban)
with State Urban Housing Schemes :

The Central Government is implementing the Prime Minister Awass project in June
2015 to facilitate the city’s government. Under the scheme, there are 4 sub-units, which
can be funded to construct a house under any sub-unit for construction of houses.

1. Resource the land and rebuild the slums in the “In-situ” model
2. Credit Linked Subsidy Plan (EWS / LIG & MIG I & II).

3. Affordable Housing in Partnership (AHP)
4

Self-house construction under the beneficiary

Currently the campaign is being implemented in 271 urban local bodies. The
demand surveys have been completed in the state, with the demand for a total of
19.20 lakhs by the end of August 2018, the information has been uploaded to the
M.LS of the Central Government. The current Prime Minister’'s Awaas Yojane
project is being implemented with the state housing schemes such as the Vajpayee
Housing Scheme and the Dr. Ambedkar Housing Scheme, the Devaraju Urs
Special Housing Scheme, Municipal Labor housing schemes with the integration
of housing schemes.

Similarly, Rs. 2.70 lakhs for General Category (Rs 1.20 lakhs under the Vajpayee
Urban Housing Scheme and Rs 1.50 lakh under PMAY) and Rs. 50,000 for SC /
ST candidates Rs. 3.50 lakhs (Rs. 2.00 lakhs under the State Housing Department’s
housing schemes and Rs. 1.50 lakhs under PMAY) will be given subsidy.

Karnataka Slum Development Board, Karnataka Housing Board, Urban
Development Authorities, and Urban Local Companies have been identified as
implementation agencies for implementation of this scheme.

To build 3,34,949 houses so far, 968 projects worth Rs. 16,82,012.99 lakhs are
being implemented. Central Government share Rs. 5,02,423.50 lakhs, State
Government share Rs. 5,14,252.42 lakhs, beneficiaries share Rs. 5,73,388.83 lakhs
and NSRs Rs. 97,017.05 lakhs. By the end of August 2018, the central government
is Rs. 1,73,528.00 lakhs have been released. There were 40,528 homes completed
and 49,564 homes were in progress.
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D. DEVARAJ URS HOUSING SCHEME:

The Government is targeting the budget under the Special Housing Scheme for
the year 2014-15, providing accommodation for the following 14 specialist
houseless. The special housing scheme is being renamed as Devaraj Raj Housing

Scheme from 2016-17. There are 14 special category details.

. People living on footpath/living in public places
. Physically handicapped
. Leprosy cured

o HIV affected

. Transgender

. Sex workers

. Devadasis

. Widows

. Freed bonded labourers
. Scavengers

. Exploited

. People affected in communal riots & during strikes
. Nomadic Tribes
. Special occupation groups

The following committee has been constituted in each district to identify, select

and approve the eligible beneficiaries of the above special categories:

Deputy Commissioner Chairman

Chief Executive Officer Deputy Chairman
Housing Nodal officer, Zilla Panchayath Member

Project Director, DUDC, DC Office Member

Assistant Commissioner Member

Commissioner/Chief Officer of all Urban Local body = Member
Executive officer of Taluk panchayath Member

District level officer of the concerned department Member Secretary

During the year 2014-15 and 2017-18, under Devaraj Urs Housing Scheme, target

given by Housing Department and inclusion of target of other departments. Upto
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August-2018, 33,457 houses have been completed. The details are as follows:

Central |Selection| Com- Under Un- .
. Not | Subsidy to
Series Govt. |of Benefi-{ pleted |progress | started | Gy Y

.. each unit
Target ciaries | Houses | Houses | Houses houses (in Rs))
2014-15 17430 17430 11310 2457 3245 269 1.20

2015-16 12371 12371 7756 1979 2288 164 | 1.20/1.50
2016-17 22885 22885 13937 4960 3714 247 1 1.20/1.50
2017-18 69000 7598 454 2269 4773 29 | 1.20/1.50
Total 121686 60284 33457 11665 14020 709

During the financial year 2017-18, under Devaraj Urs Housing Scheme having
the target of completion of 15,000 houses including target given under previous
year. Upto the end of March-2018, 15,666 houses have been completed.

During the financial year 2018-19, under Devaraj Urs Housing Scheme having
the target of completion of 12,000 houses including target given under previous
year. Upto the end of August-2018, 2,888 houses have been completed.

E. Dr. B.R. AMBEDKAR NIVAS SCHEME

The Government is implementing the Dr. B.R. Ambedkar Nivas Scheme from
2015-16 series to provide housing facilities for economically and socially backward
SC and ST beneficiaries of Urban and Rural areas. Under the scheme, the
applicant must comply with all the following qualifications to obtain residential

facility.

. Applicants must be mandatory Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes.

. Applicants must also be mandatory (married or single-woman homeowner),
even if former soldiers, widows, disabled persons and senior citizens are
also eligible.

. The applicant’s family is financially and socially backward and the annual

income is less than Rs. 32000/- in rural areas and Rs. 87600/ - in the urban area.

Under this scheme the budget speech of 2017-18 has been announced to provide
houses for all Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes in need of non-resident
persons. Rs. 1,75,000/- per family subsidy rural area and Rs. 2,00,000/- in the
urban area.

Dr. BR Ambedkar Niwas Scheme (Rural) Progress Report :

Selection| Com- Under Un- Not OK

Series | Target |of .Be1.1efi- pleted |progress | started | , = . Selzlzlslli};itf
ciaries | Houses | Houses | Houses (in Rs))
2015-16 | 100000 98666 58102 20578 18226 1461 1.50
2016-17 | 160000 | 142352 66671 40273 33068 2039 1.50
2017-18 | *156000 | 147634 6812 59889 76986 667 1.75

Total 416000 | 388652 | 131585 | 120740 | 128280 4167
* Providing homes on demand in 2017-18
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Dr. BR Ambedkar Niwas Scheme (Urban) Progress Report :

lection m- n- .
Series | Target (?fe;;:;:fi- p(i:ted plrj(:gllfeels:s stgrted 1;112:1231: Sel;lc)}s‘li);it:

ciaries | Houses | Houses | Houses (in Rs.)
2015-16 50000 20077 9746 3892 6032 150 1.50
2016-17 90000 29685 11213 8287 9585 186 1.50
2017-18 | *156000 7541 319 3454 3563 31 2.00
Total 140000 57303 21278 15633 19180 367

* Providing homes on demand in 2017-18

The project aims to complete 1,05,000 homes during the 2017-18 financial year,
with 1,12,159 houses completed by March 2018, including houses provided under
the previous ranks.

The project aims to complete 1,12,000 homes during the 2018-19 financial year
and 26918 homes are completed by the end of August-2018, including homes
provided under the previous ranks.

F. RURAL ASHRAYA AND VAJPAYEE URBAN SITE SCHEMES:

The Government of Karnataka is implementing two main sites Schemes for providing
to site-less beneficiaries” through-out the state viz., Rural Ashraya House Sites
Scheme and Vajapayee Urban House Site Scheme. Under all the Housing
Schemes, one of the pre-condition for selection of beneficiaries is the beneficiary
should have a housing site. The Corporation is not able to achieve housing
target in the urban areas due to non-availability of beneficiaries having sites. A
large number of deserving families do not get the benefit of housing scheme as
they do not have sites both in rural and urban areas. So it is important to either
identify suitable Government land or purchase suitable private land to provide
housing sites for the site-less eligible beneficiaries. For the financial year
2015-16, the Government has given target of 20000 sites for distribution to the
site less beneficiaries under Rural and Urban Site Scheme. The corporation has
already distributed 10002 sites. During the financial year 2016-17, the
government has given target of 20000 sites. Upto the end of August-2016, 7185
sites have been distributed. During the financial year 2017-18, the government
has given target of 10000 sites for distribution to the site less beneficiaries. The
Corporation has already distributed 19228 sites under Urban and Rural site
scheme. The details are as follows:

S1.No. Financial Year Target |Achievement| Percentage
1 2015-16 20000 10002 50.01
2 2016-17 20000 13453 35.93
3 2017-18 10000 19228 192.28
Total 50000 42683 85.37
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In order to facilitate to purchase land in rural and urban areas, the government
has revised its land purchase rates. The details of the revised land purchase rates

fixed by the Government for purchase of land is as under.

SL Area Guidelines Maximum
No. Values Rates
1 Rural Area Guidelines Rs.9.00 Lakhs
Value 4 times
2 Town Panchayath Rs.12.00 Lakhs
Guideli
3 Town Municipal Corporation Hdennes Rs.15.00 Lakhs
Value 3
4 CMC times Rs.22.50 Lakhs
5 City Corporation Rs.37.50 Lakhs
6 BBMP Limits Rs.75.00 Lakhs

G. CHIEF MINISTER’S 1 LAKH MULTI-STOREY BANGALORE HOUSING
PROJECT:-

In the Para 232 of Annual Budget speech 2017-18, Government has announced
plans to construct 1lakh Affordable houses at Bengaluru for Economically Weaker
Sections. As per Government Order number DOH 57 HAH 2017 Bengaluru dated
23.10.2017, the action taken will be as follows:

BENEFICIARIES’ SELECTION:

Under the “Chief Minister’s 1 lakh Multi-Storey Bangalore housing project” allow
the beneficiaries’ to apply the online applications. In contrast, 48,614 applications
are accepted as follows.

Eligible applicants Zonal wise Eligible applicants
S.C General | Minor- | Total B’lore | B'lore B’lore | Total
ities West | North South
1257 | 24600 9371 48614 4130 | 21570 13461 | 48614
Special Category Ineligible applicants

Category Type Count Adhar duplicate 124
Ex Service Man 1 Invalid income certificate 84
Widow 1236 - =
Widower 75 Phone duplicate 28
Senior Citizen 412 Name mismatch 487
Physically handicapped 634 Invalid residential certificate| 115
Applicant with handicapped kid |92 Non-residents of Bangalore |163
Mytri 17 Total 1001
Manaswini 35
Others 46102
Total 48614
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Religion wise Gender wise

Hindu 38518 Male 24259
Muslim 9232 Female 24333
Christian 836 Transgender 22
Jain 20 Total 48614
Buddha 3
Sikh 5
Total 48614

SANCTIONED OF GOVERNMENT LAND:

As per the Government order number RD 229 LGB 2017 dated 15.11.2017 and
RD 19 LGB 2018 dated 19.03.2018, the government sectioned 431-11 acres and
582-39 acres of land respectively, for the implementation of the scheme. Like this
government sanctioned the 1014-10 acres of land in 138 places at two phases.

In these sanctioned lands, officers of RGRHCL finished the survey work at 49
survey numbers with Village Accountants and Revenue Inspectors. And contour
survey work in progress for the related survey numbers.

55-21 acres of land handed over by the RGRHCL from this sanctioned land.

SIL Talukh

No.

1 | Bangalore South Begur Doddanagamangla | 11 6.21 |30.12.2018

2 | Bangalore South Uttarahalli | Arehalli 28 17.00 |30.12.2018

3 | Anekal Sarjapura Yamare 88 5.00 ]30.12.2018

4 Bangalore North Jaala Chikkajaala 76/P4| 1.00 30.12.2018
(Apara/Yalahanka)

5 | Bangalore North Jaala Chikkajaala 76/P7| 4.00 |30.12.2018
(Apara/Yalahanka)

6 | Bangalore North Jaala Kuduregere 59 2.00 ]30.12.2018
(Apara/Yalahanka)

7 | Bangalore East Bidarahalli | Bidarahalli 193 |20 03.02.2018

Total 55.21

And the letter is handled with the concerned Tahsildar for changes of khatha
into the name of the RGRHCL. For relating to this matter Deputy Commissioner
of Bengaluru Urban district directed to the concerned Tahsildar for changes of
Khatha and hanede over of the lands.
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H. OTHER DEPARTMENT WORKS

A. GOVERNMENT PRIMARY SCHOOL TEACHERS QUARTERS-
GURUBHAVAN

The Corporation was entrusted with task of construction of 213 Blocks (each
block consisting of 8 house) in Phase-I to Phase-5 from 2007-2008 to
2011-2012 at the total cost of Rs 4925.42 Lakhs by the Department of Public
Instruction to provide Houses for the Primary School Teachers working
in different Rural Backward areas in Karnataka. The Corporation had
prepared Type Designs along with the Estimates based on the soil
conditions and got the administrative approval from the Education
Department for construction of Gurubhavans in Raichur, Belgavi, Gadag,
Haveri, Uttar Kannada, Kolar, Shimoga, Chickmagalur, Mandya, Mysore,
Bellary, Koppal, Bagalkot, Bijapur, Chitradurga, Davanagere, Chikkaballapur,
Tumkur and Chamarajanagar, Gulbarga, Bidar and Bengaluru (Rural)
districts in Phase-I to Phase-V at an unit cost ranging from Rs. 4.17 lakhs to
unit cost of Rs 5.59 lakhs.

The construction works of Gurubhavans were entrusted to the Nirmithi
Kendras of concerned districts. The Department of Public Instruction has
released the entire amount. The detail progress of the work is as follows

Sl. | Name of the | Name of the | Phase/ | Number Under Handed
No. | Department Works year of Units | progress over

1. 2007-08 77 18 59

2 | Department | Teachers” | 2008-09 23 04 19

3 | ofPublic Quarters 75559770 29 09 20

Instruction (Gurubhavans)
4 2010-11 26 05 21
5 2011-12 15 04 11
Total 170 40 130

Out of 210 units 40 have been returned to Department due to non
availability of sites. The 40 works which under progress action has been
taken to complete before Dec-18 & hand-over to the department.

B. IMPLEMENTATION OF IHSDP PROJECT

The Corporation has been entrusted with the task of construction of 5536
houses in Phase-I & II under IHSDP in various cities and towns in
Ramanagar, Belagavi, Gadag, Koppal, Mysore, Chikkaballapur, Gulbarga,
Bengaluru (Rural), Kolar, Chikkamangaluru & Mandya districts, funded
by KSDB (Karnataka Slum Development Board), Bengaluru as per the
Government order No. DOH 24 KSB 2007 dtd. 18.08.2008. The unit cost of
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each house is Rs. 1,35,000. RGRHCL is implementing these projects through
its network of Nirmithi Kendras and has entered into an agreement with
KSDB for the construction of 5,536 houses at the total project cost of
Rs. 7,453.35 Lakhs.

Out of 5,536 houses 5,467 houses have been completed and handed over to
Karnataka Slum Development Board. The balance of 69 houses are under progress
and action has been taken to complete the work before end of December 2018.

KSDB has also entrusted the infrastructure works in the IHSDP project to
the Corporation at the total project cost of Rs. 20.21 crores. The
infrastructure works includes drinking water supply, drainage, UGD, Roads,
community halls, bore-well, etc. These Infrastructure Projects are again
implemented through Nirmithi Kendras. The infrastructure works have
completed and handed over.

C. IMPLEMENTATION OF BSUP PROJECT

RGRHCL was entrusted BSUP Project by KSDB at the total project cost of
Rs. 1,388.0 Lakhs including infrastructure works at A.D. Halli, Byrasandra,
Nellurpuram, Desiya Nagar and Venkatala for slum dwellers of Bengaluru
Urban. In turn RGRHCL entrusted these works to KSHC and Bengaluru
Nirmithi Kendra Urban.

Under this scheme as on 659 houses have been completed along with
infrastructure and handed over to Karnataka Slum Development Board.
The balance of 15 houses are under progress and action has been taken to
complete the work before end of December 2018.

D. CONSTRUCTION OF MULTI-LEVEL SCHOOL COMPLEX
BUILDING (SARVA SIKHSANA ABHIYANA)

Sarva Shikshana Abhiyana, Karnataka, Office of Director of State Planning has
entrusted work of construction of a total 106 (stage 1 and 2) multi-level school
complex buildings with an average amount of Rs. 1,537.00 lakhs. RGRHCL
entrusted these works to KSHC and Bengaluru Nirmithi Kendra (Urban),
Bengaluru Nirmithi Kendra (Rural) and Cashutec Building center. For this work
the department has released Rs. 1,581.57 lakhs to the company as on date.

Out of these as on 86 multi-level school complex buildings have been
constructed and handed over to Education Department.

The balance of 05 buildings are under progress and action has been taken
to complete the work before end of March 2018.

E. CONSTRUCTION OF VETERINARY DISPENSARY BUILDING
(RIDF-13 & RIDEF-14)

Department of Animal Husbandry & Veterinary Services has entrusted
the construction of 114 Veterinary Dispensary Buildings in various
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Districts of Karnataka from 2007-08 to 2009-10 to RGRHCL, at the Total
Project cost of Rs. 1639.55 Lakhs. The Veterinary Department has released
entire total amount of Rs. 1639.55 Lakhs. RGRHCL is implementing this
project through Nirmithi Kendras.

Out of these as on 113 Veterinary Dispensary buildings have been
constructed and handed over to Education Department.

The balance of 1 building is under progress and action has been taken to
complete the work before end of November 2018.

F. CONSTRUCTION OF KKGBV HOSTEL BUILDING

Department of Public Instruction has entrusted the construction of 59 (G+1)
KKGBYV Hostels buildings to RGRHCL at the Total Project cost of Rs. 3,453.25
lakhs. The work is entrusted to the concerned District Nirmithi Kendras.

Out of these at 10 places due to non availability of site the construction of
Hostels buildings have been returned to Education Department.

The balance of 13 buildings are under progress and action has been taken
to complete the work before end of December 2018.

G. CONSTRUCTION OF BBMP WORKS OF RAJRAJEWSHARI NAGAR
ZONE

BBMP, Rajrajeshwari Nagar zone has entrusted with the task of
implementation of Housing and Infrastructure works under 22.75% SC/ST
Development Programme which includes the construction of Houses, School
Buildings, Anganawadi Kendras, Toilets and other development works and
infrastructure works coming under its Jurisdiction. The Total Cost of Project
is Rs. 1335.00 lakhs. In this regard, the Corporation has entered into an
agreement with BBMP, Rajrajewshari Nagar Zone. The work has entrusted
to Karnataka State Habitat Centre, Bengaluru Nimithi Kendra (Rural) and
Bengaluru Nirmithi Kendra (Urban). 345 houses were completed as against
476 houses and 131 houses were not started due to site problem. The
infrastructure works like, providing drainages, culverts, CC roads, School
Buildings, Anganawadi Kendras, Toilets were completed and handed over
to BBMP. Construction of Samudaya Bhavan at Siddharth Nagar is under
finishing, and action has been taken to complete the work before end of
December 2018.

H. IMPLEMENTATION OF ASAARE PROJECT

Department of Housing has entrusted the Construction of 14850 houses under
Aasare Scheme for flood victims in North Karnataka Districts of Bagalkote,
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Gadag, Dharward, Bijapur and Raichur at the total project cost of
Rs. 190.23 Crores to RGRHCL. In-turn RGRHCL has entrusted these houses
to Nirmithi Kendras. The detail progress of the work is as follows:

Number
Sl | Name of | Name of Phase/year | of Houses Under Handed over
No [the Dept. [the Works Progress
Started
1. Revenue | Assare 2009-10 13704 119 13585
Dep. Houses

1146 houses have not been taken-up due to site problem.

The 119 houses which are under progress will be completed before end of
December 2018.

SL | Name of the | Name of the T"taldESti' Yearin | .. ...
No mated cost (which the Remarks
Department Works (Rs.InLakhs)| work Progress
started
1 | KSRSAC Construction of 450.00 | 2012-13 |Compl- |Handed
Corporate office at eted over to
GKVK Campus Department
2 | ISEC Construction of 113.47 | 2013-14 [Compl- |Handed
Facility Centre & eted over to
Arch/Gate Department
3 | KBITS Construction of 864.29 | 2011-12 |Compl- |Handed
Corporate office at eted over to
Electronic City Department
4 | Endowment |Multipurpose hall at 337.45 | 2011.12 |Compl- |Handed
department |Subhramanya eted over to
Temple premises Department

6. BASIC INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITY TO NEW ASHRAYA LAYOUT

The Corporation has formed Ashraya layouts both in Urban and Rural areas. In some
of the Layout formed has not been occupied by the beneficiaries, due to lack of
infrastructure facilities. The budgetary provision was not made earlier, taking note of
this, The Hon’ble Chief Minister has announced in the budget 2013-14 that “the
Government has proposed to provide required funds for basic infrastructure in the
new developing layout”.

Subsequently, Government of Karnataka earmarked Rs. 25 crores for the year 2013-14,
Rs. 1.00 crore for the year 2014-15 and Rs. 25 crores for the year 2015-16 for providing
basic infrastructure facilities to the new developing Layout. As on date the corporation

has received Rs. 51 crores of grants. But, no grants is granted in 2016-17 and 2017-18.
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The Corporation has received proposal from 26 places from the districts and approval

is accored for Rs. 45.42 crores, out of which 5 places work is completed. The balance

21 places the work is under progress the details are as follows;

Infrastructure Work (In Lakhs)

No. of Total Appro- | Released
SL District Place Hou- | Acres/ | vedInfra. | Amount Remarks
No. ses | guntas cost (In
of Land Lakhs)
1  |Belgum Raibag 150 8 190.33 152.25| Under Progress
2 |Gulbarga | GreenCity & 1374 38 1199.09 1079.16 | Under Progress
Kesartagi
3 |Gulbarga | S.M.Krishna colony 196 6 213.3 63.99( Under Progress
4  |Bagalkot Mudhol 350 10 204.39 176.45| Under Progress
5 |Bagalkot Rabkavi Banhatti 750 27 379.67 341.70| Under Progress
6  |Shimoga Bommanakatte 220 8 195.8 58.74| Under Progress
7  |Gadag Naragund 102 3.5 157.54 141.78| Completed
8 |Bagalkot Ballur 215 8.2 9.05 9.05| Completed
9 |Mysore H.D.Kote 116 6.5 15.02 15.02| Completed
10 |Dharwad [ Rottigawad 135 4.32 7.18 7.18 | Completed
11 |Bagalkot Yadahalli 153 5 21.95 21.95| Completed
12 |Tumkur Sira Beedi 281 7.14 307.99 277.19| Under Progress
workers Layout
13 |Bangalore [ Byalakere 28 1 44.45 22.23| Under Progress
Urban
14 |Dakshina [ Idya 85 2.5 40.64 20.32| Under Progress
Kannada
15 |Raichur Maraldinni 59 2 30.03 15.015| Under Progress
16 |Raichur Paigambar Nagar 62.28 31.14| Under Progress
17 |Raichur Lingsugur (Mattur) 73 2 44.20 22.10{ Under Progress
18 |Raichur Gadratagi 22 1 20.22 10.11| Under Progress
19 |Raichur Bappur 69.53 34.765| Under Progress
20 [Raichur Sindhnur (Gunda) 22 1 21.04 10.52 Under Progress
21 [Raichur Sindhnur (Gunda) 46 2.00 58.75 29.375| Under Progress
22 |Raichur Lingsugur 26 1.00 18.59 9.295| Under Progress
(MatturS.No:13/4)
23 [Kolar Srinivaspur 25.24 675.55 270.22| Under Progress
24 [Hassan Arsikere (Banavara) 9.00 316.33 25.00{ Under Progress
25 |Davangere | Honnali, Nyamathi, 561 10.08 197.46 78.98| Under Progress
Shivanandappa
ashraya Badavane
26 |Davangere | Honnali Town 47 1.20 41.62 41.62| Under Progress
Panchayath
Total 4542 2965.15

Annual Report 2017-15 |}
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7. NEW PROCEDURES INTRODUCED IN IMPLEMENTATION OF HOUSING
SCHEMES:

The following new procedures which were adopted by the Corporation in the
imple mentation of housing schemes are continued in the present year under all the scheme:

. Review of progress based on automatic Global Information System (GIS):
Beneficiaries constructing houses are uploading online through GPS based mobile.
The technology is being installed to review of these houses through automatic
Global Information system.

. Selection of beneficiary through lottery system: Government vide its Circular
No. DOH 51 HAH 2013 dt. 05.08.2013 has brought a change in selection of
beneficiary i.e., “selection through Lottery”. The Local Bodies have to classify
the target given to them category-wise. In case the eligible beneficiaries are more
than the target, in such cases the beneficiaries should be selected in Gram Sabha
/ Ashraya Committees through lottery system. In order have transparency in
the selection process, the entire beneficiary selection process is video graphed.

. GPS verification of Vacant Site: After beneficiary selection by the LBs, the PDOs/
Engineers will do GPS verification of vacant site of the selected beneficiaries.
One of the eligibility criteria for the selection of beneficiary is that the beneficiary
should own a site. This process authenticates the said eligibility criteria of
selected beneficiaries. In case the vacant site is not available, the said beneficiary
will be deleted from the selection.

. Enclosure of Gram Sabha / Urban Ashraya Committee Resolution of the
selected beneficiaries: After GPS verification of vacant site, the eligible
beneficiaries details along with the Gram Sabha / Urban Ashraya Committee
Resolution copy should be uploaded in Corporation’s Website by the Executive
Officer of TP in respect of Rural and Chief officer/Commissioner in respect of
Urban, after verification of beneficiary list to the respective Resolutions. If found
correct, the same will be approved by EO of TP / Chief officer or Commissioner
through Digital Signature. If there is any diversion, the list will be sent back to
GP/ULB for correction.

. Online approval to beneficiaries list by CEOs of ZP and also by RGRHCL
only through DSC (Digital Signature Certificate): After the approval by EO of
TP / Chief officer or Commissioner the proposal will be sent to District
Administration for approval through online only. The District Administration
after verification will approve the list through its DSC and forward the same to
the RGRHCL for final approval through online. RGRHCL after receipt of the
proposal swill give its final approval to the list immediately. The said new system
reduces the time and cost incurred in traveling from district to Head Office.

. Intimation to all the Implementing Officers regarding approval of the list:
Once the approval has been given from RGRHCL, the SMS will be sent
automatically to all the Implementing officers i.e., DCs, CEOs of ZPs, EOs of TP,
COs/Commissioners, PDOs informing that the approval to beneficiaries list
submitted has been sanctioned.
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. Intimation to the selected beneficiaries: Once the approval has been given from
RGRHCL, along with the implementing officers, SMS will be sent automatically to
the beneficiaries informing them that they have been selected as beneficiaries
and collect the work order from the respective Local Bodies. Apart from the
approval, details of bank account opening, stage-wise fund release information,
reasons for non-release / rejection will also be intimated to the beneficiary. This
is a beneficiary-friendly mechanism wherein beneficiary need not go to
Implementing Officer often to know about the status of his application.

. Online printing of work order: As soon as the beneficiary list is approved by
RGRHCL, beneficiary-wise work order will be generated online and the same
can be taken print out by the Local Bodies and issued within 3 days of approval.

. GPS Enabled Progress report online updation: The PDOs / Engineers will
update the progress through GPS enabled mobile handset. The GPS photo capture
will update the progress. In case of GPS Enabled Progress report online updation,
the PDOs/Engineers will capture the stage-wise i.e.,, Foundation, Lintel, Roof
and Completion photos and update the same in the Corporation’s website. By
this both the GPS verification of progress and stage of house will be automatically
updated in the website.

The Corporation has delegated the GPS enabled progress report online updation
to PDOs in respect of rural area and ULB Engineers in respect of Urban areas.
The Corporation has given extensive training to the said officials in this regard.

. About Installing Customer Service Center: -

Residential and non-resident persons are being implemented by the Rajiv Gandhi
Housing Corporation in the rural and urban areas. The beneficiaries are selected
by the Gram Panchayat in accordance with the target set by the Government each
year and the beneficiaries are directly released on the Aadhaar number basis.

A well-established assistance from the corporation has been opened to help with
the implementation of Plan Implementation Grants and Technical Issues by the
Corporation. Separate personnel have been appointed to receive calls from the
district / taluk / villages to the corporation, to facilitate immediate compensation
for the corporation complaints. Each call to the corporation is recorded in the
corporation. The message is sent through the SMS about the complaint filed and
the SMS is sent through the SMS even after the complaint is resolved. This will
greatly help the state solve the problem.

8. “JTUST IN TIME” RELEASE OF FUNDS TO THE BENEFICIARIES ACCOUNT

Directors are very happy to inform you that the Corporation as a step forward to E-
Fund Transfer system, has introduced Online Transfer of Funds to the Beneficiaries
Account. At present, the Corporation is releasing amount directly to the Beneficiaries
Bank Account based on the progress report updated by the Local Bodies. For this, the
Corporation itself is opening beneficiary-wise bank accounts centrally and the account
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numbers of the beneficiaries is intimated to the Implementing officers. The main
advantages of the said fund transfer is sitting at the RGRHCL Office funds can be
transferred online to the thousands of selected Beneficiaries” Bank accounts at a time,
within hours. This ensures elimination of various intermediate stages in fund transfer
and consequent delay. It also ensures instant credit to respective beneficiaries.

9. RECOVERY OF ASHRAYA LOANS & LOAN WAIVER

The Government had introduced a new scheme viz., “Nanna Mane Nanna Swathu”
wherein the interest is waived off if the outstanding principal amount is repaid in
single installment and the said beneficiary is released from the mortgage deed. This
scheme is effective from the year 2011-12. Under this scheme, the Corporation has
recovered Rs. 7.38 crores in Rural area and Rs. 33.42 crores in Urban area and 20753
beneficiaries have been benefited.

During the year 2014-15 Budget the Hon’ble Chief Minister has announced the waiver
of Ashraya loan along with interest. This will benefit 10.84 lakh beneficiaries. As on
date 5.1169 lakh certificates have been issued to concerned local bodies.

10. ESTABLISHMENT OF KOUSHALYA SHAALE-FINISHING SCHOOL

Directors are happy to inform that your Corporation has established an unique Training
Institution in the State at Rajiv Gandhi Technology Centre (Corporate Office Building)
at Kengeri Satellite Town, Bengaluru. It is envisaged to impart technical/professional
training to the fresh Engineering Graduates, Diploma-holder, semi-skilled, un-skilled
and other unemployed people in both Rural and Urban Areas in the State. The School
commenced its training activities from June 2008. Koushalya Shaale is accommodated in
a sprawling building with necessary infrastructure and is being well equipped with the
state-of the art technology and faculty with hands on experience drawn from most
Reputed Institutions and Industry.

The School aims to enhance the skills of targeted people and develop them as per the
Industries requirement which enhances their career prospects. Within a short span of its
existence, Koushalya Shaale was able to train and develop a good number of Diploma-
holders and others. All of them got placements in the Campus interviews and were
picked up by the Industries. As on August-2018, training programmes were conducted
in various fields viz., masonry, electrification, plumbing and sanitation, painting, mason
supervisor, mason helper, etc., providing training to 6,591 people.

The School has also received proposals from various Government Departments viz.,
Social Welfare Department, Koushalya Ayoga, Department of Labour, Devraj Urs
Backward Class Development Corporation and RDPR for imparting training to the
unemployed youth throughout the State for the beneficiaries selected by them for which
the Departments concerned would provide the cost of training. The details of training
programmes held in Kaushalya Shaale are as follows:

. In 2008-09, 347 candidates have been trained by MS Ultra Tech Cement Ltd.,
Social Welfare Department, Devaraj Urs Backward Classes Welfare Department,
Labor Welfare Corporation, Bangalore University and Skill School.
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. The Karnataka Professional Training and Skill Development Corporation has
co-aided 468 candidates with the participation / cooperation of the Labor Welfare
Corporation during 2009-10.

. In 2010-11, Karnataka Professional Training and Skill Development Corporation,
394 candidates have been trained by MS Ultra Tech Cement Ltd., and the
partnership / cooperation of the Labor Welfare Corporation.

. In 2011-12, Karnataka Professional Training and Skill Development Corporation,
125 candidates are trained in partnership with MS Ultra Tech Cement Ltd., and
Labor Welfare Corporation.

. Vajpayee Urban Housing Scheme and Indira Awas program for the year 2012-
13 are trained for the total of 1172 candidates, including 767 candidates for urban
local bodies under 405 candidates and municipal corporation.

J Under the Urban Municipal Council 2013-14, there are 1530 candidates for urban
local bodies and 71 candidates under the Zilla Panchayat, Kolar / S.I.LR.D Training
Program.

. From 2013-14 to 2016-17, 625 candidates have been trained in partnership with
Grama Vidya Organization.

. 187 candidates have been trained under the Municipal Direction Program in the
year 2014-15.

. The 414 candidates are trained in partnership with the Gram Panchayat / Taluk
Panchayats under the Prime Minister Awaaz Yojane in 2016-17.

. In 2017-18, the Directorate of Internal Affairs has been trained in 159 candidates
in Karwar, Bellary and Ramanagar.

. In the 2017-18, 99 candidates are trained in the Painting, Plumbing and Trainer
Training Program.

A total of 6591 candidates have been trained by the above training programs.

. Mason Assistant Grade 2, 2. Mason Supervisor 3. Painter 4. Trainers Training
Program (Engineers) is a training program for 131 candidates in 2017-18.

Considering the enthusiastic response received from various Departments and
Organizations, your Corporation is getting itself prepared to draw up plans to tap the
opportunity thrown open to it and also willing to discharge its social responsibility to
pay back to the Society by imparting required skills to the maximum number of people
particularly from the Rural Areas in the State. In order to spread its wings and
contribute its mite to the cause of developing the skill of the educated / semi qualified
and to improve their employable skills in all regions of the State, Kaushalya Shaale
proposed to have a tie up with all Nirmithi Kendras and Engineering colleges to evenly
distribute the trained manpower in all districts. Thus, creating a win-win situation for
the trained personnel and industry in the local areas.
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11. USAGE OF FAST TRACK TECHNOLOGY IN CONSTRUCTION OF HOUSES

Directors are happy to inform you that the Corporation is using new building
technologies such as fast track technology in EWS and LIG housing schemes. The
Corporation is successful in implementing fast track technology under Vajpayee Urban
Housing scheme, Basava Housing Scheme and Affordable Housing Scheme.

Using “Fast Track Technology”, the Corporation has constructed 65 houses under
Basava Housing Scheme in T. Bekuppe GP, Ramanagar Taluk, Ramanagar district
and 153 houses under Vajpayee Urban Housing scheme in Rajanukunte, Bengaluru
North Taluk, Bengaluru Rural district so far and 684 flats (G+2 model) are being
constructed under “Nanna Mane” (Affordable Housing Scheme) at Singanayakanahlli-
192, Kodathi-228 and Talguppa-264 places for low income category beneficiaries.

12. FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Rs. in Crores

As at the end of As at the end of
current reporting previous reporting
period (31/03/2018) period (31/03/2017)
Total Revenue 17.50 54.05
Total Expenses 19.10 21.50
Profit or Loss before Exceptional and
Extraordinary items and Tax -1.60 32.54
Less: Exceptional Items - -
Less: Extraordinary Items - -
Profit or Loss Before Tax -1.60 32.54
Less: Current Tax - 6.86
Less: Deferred Tax - -
Profit or Loss After Tax -1.60 25.69
Less: Transfer to Reserves -22.30 47.99
Balance Transferred to Balance Sheet 23.90 -22.30

13. DIVIDEND:
No Dividend was declared for the current financial year.

14. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND
PROTECTION FUND:

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there
was no dividend declared and paid last year.
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15. REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE PROSPECTS:

The Corporation has consistently achived the housing targets for the last two

consecutive years and is hopeful that it will achieve the target in the future.

16. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
occurred between the end of the financial year to which this financial statements relate

on the date of this report

17. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

A statement of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo pursuant to section 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed

hereto forming part of the report.

18. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of risk

threatening the Company’s existence are very minimal.
19. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
Since the Corporation is under loss the Corporate Social Responsibility does not apply.

20. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH
RELATED PARTIES:

There were no contract or arrangements made with related parties as defined under

Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

21. EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR
ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND THE
PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS:

The adverse remarks of the auditor’s have been answered in the addendum in detail

to the director’s report.
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22. COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT
OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES:

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and

Remuneration Committee are not applicable to the Company.
23. ANNUAL RETURN:

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule
12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in

Annexure A and is attached to this Report.

24. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER
REVIEW:

The Company has conducted Four Board meetings dated 01/06/2017, 09/11/2017,
29/12/2017 and 02/03/2018 during the financial year under review.

25. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the

Board hereby submits its responsibility Statement:

(@) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material

departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the

financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud

and other irregularities;
(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the Company being unlisted, sub clause (e) of section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 pertaining to laying down internal financial controls is not applicable

to the Company; and

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and

operating effectively.
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26. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company
during the year under review.

27. DEPOSITS:

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under
review.

28. DIRECTORS

As on 31.03.2018, Chairman & Directors of RGRHCL is as follows;

1. Sri. M.Krishnappa - Chairman
2. Sri. Kapil Mohan, IAS

Principal Secretary to Government, Housing Department - Director
3. Sri. B. S. Shekharappa, IAS

Secretary to Chief Minister, Govt.of Karnataka - ,,

4. Dr Ekroop Kaur, IAS
Secretary to Government, Finance Dept. - P

5.  Sri. G. M. Tippeswamy

Non Official Director - ”
6. Sri. G. K. Jayaram

Non Official Director - ”
7. Sri. Madhukar Jadhav

Non Official Director - ”
8. Sri. Prakash B. P.

Non Official Director - ”
9. Sri. Bairegowda

Non Official Director - ”
10. Sri. Mallikarjuna

Non Official Director - ”
11. Sri. Gangarangaiah

Non Official Director - ”
12. Sri. V. Anbukkumar, IAS

Managing Director, RGRHCL - ’”

During 2017-18 incoming Directors;

1. Sri.Kapil Mohan, IAS
Principal Secretary to Government, Housing Department

. 1z
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2. Dr Ekroop Kaur, IAS
Secretary to Government, Finance Dept.

3. Sri. V Anbukkumar, IAS
Managing Director, RGRHCL

During 2017-18 outgoing Directors;

1. Sri Munish Moudgil, IAS
Managing Director, RGRHCL.

2. Sri Rajeev Chavla, IAS
Housing Department.

3. Sri. Ritesh Kumar Singh, IAS
Finance Department.

As on 30.08.2018 Chairman, Directors of RGRHCL as follows;

1. Sri U T Khadhar
Hon'ble Minister for Housing - Chairman

2. Dr. J Ravishankar, IAS
Secretary to Government, Housing Department. - Director

3. Dr. Ekroop Kaur, IAS
Secretary to Government, Finance Dept. - 'y

4. Sri. V Anbukkumar, IAS
Managing Director, RGRHCL

Company is not mandatorily required to appoint any whole time Key Management
Personnel (KMP), However Mr. V. ANBUKKUMAR, is appointed as managing director
of the compnay as Key Management Personnel (KMP).

29. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

The Corporation being a Government undertaking has only nominee directors who
are nominated by the Government of Karnataka. The loans borrowed by the company
are on behalf of the Government of Karnataka, the borrowal by the state government
was due to budgetary deficit, the repayment is also by the government. Provisions of
Section 149 for appointment of Independent Directors do not apply to the company.

30. ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no

reportable material weakness in the design or operation were observed.
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31. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India appointed M/s. ASHOK KUMAR,
PRABHASHANKAR & Co., Chartered Accountants, Bangalore as Statutory Auditors
of the Company for the year 2017-18.

32. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING
VIGIL MECHANISM :

The Corporation being a Government undertaking has only nominee directors who
are nominated by the Government of Karnataka. The loans borrowed by the company
are on behalf of the Government of Karnataka, the borrowal by the state government

was due to budgetary deficit, the repayment is also by the government. Provisions of
the audit committee do not apply to the company.

33. SHARES:

During the year under review, the company has undertaken following transactions:

Increase in Buy Back of Sweat Bonus Employees Stock
Share Capital | Securities Equity Shares Option Plan
Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

34. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS, COURTS AND TRIBUNALS:

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

35. FORMATION OF INTERNAL WOMEN’S COMPLAINT COMMITTEE:

In accordance with the provisions of the Internal Complaint Committee (Prevention,
Prohibition and Elimination) Act, 2013 (14 of 2013) in order to prevent women’s sexual
harassment at workplace.

The following officers / employees are appointed as chairman and member of the

committee:

1. Mrs. Asha S - President.

2. Kumari Sumana Baliga - Legal Advisor (Advocate).
3. Mrs. Varija - Member.

4.  Mrs. Mahaboobi A. Badekanavar - Member.

5. Kumari Honnamma - Member.

6.  Mrs. Premalilla S. - Member Secretary.

Women Employees are committed to working safely in the company, and complaints
from the company’s women employees will be taken up timely.

L 124




Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007-18 .

36. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

Maintenance of cost records does not apply to the corporation.
37. KARNATAKA STATE E-GOVERNANCE AWARD 2016-17:

2016-17 for the implementation of the Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Regulatory GPS
Mobile Based Housing Monitoring System project in the e-Governance for providing
civilian friendly and e-governance projects at the state level in 2016-17, has won the
Civil Friendly e-Governance Award in Series of 2016-17.

38. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Directors would like to record their appreciation for the continuous support accorded
to the Company by the Government of Karnataka, Government of India, National
Housing Bank, Financial Institutions like HUDCO, Statutory Auditors, Comptroller
and Auditor General of India, Accountant General, Karnataka and the Company’s
Bankers for their active and valuable co-operation.

Directors wish to record the appreciation of the efforts of Deputy Commissioners of
the Districts and the Chief Executive Officers of Zilla Panchayats, who are the Executive
Directors of the Company for their Leadership in implementation of the housing
program.

Directors also wish to thank the Members of the State Legislature and in particular the
Members of the Estimate Committee of the State Legislature, the Subject Committee
on Housing and Urban Development, the Public Accounts Committee and also the
Parliamentary Committee on Urban Development, for their valuable suggestions,
guidance and words of encouragement. Directors also take this opportunity to express
their sincere appreciation of the services rendered at all levels.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dr. J. Ravishankar, IAS V. ANBUKKUMAR, IAS
DIRECTOR MANAGING DIRECTOR
RGRHCL RGRHCL

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 04-09-2018
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS” REPORT
ANNEXTURE ‘A’

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on financial year ended on 31.03.2018

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS :

i CIN U85310KA2000SGC026951
ii | Registration Date 20/04 /2000
iii | Name of the Company RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED
iv | Category/Sub-category of
the Company State Government Company
v Address of the Registered # CAUVERY BHAVAN, 9TH FLOOR, E & F BLOCK,
office & contact details K.G.ROAD, BENGALURU -560 009, KARNATAKA
vi | Whether listed company No

vii | Name, Address & contact
details of the Registrar & NIL
Transfer Agent, if any.

I PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated

SL [ Name & Description of main NIC Code of % to total
No| products/services the Product / turnover of

service the company
1 | Housing for Economically weaker section 74 100

III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

HOLDING/ % OF APPLICABLE
Sl.No | Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN | SUBSIDIARY/ | SHARES [ SECTION

ASSOCIATE HELD

1 Nil
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IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital break up as % to total Equity)
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Category
of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the
beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at

the end of the year

%
change
during
the year

Demat

Physical Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical Total

% of
Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF

b) Central Govt. or
State Govt.

2,99,993 2,99,993

2,99,993 | 2,99,993

c) Bodies Corporates

d) Bank/FI

e) Anyother

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

2,99,993 2,99,993

2,99,993 | 2,99,993

(2) Foreign

a) NRI-Individuals

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks/FI

e) Anyother...

Total Shareholding of
Promoter (A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

2,99,993 2,99,993

99.998

2,99,993 | 2,99,993

99.998

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/FI

c) Central govt.

d) State Govt.

Venture
Capital Fund

e)

Insurance
Companies

f)

g) FIIS

h) Foreign Venture

Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies corporate

i) Indian

ii) Overseas
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B/

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - - -
i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs. 1lakh - - - - - - - - - -
ii) Individuals
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in - - - - - - - - )
excess of
Rs. 1lakh
c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - - -
SUB TOTAL (B)(2): - - - - - - - - - -
Total Public Shareholding - - - - - - - - - -
(B)= (B))+(B)(2)
C. Shares held by Custodian - - - - - - - - )
for GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) - 2,99,993 2,99,993 [99.998 -1 299,993 | 2,99,993199.998 -l -
(i) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS
%
change
Sl. [Shareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the [in share
No. begining of the year end of the year holding
during
the year
No. of % of % of No. of| % of % of]
shares total shares shares| total | pledged
shares pledged shares encu-
of the | encumbered of the | -mbered|
company to total comp- | to total
shares -any shares|
1 Government of Karnataka 2,99,993| 99.998 Nil 2,99,993|99.998 Nil Nil
Total 2,99,993[ 99.998 Nil 2,99,993|99.998| Nil Nil
(iii) CHANGEIN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDINGS (SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)
SL Share holding at the beginning | Cumulative Share holding
No. of the Year during the year
No. of % of total No of % of total
Shares sharesof the shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise increase/ decrease Nil Nil Nil Nil
in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/ decrease
(e.g. allotment/ transfer
/bonus/sweat equity etc)
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
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(iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders
of GDRs & ADRs)
SIL Share holding at the end | Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the Year during the year
% of total No of % of total
For Each of the Top 10 No. of shares of the shares shares of
Shareholders Shares company the
company
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
Date wise increase/decrease
in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase/
decrease (e.g. allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc) Nil Nil Nil Nil
At the end of the year
(or on the date of separation,
if separated during the year) Nil Nil Nil Nil
(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP
SL. Share holding at the end Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the Year during the year
% of total No of % of total
For Each of the Directors No. of shares of the shares shares of
& KMP Shares company the
company
At the beginning of the year 07 01 Nil Nil
Date wise increase/decrease
in Promoters Share holding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase/ decrease
(e.g. allotment/ transfer/
bonus/sweat equity etc) Nil Nil Nil Nil
At the end of the year 07 01 Nil Nil
Note: The Corporation is being the Government undertaking the directors appointed are government

nominees and one share is allotted based on the position held in the government.
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(vi) INDEBTEDNESS :

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Rs. in Lakhs
Secured Loans | Unsecured Deposits Total

excluding deposits| Loans Indebtedness
Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount - 125574.85 - 125574.85
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -
iif) Interest accrued but not due - 748.66 - 748.66
Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year - - - -
Additions - 12.55 - 14.57
Reduction - 18698.28 - 20207.40
Net Change - - - -
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year - - -
i) Principal Amount - 106876.56 - 125574.85
ii) Interest due but not paid - 748.66 898.31
iif) Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+ii+iii) - 89250.64 - 106732.23

Note: The Interest is payment is made in the month of April. Hence, it is shown as due not paid
at the end of the year.

A Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager :

Sl. Particul R i Name of the Total
.| tartcuiars of Remuneration Managing Director Amount

1 Gross salary MUNISH MOUDGIL 8,57,071/-

V. ANUBUKKUMAR 11,42,192/-

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income Tax 1961. - -

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the
Income tax Act, 1961 - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - -

Stock option - -

Sweat Equity - -

Commission - -
as % of profit - -
others (specify) - -

5 Others, please specify - -
Total (A) - 19,99,263/-
Ceiling as per the Act - -
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B Remuneration to other directors : Nil

Sl Particul (R . Name of the Total
No. articulars of Remuneration Directors Amount

1 Independent Directors - - - -

(a) Fee for attending board committee meetings - - -

(b) Commission - - - -

(c) Others, please specify - - - -
Total (1) - - - -

2 Other Non Executive Directors - - - -

a) Fee for attending board committee meetings - - - -
g g
(Annexure enclosed)

(b) Commission - - - -

(c) Others, please specify. - - - -
Total (2) - - - -
Total (B)=(1+2) - - - -

Total Managerial Remuneration - - - -

Overall Ceiling as per the Act. - - - -

C  Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/MANAGER/WTD :

Nil
SL ) ) )
No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
1 Company |
CEO Secretary CFO Tota
Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section
17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. - - - -

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 - - - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)
of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - - - -

2 [ Stock Option - - - -

Sweat Equity - - - -

Commission - - - -
as % of profit - - - -
others, specify - - - -

5 Others, please specify - - - -
Total - - - -
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VII PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES : Nil

Type Section of |Brief Details of Penalty/ | Authority Appeal
the Comp- |Description | Punishment/ (RD/NCLT/ made if
-anies Act Compounding Court) any (give
fees imposed details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty None None None None None
Punishment None None None None None
Compounding | None None None None None
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty None None None None None
Punishment None None None None None
Compounding | None None None None None
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty None None None None None
Punishment None None None None None
Compounding | None None None None None
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ANNEXURE

B. Remuneration other Direcotrs

1 Sri Kapil Mohan, IAS 1500
2 Dr Ekroop Kaur, IAS 1000
3 Sri. Shekharappa B.S. 500
4 Sri. Byregowda 12000
5 Sri. Mallikarjuna 12000
6 Sri. MadhukarJadhav 3000
7 Sri. Gangarangaiah 12000
8 Sri.Prakash B.P. 12000
9 Sri. G.K.Jayaram 12000
10 Sri. Tippeswamy 12000

Total 78000

ANNEXURE ‘B’

Information under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Directors” Report for period from 01.04.2016
to 31.03.2017:

A. Employed throughout the year and were in receipt of remuneration which in the
aggregate was not less than Rs. 24 lakhs per annum.

-Nil -

B. Names of the employees employed for part of the year and who were in receipt
of remuneration, which in the aggregate was not less than Rs. 2,00,000/- per
month.

-Nil -
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ANNEXURE ‘C’

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013) and
Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

a. Measures taken

The Housing programme is being
implemented by using, as far as possible,
non-energy consuming building materials
like Concrete blocks, RCC Door frames,
Fly-ash blocks.

b. Additional investments and proposals,
if any, being implemented for reduction
of consumption of energy

Not applicable.

c. Impact of the measures at (a) and
(b) above for reduction of energy
consumption and consequent impact
on the production of goods.

Promotion of concrete blocks and fly ash
based building products and technologies
have resulted in reduction in the usage of
high-energy intensive burnt bricks and
consequently reduction in consumption of
wood as fuel.

d. Total energy consumption and energy
consumption per unit of production
as per form ‘A’ of the Annexure in
respect of Industries specified in the
Schedule thereto.

Not applicable.

B.TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Efforts made in technology absorption

Through Nirmithi Kendras the Company
is promoting cost effective materials such as
Glass Fiber Reinforced plastic (GFRP) Door
shutters, Sanitary pans, Door frames-Coir
doors, Baison panel doors, Ferro cement
furniture, Concrete blocks, RCC Doors and
window frames, Jack Arch roofing, etc.
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FORM - “B”
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

1. Specific areas in which R&D  : At the initiation of the Government of India, a
carried out by the Company grant of Rs. 5 lakhs has been given to RV-TIFAC
Composite Design Center, Bengaluru to design

and fabricate basic moulds, tooling etc., for

2. Benefit derived as a result of the: production of coir / bamboo / glass fiber roofing
above efforts panels / sheets for usage in EWS housing. Already
moulds have been manufactured and prototypes

have been produced. Qualitative durable and
elegant bamboo composite doors made available
to beneficiaries at affordable cost.

3. FUTURE PLAN OF ACTION : Products developed on the above project has to
undergo extensive field level trials.

4. EXPENDITURE ON R&D

a. Capital - Rs. 5,00,000/- as grant (paid in 2000-01)
b. Recoveries - - does not arise -
Total - Rs. 5,00,000/ -

Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of total turnover - Not applicable
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B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION - ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

1. Efforts, in brief, made towards technology =~ Through Nirmithi Kendras the Company is
absorption, adaptation and innovation promoting cost effective materials such
as Glass Fiber Reinforced Plastic (GFRP)

Door shutters, Sanitary pans, Door

frames, Ferro cement furniture,
Concrete blocks, RCC doors and window
frames, Jack Arch roofing, Ferro cement
rafters, Furnicular Shells, Filler slab
roofing, Ferro cement drains, Coir based
composite doors, Bison panel shutters,
Under reamed pile foundation in BC
soils, Lime stabilization, Bamboo mat
roofing, etc. Demo houses have been
built in Nirmithi Kendras for
demonstration of these cost effective
technologies and materials and their
usage in housing programmes.

2. Benefit derived as a result of the above .Reduced cost

efforts. . Quality assurance
. Eco-friendly

.Reduction in construction time

Ol & W N -

. Use of alternative building materials

3.In case of imported technology (imported
during the last 5 years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year) following
information may be furnished.

a. Technology imported : Nil
b. Year of import : Not applicable
c. Has the technology been fully absorbed : Not applicable
d. If not fully absorbed, areas where this : Not applicable

has not taken place, reasons therefor

and future plan of action

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

a. Activities relating to export initiative to  : Nil

increase exports, development of new
services and export plans

b. Total Foreign Exchange earned and used
Foreign exchange earned : Nil

Foreign exchange used : Nil
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ADDENDUM TO DIRECTORS REPORT

Compliances to the Statutory Auditors Qualifications 2017-18

S1.No.

Statutory Auditors Qualifications

Replies

1.

The company has been allotted to
undertake a specific construction
project by name ‘Nanna Mane
Project’”. The company has not
followed Accounting Standard - 7 on
accounting of  Construction
Contracts, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. This
has an effect of recognition of revenue
on proportional completion method
and accounting of related costs,
recognition inventory and related
asset or liability on the contract. The
company is currently accounting a
specified percentage of the amount
disbursed for such projects as its
income for administering the contract
and the undisbursed portion is being
taken as part of government grants.
The effect of the same on the Income
& Expenditure Account and on the
Balance Sheet cannot be determined
as the company does not have the
required information and details to
determine the same. Further, the
Company has accounted Work in
Process as at 31st March 2017 at cost
only based on the valuation of actual
work done on the basis of joint
measurement of Project Monitoring
Consultant along with the contractor
and other expenditure pertaining to
the project.

The Company has taken up special project
called “Nanna Mane” to provide
Affordable Housing for Low Income Group
people like industrial workers, Auto
drivers, Hamals etc., in 4 places in and
around Bangalore. The Construction work
has been awarded to a contractor but as
on balance sheet date the contractor has
not completed even 30% of the work.
Further, the Company has terminated the
contractor due to non performance as per
the tender clause vide letter No.MD
RGRHCL 01 TECH 211 2010,
dtd.13.10.2015. For the balance work
required estimate has been made based on
2015-16 SR and as per required estimate
the total cost of the project comes to
Rs.93.3547crores.Out of which the
Company has assigned the work to the
extent of Rs.36.34crores to KSHC for
completing the part of work. So the
Company is unable to recognise the
revenue on proportional completion
method. Further, it may kindly be noted
that as per the tender agreement, the cost
of construction varies based on the material
cost like steel and cement. Therefore, the
Company is unable to recognise revenue as
on the balance sheet date. However, this
has been explained in the Accounting Policy
of the Company under revenue recognition.

The Company has not provided for
tax liability of Rs.3,62,29,709/- in
respect of Assessment Years 2001-02
to 2005-06 as per the Assessment
Orders received from the Income tax
Department and the company has not
filed any further appeal against these
orders till date. Further the company

As the Company is a ‘not for profit
organisation” and it is only a Nodal agency
created as SPV for implementation of all
the Government sponsored housing
schemes for economically and socially
weaker sections of the society, even the day
today administrative expenses like salaries,
printing & stationeries etc are provided by
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S1.No.

Statutory Auditors Qualifications

Replies

has also not provided the tax liability
of Rs.42,54,61,851/- as per the
assessment orders received by the
company for Assessment year 2013-
14 and 2014-15 for which assessment
has been completed. However the
company has filed an appeal before
the Commissioner Income Tax
(Appeals) on the order passed by the
ACIT for Assessment Year 2013-14
and 2014-15. Due to this, the Reserves
& Surplus of the company is
overstated by Rs.46,16,91,560/- and
the Current Liabilities is understated
by Rs.46,16,91,560/- (refer Note U-
IT para no 17 of notes to Accounts).

the Government through budgetary
provision.

In the year 2000-01 the Company has
treated the interest earned on program fund
as income of the Company. From the year
2001-02 to 2004-05, as per the Government
direction No. DOH 103 HAM 2001, dt.
12.04.2002, the interest earned on
programme funds has been treated as part
of the programme funds. But the Income
Tax Department has not agreed the same
and levied the tax on interest earned on
programme funds.

The Company filed an Appeal before the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals)
against the Assessment Orders passed by the
Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax
which was not considered favourably by the
Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

As per the income Tax decision, in the year
2005-06 the Company has changed its
accounting policy and recognized the
interest earned on programme funds as
income of the Company with retrospective
effect.

In the year 2008-09 the Company has again
changed the accounting policy as directed
by C & AG and considered the interest
earned on programme funds as part of the
program funds with retrospective effect.
These changes have been made in view of
the judgment passed by the Hon’ble High
Court of Karnataka in respect of Karnataka
Urban Infrastructure Development
Finance Corporation as the business of the
Company is similar to the business of
KUIDFC and both the organizations are
State Public Sector Undertakings.

Accordingly, revised Income Tax returns for
the Assessment Year 2007-08 and 2008-09
have been filed. The Company had submitted
a proposal before the Assistant Commissioner
of Income Tax, Circle 12(4) vide it letter No.
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SLNo.| Statutory Auditors Qualifications Replies

MD RGRHCL 36 FIN 05 2007 dtd. 09.07.2008
regarding refund of TDS/self assessment tax
paid by the Company but no decision has been
communicated by the IT Dept. Subsequently,
the Company has submitted a proposal before
the Commissioner’ of Income Tax (Appeals)
Bangalore for consideration of refund or the
tax and also for exemption of Income Tax on
interest income of the Company. The decision
of the Income Tax Department is awaited. The
Company also proposes to file a writ petition
before the Hon'ble High Court or Karnataka
for the refund of TDS/Self assessment Taxes
paid for the Assessment Year 2001-02 to
2008-09.

In view of the above, the Company has not
created any liability for payment of Income
Tax even though the Income Tax
Department has passed the Assessment
Orders for the year 2009-10 to 2011-12 and
not adjusted the tax liability against the
receivable.

3. | The company has not complied with | The company has collected Rs.10,934/- on
the provisions of Service Tax Act on | receipt of rent of Rs.72,896/- in respect of
earnings of Rent and provision in | Koramagala Guest House & same has been
respect of these obligations are not | paid to the Commercial Tax Authorities.

made in the books of account. The

Obligation in these matters are not Further, on receipt of rent Rs.5,79,000/- from

CDD towards rent for the Kengeri building

quantified. the Company has made Service Tax
provision of Rs.86,850/-. The details are
as follows:
Place Collected |S.T. S.T. provision

Rent collected |Paid made

Koramagala
Guest 72,896 | 10,934 | 10,934 -

Kengeri Building | 5,79,000 - 86,850

The Government of India has introduced
Goods & Service Tax (GST) applicable from
July-2018. Accordingly, the Company has
registered under GST. Due to introduction
of GST the online payment of service tax
was stopped during last year. So, the
payment was not made. However, in the
current financial year, the entire due has
been paid to the authorities.
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S1.No.

Statutory Auditors Qualifications

Replies

The Company treats its obligation in
respect of Guarantee Commission
Payable to the Government of
Karnataka towards the Guarantee
extended by the Karnataka State
Government on the Term Loans
contracted by the Company to fund
its schemes as operating expenditure.
Government of Karnataka by itself
provides for the Guarantee fee to the
Company, which is treated as Income
though it is a book adjustment.
Routing the funds provided by the
government of Karnataka to manage
scheme related expenditure through
the Profit and Loss Account is
distorting the Profit/Loss position of
the Company for the year, since the
receipt and expenditure on this
account is not of equal Value. During
the year the Income is overstated by
Rs.11,63,00,000/- and Expenditure is
overstated by Rs.12,10,88,028/. The
Policy to account for this should be
viewed from the fact that the
Company by its charter is a “Not for
profit organization’.

Since inception the company has
accounted the Guarantee Commission
payable to Government as financial
expenditure and accounted as expenditure
in Income & Expenditure Account and also
under current Liabilities shown as
Guarantee Commission payable to
Government.

RGRHCL is non profit organisations the
Company do not have any income source
to pay the Guarantee Commission to the
Government. Hence, the proposal was
submitted to Government for providing the
Guarantee Commission amount in the
Budget. Accordingly, the Government has
started making the budgetary provision for
the Guarantee Commission from 2014-15.
Based on the Budgetary allocation, the book
adjustment was passed 2014-15 to 2017-
18. Similarly for the year 2017-18 Rs.11.63
crores, budgetary allocation was made and
accordingly book adjustment order was
issued. Further, we would like to clarify
that every year the company submits the
proposal to Government for budgetary
provisions on actual basis i.e., for current
year requirement the proposal will be
submitted to next year. Hence, there is a
difference in the amount shown in both
sides of income & expenditure accounts.

As regard to distorting of profit and loss
account as observed by Statutory Auditor,
the Company opines that the Guarantee
Commission payable to Government is
booked as financial expenditure to avoid
future litigations from Income Tax
Department if any adverse decision
received against the appeal filed by the
Company with respect to interest earned
by the Company on Government Grants.
Hence, in the view of above there is no
distorting in Profit & Loss account.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT OF RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED,
BANGALORE, FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018.

The preparation of Financial Statements of Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation
Limited, Bangalore, for the year ended 31 March 2018 in accordance with the financial
reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of Companies Act, 2013 are responsible for
expressing opinion on the Financial Statements under Section 143 of the Act based on
independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report
dated 17.12.2018 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 04.09.2018

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the Financial Statements of Rajiv
Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited, Bangalore for the year ended 31 March 2018.
This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working
papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors
and company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

In view of the revisions made in the Independent Auditors Report by the statutory
auditors, as a result of my audit observation raised during supplementary audit, I have no
further comments to offer upon or supplement to the statutory auditor’s report under Section
143(6) (b) of Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditors General of India

Sdy/-
(E.P.NIVEDITA)
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT GENERAL
BANGALORE (GENERAL & SOCIAL SECTOR AUDIT)
Date: 27" December 2018 KARNATAKA, BANGALORE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS” REPORT

To the Members of
RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORPORATION LTD, BANGALORE
Report on the Financial Statements

This revised independent auditors” report has been issued in pursuance of the observations
made by the Principal Account General (G&SSA) Karnataka, Bengaluru under Section
143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013. The earlier Audit Report dated September 4, 2018

stands withdrawn.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RAJIV GANDHI RURAL
HOUSING CORPORATION LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2018, and the Statement of Income and Expenditure account and
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors” Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that policies
used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements on the financial statement.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our qualified audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1.  The Company has undertaken a Long Term construction contract by the name “Nanna
Mane Project”. The company is incurring construction expenses from the Grants received
for this project and to that extent is recognising revenue, which is a deviation from the
methodology prescribed under Accounting Standard 7, issued by ICAI to recognise
revenue on long term contracts.Correspondingly, to the value of expenditure incurred,
the company is creating inventory in the books of Accounts. From the records we are
not able to ascertain the carrying value of the Inventory * At Cost or realizable value’
whichever is less. For this reason,to the extent of Rs.615.19 lakhs the revenue from
operations is getting overstated and the reasonableness of the carrying value of the
inventory is not known. The impact of this transaction on the Profit and Loss account is
not ascertainable. At present the construction contract with the contractor is under dispute
and the company has made claims on the contractor. No provisions has been made for
possible losses that may occur due to delay in completion of the project.

2. The company has not provided the Income Tax liability of Rs.41,44,81,829/- as per
the assessment orders received by the company for Assessment year 2013-14 and
2014-15. However the company has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income
Tax (Appeals) on the order passed by the ACIT for Assessment Year 2013-14 and
2014-15. Due to this, the Reserves & Surplus of the Company is overstated by
Rs.41,44,81,829/- and Current Liabilities is understated by Rs.41,44,81,829/- (refer
Note U-II para no 17 of notes to Accounts).

3.  The company has not complied with the provisions of Service Tax Act on earnings of
Rent and provision in respect of these obligations are not made in the books of account.
The Obligation in these matters are not quantified.

4.  The Company treats its obligation in respect of Guarantee Commission Payable to the
Government of Karnataka towards the Guarantee extended by the Karnataka State
Government on the Term Loans contracted by the Company to fund its schemes as
operating expenditure. Government of Karnataka by itself provides for the Guarantee
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fee to the Company, which is treated as Income though it is a book adjustment. Routing
the funds provided by the government of Karnataka to manage scheme related
expenditure through the Profit and Loss Account is distorting the Profit/Loss position
of the Company for the year, since the receipt and expenditure on this account is not
of equal Value. During the yaer the Income is overstated by Rs.11,63,00,000/- and
Expenditure is overstated by Rs.12,10,88028/. The Policy to account for this should be

viewed from the fact that the Company by its charter is a ‘Not for profit organization’.

Note: The Company is preparing an Income and Expenditure account in lieu of * Profit
and Loss account’. So, the above paragraphs may be suitably read wherever reference

is drawn to ‘Profit & Loss Account.
Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, subject to the qualifications mentioned in the above paragraph, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a

true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India.
a) In case of the Balance Sheet, state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018.

b)  In case of Income and Expenditure Account, of the excess of expenditure over

income for the year ended on that date, and

C) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.  As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by

the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c)  The Balance Sheet, Statement of Income and Expenditure and the Cash Flow

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts;

d)  Except for the effects of the matter described under the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraphs, in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Income
and Expenditure Account and Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;
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e)  On the basis of the written representation received from the Directors as on March
31, 2018, and taken on record by Board of Directors, none of the Directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a Director in terms of
section 164(2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over Financial
reporting of the company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in ‘Annexure A’.

g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

(i)  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements-Refer Note U-1I-12A to the financial
statements.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. Asrequired by Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we
give in the “Annexure-B’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

3. Asrequired by the Directions and Specific sub-directions section 143(5) of the Act, we
give in the “Annexure-C’a statement on the matters specified in the Directions.

for SUNDARARAJAN & HARISH
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 0042185

Sdy/-
Place : Bengaluru (Santhosh S.)
Date :17-12-2018 Partner

Membership No. 212254
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors” Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the Members of
Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Ltd)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”)

We have reviewed the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Rajiv Gandhi
Rural Housing Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction

with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintain internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘'ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an

understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
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a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over

financial reporting
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
presentation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2.  providereasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors
of the company; and

3.  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not to be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, and adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were

operating effectively as on March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial
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reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial
reporting by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, subject to the qualifications
mentioned in the main body of the report, which were not quantified and impact on Assets,
liabilities, Income or expenditure are not ascertained however, we suggest the company to
introduce a formal document on the internal control procedures that are being followed
and define the roles and responsibilities of all the staff members in connection with the same
for verification and audit trail.

for SUNDARARAJAN & HARISH
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 004218S

Sdy/-
Place : Bengaluru (Santhosh S.)
Date :17-12-2018 Partner

Membership No. 212254
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors” Report to the members of the Rajiv
Gandhi Housing Corporation Limited for the year ended March 31,2018. We report that:

(i)  Fixed Assets

(@) The Company has records of fixed assets without the particulars of quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) As explained to us, the management has physically verified fixed assets during
the year, but there are no records / working papers of this activity being
undertaken.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of all the immovable
properties are held in the name of the company.

(i) The Company is a Government Company engaged in the service industry by carrying
out various schemes approved by Government. Even though the Company undertakes
certain civil works contract related to its activities, the Company is directly not involved
in execution of such civil works contract. Such civil works are completely sub-contracted
to third parties. The work in progress disclosed in the financial statements reflect the
funds utilised under various schemes of the Government. The valuation of work in
progress should be in conformity with the methodology prescribed by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India under Accounting Standard-7.

(iii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted any loan, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act,2013.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has no loans,
investments, guarantees and securities that requires compliance under section 185
and 186 of the Companies Act,2013.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public, hence reporting on clause 3(v) of the order is
not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not required
to maintain cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

(vii) According to the information and explanation given to us and as per the books of
records examined by us,

a. there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs,
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Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues with
appropriate authorities outstanding as at March 31, 2018 for a period in excess
of six months as on March 31, 2018 from the date they became payable except its
Service tax obligations in respect of Rents Received. The amounts are not
ascertained.

b. there are no dues of Sales Tax, Customs Duty, Wealth Tax, Excise Duty and cess,
which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except for the following

cases:

Name of the Nature of Amount Period to Forum where

Statute Dues (Rs.) which the Dispute is
amount relates pending

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 26.13 AY. 2013-14 CIT (Appeals)

Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 15.31 AY. 2014-15 CIT (Appeals)

Total 41.44

Since this is disclosed under contingent liability, under CARO this may not be required.

(viii) The Company has borrowed funds from banks and financial institutions but has not
raised funds by way of debentures. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, there has been no delay in repayment of principal and

interest on term loans from banks and financial institutions

(ix) During the year the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) or term loans. We have been confirmed
by management that the term loans continuing from previous years were applied for
the purpose for which they were obtained.

(x)  As per information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination of
books and records, there were no frauds on or by the company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(xi) The Company has paid/provided the managerial remuneration in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with schedule
V of the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not carrying on any business of Nidhi and hence the Clause 3(xii) of the
Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and basis of the examination of
the books and records, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-
cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

for SUNDARARAJAN & HARISH
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 0042185

Sdy/-
Place : Bengaluru (Santhosh S.)
Date :17-12-2018 Partner

Membership No. 212254
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Annexure C to the Independent Auditors” Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors” Report to the members of the Rajiv
Gandhi Housing Corporation Limited for the year ended March 31, 2018. We report that:

Directions under Section 143(5) of the Act:

SI no. Direction Report

1 If the Company has been selected for | As explained by the management , the
disinvestment, a complete status report | Company is not selected for any kind of
in terms of valuation of assets (including | disinvestment.
intangible assets and land) and liabilities
(including committed and general
reserve) may be examined, including the
mode and present state of disinvestment
process.

2 To report whether there are any cases | Waivers of loans or interest on loans under
of waiver / write off of debts / loans | the Government promoted schemes is
interest, etc, if yes, the reason thereof, | carried out at the Government level and
and the amount involved. the company has not written off any

debts or loans.

3 Whether proper records are maintained | The Company is not holding any
for inventories lying with third parties | inventory with third parties. In respect of
and assets received as gift from | payments made to the contractor towards
Government or other authorities. construction of houses under the ’

Namma Mane’ project, which is classified
as inventory, please refer to the
qualification note in the main body of the
audit report. As explained to us the
Company has not received any gift from
Government or other authorities.

4 A report on age-wise analysis of | Cases as obtained from the Management
pending legal / arbitration cases, | of the Company are listed Annexure-1.
including the reasons of pendency and
existence / effectiveness of a monitoring
mechanism of expenditure on all legal
cases (foreign and local) may be given.
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Sub-Directions under Section 143(5) of the Act:

SI no. Direction Report

1 Whether the company follows an [ The Company is a Government Company
accounting system that enables to | engaged in the service industry by carrying
individually ascertain the completed | out various schemes approved by
cost of each construction contracts / [ Government. The Company has taken up a
projects. In the absence of any such | housing project called Namma Mane . The
system, it may be seen as to how the | construction of these houses has been
company is ascertaining the individual | outsourced. Payments made to the contractor
cost of construction contracts. towards construction has been classified as
“ work in process” under Inventories.

2 Whether the company has assessed / | As explained to us there are no such
estimated the losses in the ongoing | instances.

contracts and the company has made
adequate provision for the losses in the
accounts.

3 Evaluate and report on the system of [ As explained to us there are no such
planning, preparing estimates and | instances.

awarding the work. List out the cases
where the scope of work has been
increased beyond 10 percent of the
original value of the contract.

4 What is the system regarding payment | During the year the Company has not
of interest on deposits made by other | accepted any deposits from other
Government departments in terms of [ Government Departments.

instructions of Finance Departments of
the State Government.

5 What is the system of accounting for the | Grants / subsidies in the nature of
grants / subsidies received form Central | establishment expenses are recognised as
/ State Government or its agencies for | income of the company. Grants /
performing various activities? Comment | subsidies received with specific direction
on the cases of diversion where in the | for utilisation are treated as current
grants were not utilised for the purpose | liability till such utilisation is made.

for which these were received.

for SUNDARARAJAN & HARISH
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 0042185

Sd/-
(Santhosh S.)
Place : Bengaluru Partner
Date :17-12-2018 Membership No. 212254
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Annexure 1 - referred to point 4 of Annexure C to the Independent Auditor’s Report of

Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited

Rajiv Gandhi Housing Corporation Limited for the year ended March 31, 2018.

SL.No. [ W.PNOS Subjects Year | Pending | Reasonsfor Pending
Since
1 W.P.No. S.N Parasuramegowda 2014 |4 Year [Interim order Extended
55805/2014 Service Contnuationin Argument filed by
RGHCL RGRHCL, hearing
under process.
2 W.P.No. Sri Narasimappa, 2015 |3 Year [Pendingfor admission
12894 /2015 Taluk Nodal Officer Argument filed by
Service Continuation RGRHCL, hearing
under Process.
3 W.A No. Taluk Nodal Officer 2017 |1Year [Interim orderextended
5880-6079/2017 | Service Continuation Argument filed by
& 6080-6084 /2017 RGRHCL, hearing
under Process.
4 A.S 169/2017 Termination Of KCP and 2017 |1Year [Argumentfilled by
MJR RGRHCL, hearing
under Process.
5 W.P.No. District Level 1649 2018 | 6 months| Interim Order
10503/2018 posts stay continued. Argument
W.P.No. filed by RGRHL,
10687/2018 hearing under process.
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Note - T
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES &
NOTES FORMING PART OF ACCOUNTS
BACKGROUND:

The Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation limited is a Government Company established
by the Government of Karnataka vide its Order No. DOH 183 HAH 99, dated 25.01.2000 to
cater to the housing needs of the economically and Socially Weaker Sections of the society.
The mandate of the Company is to implement all state and centrally sponsored housing
programmes ensure smooth flow of funds and ensuring transparency in implementation of
programmes. The Company has successfully completed 39,48,339 houses and 3,43,579 sites
has been distributed from its inception to 31.03.2018.

I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.  Basis of presentation / Accounting : These financial statements are prepared in
accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) under
the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except interest earned on all
the Savings Bank accounts of the Company. GAAP comprises mandatory
accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act
2013 (‘the Act’) read with Rule of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the
provision of the Act (to the extent notified). Accounting policies have been
consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months
for the purpose of current - non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2. Use of estimates : The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
balances of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Example of such estimates includes useful life of the fixed
assets, future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans etc.

Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could
differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized
prospectively in current and future years and if material, their effects are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements.
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3. Revenue recognition :

a)  Grants received from the Government of Karnataka through budgetary
allocation, to meet the establishment expenses of the company, are treated
as the income of the company during the year on receipt of such grants.

b)  Grants received from Government of Karnataka towards payment of
Government guarantee commission is treated as income of the Company.

c) Incidental income generated out of specific Housing Projects and any other
projects taken up by the Company is treated as income of the Company at
the time of disbursement of the funds for the project.

d) Recognition of revenue from Affordable Housing Developmental
Project:The Company has taken up the Affordable Housing Scheme for
low-income groups like industrial workers, auto drivers, hamals, film
technicians etc.

If the outcome of contractual contract can be reliably measured, revenue
associated with the construction contract is recognized by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at year-end (the percentage of
completion method). The stage of completion on a project is measured based
on completion of a physical proportion of the contract work/ based upon
the contracts / agreements entered into by the Company with its customer.

Further, the interest earned on earnest money deposit received by the
Company and interest earned on the installment amount received from
the allottees has been credited to the project account.

Interest earned on Fixed Deposits maintained out of the grants received,
before they are utilized has been classified under Grant receipts only.

e) Training Fees collected from students/Government/other agencies are
accounted as income of the Company.

f)  The Company has leased certain tangible assets and such leases where the
Company has substantially retained all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as finance lease. Lease income on such finance leases are
recognized in the Statement of Income and Expenditure over the lease term.

4. Government Grants : Subsidy/Assistance are accounted as current liabilities,
where it is reasonably certain that ultimate collection will be made, accordingly:

a)  All the amounts received towards various schemes / Projects from the
Government of Karnataka, Government of India, other Government Agencies
and unspent balances received from the Implementing Officers in respect of
earlier series are credited as such and treated as current liabilities. These
amounts are utilized only for implementation of government programmes.

b) In the financial year 2000-01, interest income was treated as income of the
Company. From financial year 2001-02, the interest income was treated
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as part of program funds. However, in the financial year 2005-06, the
Company has changed its accounting policy and the interest income was
treated as income of the Company retrospectively from 2001-02.

Again, in the Financial Year 2008-09, the Company has changed its
accounting policy and accordingly interest income has been treated as part
of the programme funds retrospectively from the financial year 2000-01.
The expenditure made out of the interest funds towards providing the basic
facilities in Ashraya/ Ambedkar layouts and any other specific purpose as
directed by the Government for the housing programmes are treated as
interest fund utilized. All types of interest earned by the company are treated
as interest earned on program funds except interest earned on the amount
received under Nanna Mane Project.

As per the Schedule III of Company’s Act 2013, the unspent/unutilized
Grants subsidy/Assistance received from Government and various
Government Departments have been classified under current liabilities.

The program funds utilized during the year by the Deputy Commissioners
of the Districts, Chief Executive Officers of the Zilla Panchayats of the Districts,
Executive Officers of the Taluka Panchayaths, Commissioner/Chief Officers
of Urban Local Bodies, Gram Panchayats and funds released directly to
beneficiaries of the schemes through an electronic transfers accounts through
on-line have been shown under the head “Program Funds Utilized Account”.
The company monitors and regulates the flow of grants to the beneficiary as
per the scheme and such utilization does not result in any assets to the
company. The company enables implementation of government schemes
through distribution of scheme grants to the beneficiaries.

5.  Treatment of payment of interest and principal on HUDCO/Bank Loan : The
interest payable on HUDCO/Bank loan is received from Government of
Karnataka from its budgetary allocation, the same is accounted as grants received
and on payment of interest to HUDCO/Bank, the same is adjusted out of grants
received towards interest. Repayment made by the Government of Karnataka to
HUDCO/Banks, through budgetary provision for payment of principal amount
is shown as Grants towards repayment of HUDCO/Bank loans.

6.  The Government, during the year 2010-11 has introduced a new system called
“GPS based progress monitoring and online direct release of funds to beneficiary
account”. The company uses this system for transferring the funds directly to
the beneficiaries based on the progress updated by the Gram Panchayats in the
Company’s web portal. As and when the money is being released to the
beneficiary’s accounts, the same has been accounted as “subsidy utilized”, as
the entire unit cost is released by the Company as subsidy.
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7.  For the year 2014-15, the Company has changed the accounting policy in respect
of funds utilized by the Deputy Commissioners of the districts, Chief Executive
Officers of the Zilla Panchayat, Executive Officers of the Taluka Panchayaths and
Commissioners/Chief Officers of the CMCs/TMCs/TPs. Under this system, the
Company is directly transferring the funds to the concerned implementing officers
accounts through Internet banking, based on the progress updated and in case of
Site schemes and infrastructure scheme proposals received from Deputy
Commissioners. The Company has authorized the Implementing Officers to issue
the cheques to the beneficiaries. The Company gets the bank pass sheets of all the
implementing Officers and reconciles the same with the fund transferred by the
Company and cheques debited in the bank accounts. The cheques debited in the

bank pass sheets during the financial year are treated as “Program Fund Utilized”.

8.  During the year 2017-18 the Government of Karnataka has transferred the
responsibility of implementation of Pradan mantri Awasa Yojana (Urban) -
PMAY (U) and Rajiv Awasa Yojana (Centrally sponsored Schemes) to RGRHCL.
The Company is implementing this Scheme dovetailing with State schemes viz.
Vajpayee Urban Housing Scheme, Dr. B.R. Amebedkar Nivas Yojane and
D.Devaraj Urs Housing Scheme. Under this scheme the Company is releasing
the subsidy components directly to the beneficiaries accounts based on GPS
progress, in case of Group Housing Scheme subsidy is being released to Deputy
Commissioner/ULB’s account and Commissioner, KSDB. The subsidy released
to the Deputy Commissioner/ULB’s/KSDB/Beneficiaries have been treated as

programme fund utilized.

9. The Company has introduced Cash Management System (CMS) for disbursal of
its program funds. Accordingly, cheques issued by the Implementing Officers
and paid by the Bank in all the districts are debited at the Company’s nodal
Bank accounts. Pending such actual utilization, the programme funds are kept

in the nodal Banks.

10. Tangible Assets (Fixed Assets) : Tangible Assets are stated at cost less
depreciation/ Amortization. (a) Tangible Assets are stated at their original cost
of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation. Costs include all
expenses incurred to bring the assets to its working condition for its intended
use. Subsequent improvements thereto including taxes, duties, freight and other
incidental expenses related to acquisition and installation of the assets concerned
is capitalized if it increases the future economic benefits from the existing asset
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. (b) Fixed Assets acquired
from Capital R & D Grants are Assets of the company but are recorded at Zero

cost as these assets are acquired utilizing these capital grants.
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11. Depreciation/Amortization : Depreciation on tangible assets is provided as per
the useful life specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 on Straight-line
method. Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is
proportionately charged. Intangible assets are amortized over their respective
individual estimated useful lives on a Straight-line basis, commencing from the
date asset is available to the Company for its use. The useful life for the other
fixed assets as follows:

Buildings 60 years
Plant and machinery 15 years
Office equipments 05 years
Electrical Installation 10 years
Computer equipment 03 years
Server 06 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 08 years

12. Tax expense comprises both current and deferred tax : Current income- tax is
measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact
of current period timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income for the period and reversal of timing differences of earlier year.

Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognized
only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.
Deferred tax assets are recognized if the Company has carry forward unabsorbed
depreciation and losses, only if there is virtual certainty that such deferred tax
assets can be realised against future taxable profits. Unrecognized deferred tax
assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognised to the extent that it has
become reasonably certain that future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

13. Retirement Benefits:

a. For the employees of the Corporation on deputation from various
Government Departments, leave salary, pension contribution and gratuity
are being paid regularly as per terms of deputation.

b.  For employees appointed on permanent/contract basis, gratuity has been
provided for based on an actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
and leave salary has been accounted based on the actual liability made at
the end of the financial year.

c.  Contributions to Employees Provident Fund are being made regularly to
the Commissioner, Regional Provident Fund Office.
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II. OTHER NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:

1. The mandate of the Company is to implement the Housing programs of the
Government for Socially & Economically Weaker Sections of the society. The
Company does not earn any income. The Company is a “No Profit No Loss”
Company. Therefore, in lieu of Profit & Loss Account, the Company prepares
“Income and Expenditure Account”.

2. Program Funds Utilization:

The Programme funds received by the Company in respect of Urban Housing
Schemes, House Sites and Infrastructure Development Schemes are credited as
such and all the disbursements have been debited to the respective district heads.
On creation of assets and on receipt of utilization certificate from all the concerned
district heads viz., Deputy Commissioners of the Districts, duly certified by
Chartered Accountants, the payments from district heads account is transferred
to * Funds Utilized account’.

a. However, for the year 2014-15 the Company has changed the accounting
policy in respect of funds utilized by the Deputy Commissioners of the
Districts, Chief Executive Officers of the Zilla Panchayat, and Executive
Officers of the Taluka Panchayat’s and Commissioners/Chief Officers of
the CMCs/TMCs/TPs. Under this system, the Company is directly
transferring the funds to the concerned implementing officer’s accounts
through Internet banking, based on the progress updated and proposals
received from Deputy Commissioners in case of Site schemes and
infrastructure scheme. The Company has authorized the Implementing
Officers to issue the cheques to the beneficiaries. The Company gets the
bank pass sheets of all the implementing Officers and reconciles the same
with the fund transferred by the Company and cheques debited in the
bank accounts. The cheques debited in the bank pass sheets during the
financial year are treated as “Program Fund Utilized”.

b.  The Government, during the year 2010-11 has introduced a new system
called “GPS based progress monitoring and online direct release of funds
to beneficiary account”. Under this scheme, the Company is directly
transferring the funds to the beneficiary’s accounts based on the GPS (Global
Positioning System) progress updated by the GPs in the Company’s website
from 1st April 2011 and onwards. In this regard, the Company has opened
the beneficiary’s accounts for all the approved beneficiaries in the respective
bank branches. As and when the money is being released to the beneficiary’s
accounts, the entire amount so released has been accounted as “Subsidy
utilized” under the scheme. Further, as per the government order vide No.
FD 06 CAM 2013 dtd. 23.11.2016 the subsidy is being credited (DBT) to the
new beneficiaries based on her/his aadhar number & the same is also
accounted as subsidy utilized.
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c.  The Company has taken the services of 46 persons on outsourcing basis for
smooth and better implementation of housing schemes as per G.O. No:
DOH 204 HAM 2009 Dtd: 22.02.2010 and Board approval. The payment
made to these outsourced persons out of amount deducted from
Beneficiaries as per above Government order.

d. The Company has taken the services of 7 persons on outsourcing basis for
smooth and better implementation of Chief Minister Multi Storage One
Lakh Housing Scheme as per order no G.O.No: DOH 57 HAH 2017
Dtd:23.10.2017. The above persons services have been obtained and
payment has been made out of interest funds.

e. Under PMAY-U the Company has taken the services of 25 Persons on
Outsourcing and contract to implement the PMAY-U Central sponsored
housing scheme. As per scheme Guidelines the payment has been made to
these persons 75% from Central Government Grants and 25% from State
Government Grants.

f. The Company has taken the services of 8 persons as District Engineers,
3 persons as Section Officers, 71 persons as Field Assistant & 74 Data Entry
Operator on Outsourcing in Districts for implementing of Housing Schemes
and in addition to this under IEC activities 15 Persons on Outsourcing for
call centre to provide information to public on housing schemes and attend
public calls. The above persons services have been obtained based on
Government approval as per Govt. Order No: DOH 11 HAM 2017
Dtd: 05.06.2017. The payment made to these outsourced persons out of
1% of Administrative Grant as instructed in said Government Order.

The Company has purchased 100Nos. of Computers & peripherals and
other office equipments assets out of 1% grants earmarked by Government
for IEC activities as per Govt. Order No: DOH 11 HAM 2017
Dtd: 05.06.2017.

3. The Company has received subsidy/assistance as follows:

P S e
332821.00 | Received from Housing Department 419744.83
5337.20 | Received from BCWD 3899.20
2000.00 | Received from Women Development Corporation 2230.00
5.00 | Received from Institute for Social & Eco Change 5.37

0.00 | Received from KBITS 21.46
4500.00 | Received from Directorate SC/ST 0.00
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Previous year Current year

Particulars
 in lakhs)  in lakhs)
0.00 | Received from Education Department 64.15
500.00 | Received from Industry & Commerce 1080.00

Unspent Balances of Ashraya Schemes received from

0.80 | the DCs / CEOs of ZPs of various districts 0.00
1000.00 | Received from Handloom & Textile Department 1000.00
8676.00 | Received from LIDKAR 2200.00

135.80 | Received from Labour Department 0.00
7500.00 | Grants Recd From SWD 0.00
20.00 | Received from Revenue Department 0.00

0.00 | Received from Fisheries Department 2070.00

0.00 | Received from Minority Department 67.27

0.00 | Received from DMA under RAY Project 9533.48

362496.00 | TOTAL 441915.76

Grants Returned

Returned an amount received from Education
Department towards Gurubhavan & KKGBV during
0.00 the F.Y. 2014-15 2025.00

During the year the GOK has provided Guarantee of ¥ Nil lakhs (previous year
% Nil lakhs) for drawl of loan from HUDCO to meet the shortfall of subsidy for
implementation of Ashraya Programmes. The Guarantee Commission payable to
Government of Karnataka is 1% p.a. on the principal and interest amount
outstanding has been calculated on monthly basis. The Government Guarantee
Commission for the current year is ¥ 1210.88 lakhs (previous year I 1202.66 lakhs).

The Government during financial year 2017-18 has provided ¥ 1163.00 lakhs
(previous year R 2422.00.00 lakhs) in the budget towards payment of Government
Guarantee Commission and same has been accounted as book adjustment as
income of the Company and payment has been adjusted against to the
outstanding Guarantee Commission payable. The outstanding Guarantee
Commission as at end of March 2018 is ¥ 1277.81 lakhs (previous year
¥ 1229.93 lakhs).

4, The Company has received a grant of ¥ 5,53,00,000/- (previous year
% 5,53,00,000/-) onwards establishment expenses, as per the Government Order.

The same has been treated as income during the year.
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5. The amount spent from the interest fund towards purchase of miscellaneous assets,
payment made towards providing basic amenities in Ashraya / Ambedkar layouts
is charged off against the interest earned by the Company. Expenses incurred out
of the interest earned include purchases of miscellaneous assets and provision of
basic amenities in Ashraya and Ambedkar Layouts at the Districts. This has been
accounted based on reconciliation of bank pass sheets. The interest amount spent
by the Company for conducting survey / any other specific related expenses as
approved by the board are treated as interest fund utilized and same has been

charged off against the interest earned on program funds.

6.  In the opinion of the Company,

Contingent Liability: ¥ 44,22,91,432/- (Previous Year ¥ 46,16,91,560/-) Refer
Note 13 Below.

Commitment: 1) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and
not provided for:

- In respect of Nanna Mane Project as per revised estimated cost ¥ 8772.21

lakhs (Net off advances and work in process) (Previous year ¥ 9531.02 lakhs)

7. Provision for Audit Fees:
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
L4 L4
Statutory Audit Fees 2,00,000 1,50,000
Tax Audit Fees 50,000 25,000
Service Tax on above 45,000 25,375
Total 2,95,000 2,00,375
8.  Directors Remuneration : Remuneration paid to Managing Director

%19,99,263/- (Previous year ¥ 19,63,753/-) and ¥ 92,000/- (Previous year
% 23,500/-) paid towards sitting fees to Directors.

9.  Pradhan Mantri Awaas Yojana (Grameena), a Centrally Sponsored Scheme, the
Scheme envisages 60% funding from Central Government and 40% from State
Government, both as subsidy. Under this scheme, the Company is directly
transferring the funds to the beneficiary’s accounts based on the GPS (Global
Positioning System) progress updated by the GPs in the Company’s website. As
and when the money is being released to the beneficiary’s accounts, the entire
amount so released has been accounted as “Subsidy utilized” under the scheme.

10. Nanna Mane Project : The Company has taken up a new project called “Nanna

Mane” to provide affordable housing for low income groups in the following 4
places in and around Bangalore.
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a. Talaguppa : Company has been allotted 32.5 acres land by KIADB vide their
allotment letter No HO/ Allot/ AS/18300/3627/09-10 dated 08.07.2009 for
a consideration of Rs.544.93 lakhs of this, 14 acres has been earmarked for
affordable housing project and it is proposed to construct 876 flats under
Bhagya, sampada and Yashassu scheme. Accordingly , land cost of 222.07

lakhs in respect of the 14 Acres has been accounted as work in progress.

In the year 2004, the company has opened an ESCROW account in the
name of RGRHCL Roland Medows Housing Project as per the approval of
Board. The Company has transferred Rs.541.43Lakhs for acquisition of land,
Construction of Model houses, purchase of Equipments, Consultancy &
Technical Service charges & other expenses. Out of which Rs.457.88Lakhs
was spent for acquiring land through KIADB, Rs.12.50Lakhs was spent
for construction of Model Houses, Rs.20.00Lakhs for purchase of Equipments
for Blocks Production & Rs.10.05Lakhs was spent for other miscellaneous.
As on 31.03.2018 there is a balance of Rs.41.54Lakhs in ESCROW Account

which includes interest earned on ESCROW account.

b.  Singhanayakanahalli and Hunasemaranahalli (near Yelahanka) : In these

two places, the Company has planned to construct to 336 flats on G+2
models in 4.02 acres of land allotted by the Government under Bhagya,
Sampada and Yashassu. Out of this Company has successfully completed
192 flats in Singhanayakanahalli as at end of March 2016 and 175 flats
have been allotted. The cost of the flats in Singhanayakanahalli has been

revised as detailed below;

Type of flat Original Revised

salable price | salable price

Bhagya 3,95,000/ - 4,57,325/ -
Sampada 4,80,000/ - 5,565,737/ -
Yashasu 5,25,000/ - 6,07,837/-

c.  Kodathi : The Company has proposed to construct 352 flats on the land
allotted by the Gosvernment in Kodathi. Under this project, the majority of
the flats are allotted to the Ex-servicemen’s.

For the above said projects, the Company has called the applications from the
public through advertisement for allotment of flats and accordingly, the allotment
process has been completed except in case of Talaguppa due to non receipt of
sufficient applications. The Company has again invited the applications on dated
08.07.2012 for the remaining 780 flats. However, the allotment process is yet to
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be completed due to delay in construction work. The details of each project are

given at below:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Annual Report 2017-15 |

Area Dwelling Unit Types to be Of.iginal Cost (.lf the
Place constructed at each location projectcost | project

including including
A:G |Bhagya| Sampada | Yesassu | Total |infrastructure |infrastructure]

Kodathi 5:00 60 36 256 352 1209.58 2515.09
Hunasemarana Halli | 02:01 36 48 60 144 572.87 1229.48
Singhanayakanahalli | 02:01 48 60 84| 192 857.78 692.40
Talguppa Village V) | 14:00 72 108 69 | 876 3954.72 | 7647.44
Total 216 252 1096 | 1564 6594.95 | 12084.41

Further, the Company has terminated the contractor due to non-performance of
work as per the tender clause and penalty claim has been made for X 81.56 crores
(i.e. damages payable for completion of balance work ¥ 48.81 crores +
administrative, overhead and supervision X 27.54 crores and LD payable ¥ 5.21
crores). The arbitration has issued an order vide No. 21/2016, dtd. 7" September
2017 and rejected all the claims made by the Company. However, the Company
has decided to file an appeal before the Hon’ble High Court challenging the order
issued by the arbitration. Further, the Company has made revised estimated cost

to complete the project based on 2015-16 SR.

The Company has received X 28,89,05,231/- as at end of 31* of March 2018
(previous year ¥ 28,71,89,317/-) that includes initial deposit, part of the
installments amount from the allottees, interest earned on initial deposits and

installment amount and confiscation of Bank guarantee.

11. Work in Process : The Company has accounted X 27,10,91,593 /- as work in process
as at end of 31st March 2018 this includes the actual work as per joint
measurement of Project Monitoring Consultant along with contractor and so
other expenditure pertains to the project.

12. As the Company is ‘not for profit organization” and it is only a Nodal agency

created by the State Government for implementation of all the State and Central
Government sponsored housing schemes for economically weaker sections of
the society. The day-to-day administrative expenses of the Company like salaries,
printing etc., are provided by the Government through budgetary provision. In

the year 2000-01, the Company has treated the interest earned on program fund
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as income of the Company. From the year 2001-02 to 2004-05, as per the
Government direction No.DOH 103 HAM 2001, dtd.12.04.2002, the interest
earned on programme funds has been treated as part of the programme funds.
However, the Income Tax Department has not agreed on the same. The Company
has filed an Appeal before the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) against
the Assessment Orders passed by the Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax
and which was not considered favorably. Hence, in the year 2005-06 the
Company has changed its accounting policy and recognized the interest earned
on programme funds as income of the Company and accordingly the accounts
have been revised with retrospective effect based on the decision of the

Commissioner, Income Tax (Appeals).

In the year 2008-09 the Company has again changed the accounting policy and
considered the interest earned on programme funds as part of the program fund
and accordingly the accounts have been revised with retrospective effect as
directed by C&AG and in view of the judgment passed by the Hon’ble High
Court of Karnataka in respect of Karnataka Urban Infrastructure Development
Corporation (KUIDFC) as the business of the Company is similar to the business
of KUIDFC and both the organizations are State Public Sector Undertakings.

12A. The Company for the Assessment year 2001-02 to 2017-18 has paid TDS/Self
Assessment taxes to the Income Tax department for Rs.52,29,87,534/-. Out of
this, Rs.8,28,81,364/- refund has been received from the Income Tax department.
However, the Company has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income

Tax (Appeals) for an order passed by the assistant Commissioner of Income Tax
on Assessment Year 2006-07 to 2014-15.

Further, the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) has passed an order for the
Assessment Year 2006-07 to 2014-15, allowing the appeals filed by the Company.
The Income Tax Department has further filed an appeal before the appellate
tribunal for the Assessment Year 2007-08 to 2012-13 and appellate tribunal has
passed an order disallowing the appeal filed by DCIT for the Assessment Year
2008-09 to 2010-11 and 2012-13. For the Assessment Year 2007-08 & 2011-12

the hearing is under process.

Based on the order passed by the Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals),
Appellate Tribunal and Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka in case of the Karnataka
Urban Infrastructure Development Corporation (KUIDFC), the company has
not made any provision for payment of Income Tax in respect for A Y 2013-14

and 2014-15. The company has filed an appeal before the Commissioner of Income
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Tax (Appeals) on order passed by ACIT. The present status as below:-

Assessment Total TDS Based on Total Balance Remarks
. ACIT tax Refund to be
Year Paid
Paid received receivable
2001-02 1,93,96,306 - 76,90,310 17,05,996
2002-03 3,40,69,698 - | 1,92,06,071| 1,48,63,627
2003-04 2,88,97,244 - | 2,03,04,239 85,93,005
Assessment Completed
2004-05 2,21,01,117 - | 2,13,27,888 7,73,229
2005-06 22,59,872 - 19,66,020 2,93,852
2006-07 35,88,557 - 35,65,988 22,569
2007-08 1,28,43,727 19,90,589 88,20,848 60,13,468 | Appeal pending before
tribunal
2008-09 61,73,047 70,09,802 -1 1,31,82,849 | Order issued by tribunal
disallowing the appeal
filed by DCIT
2009-10 2,01,51,204 | 3,06,67,285 -| 5,08,18,489 | Orderissued by tribunal
disallowing the appeal
filed by ACIT
2010-11 1,48,72,767 | 1,66,62,467 -| 3,15,35,234 | Order issued by tribunal
disallowing the appeal
filed by ACIT
2011-12 1,63,91,159 | 3,93,35,508 -| 5,57,26,667 | Appeal pending before
tribunal
2012-13 1,80,34,083 | 2,08,99,229 -1 3,89,33,312 | Orderissued by tribunal
disallowing the appeal
filed by DCIT
2013-14 2,94,41,206 - -| 2,94,41,206 | The CIT (appeals) has
passed order disallowing
the Government
guarantee Commission.
2014-15 1,09,80,022 - -1 1,09,80,022 However, the Company
has decided to file further
appeal.
2015-16 5,83,45,321 - -| 5,83,45,321
~ Assessment pending
2016-17 5,88,60,350 - 5,88,60,350 before ACIT
2017-18 5,00,16,975 - -1 5,00,16,975
Total 40,64,22,655 (11,65,64,879 | 8,28,81,364 | 44,01,06,170
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13. Tax on Income :

Deferred Taxation: The net Deferred Tax (Asset) as on 31* March 2018 has

been arrived at as follows:

Particulars Opening Balance Current Year Closing Balance

of Deferred Tax | charge/(Credit) of Deferred Tax
Assets Assets

Depreciation 12,86,524 (9,33,697) 3,52,827
Leave Encashment 6,18,003 2,68,579 8,86,582
Gratuity 19,71,902 0 19,71,902
Total 38,76,429 (6,65,118) 32,11,311
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In accordance with Accounting Standard 22 “Accounting for Taxes on Income”
Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India Deferred tax Asset of
% 32,11,311/ - arising during year has not been considered as a matter of prudence
in accordance with the said standard in view of the uncertainty of the company

earning taxable income in future year.

14. Treatment of payment of interest and principal on HUDCO/Bank Loan : The

interest payable on HUDCO/Bank loan is received from Government of
Karnataka from its budgetary allocation, the same is accounted as grants received
and on payment of interest to HUDCO/Bank, the same is adjusted out of grants
received towards interest. Repayment made by the Government of Karnataka to
HUDCO/Banks, through budgetary provision for payment of principal amount
is shown as Grants towards repayment of HUDCO/Bank loans. During the year,
an amount of Rs.105.69 crores was utilized for payment of interest towards term
loans and Rs.186.98 crores towards repayment of principal from the government

of Karnataka Grant.

15. Note for Note No. "C” : The loan drawn from the HUDCO/ Financial Institutions

are generally secured by the sovereign guarantee of Government of Karnataka

with budgetary provision for repayment of principal and interest.

16. The Company does not have the information of vendors regarding their status
under the Micro Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 and hence
the disclosure relating to amount unpaid as at the end of the year together with

interest paid or payable under this Act has not been given.

17. The Company has established a unique Training Institution at Rajiv Gandhi
Technology Centre (Corporate Office Building) at Kengeri Satellite Town as a
self-sustaining organization. It is envisaged to impart technical/professional
training to the fresh Engineering Graduates Diploma-holder semi-skilled un-skilled
and other unemployed people in both Rural and Urban Areas in the State. The
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18.

School commenced its training activities from June 2008. During the Financial
Year 2016-17 the Company has received INil towards training (previous year
INil) and %6,87,469/- has been spent for operation expenses (previous year
%3,98,125/-) including conducting the courses. The operational expenses break-

up is given below:

Previous Year Expenses Current

@ Year (%)
3,77,839 Salary, Training Fees & Conveyance 6,62,000
13,853 Office General Expenses 0

Office Maintenance

0 Telephone and Mobile charges 22,884
6,433 TA/DA Charges 2,585
3,98,125 Total 6,87,469

Defined benefit plans : The Company has a gratuity policy covering all the
employees in compliance with the requirement of “The Payment of Gratuity Act
1972”. The scheme is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India and
provides lump-sum benefit linked to final basic salary and completed year of

service to the Company at the time of separation. The details of Gratuity benefits

as per actuarial valuation are as under:

Sl. Gratuity Benefits Compensated Absences
Particulars
No. 31-03-2018 | 31-03-2017 | 31-03-2018 | 31-03-2017
1 | Components of Employer Expenses
Current Service cost 5,06,930 5,37,141 9,97,502 9,66,572
Past Service Cost-Plan Amendment 2,15,877 0 0 0
Interest Cost 4,80,532 4,34,961 1,97,286| 1,59,020
Expected return on plan assets 0 0 0 0
Actuarial Losses (25,704) 65,957 (7,18,201)( (4,59,165)
Total Expenses recognized in P&L 11,77,634| 10,38,060 4,76,587| 6,66,427
2 | Actual Contribution and benefits
paid during the year
Actual Benefits paid
Actual Contribution
3 | Net Assets/(Liability) recognized in
the balance sheet as on 31.03.2017
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligation (DBO) 75,59,195| 63,81,561| 30,96,581| 26,19,994
Fair Value of Plan Asset
Net Assets/(Liability) recognized in
the balance sheet (75,59,195) | (63,81,561) | (30,96,581)| (26,19,994)
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Change in DBO during the year ended

31st March 2017

Present value of DBO at beginning of

the year 63,81,561| 53,43,501| 26,19,994| 19,53,567
Current Service Cost 5,06,930 5,37,141 9,97,502 9,66,572
Interest Cost 4,80,532  4,34,961 1,97,286| 1,59,020
Actuarial Losses -25,704 65,957 | (7,18,201) (4,59,165)
Benefit paid

Present value of DBO at end of the year 75,59,195| 63,81,561| 30,96,581| 26,19,994

Change in Fair Value of Assets during the
year ended 31 March 2017

Plan Assets at beginning of the year - - - -

Actual return on plan Assets - - - -

Actual Company contribution - - - -

Actuarial losses on plan Assets - - - -

Benefits paid - - - -

Plan Assets at end of the year - - - -

Experience Adjustments

Experience Adjustments on Plan Liabilities -25,704 65,957 (7,18,201)( (4,59,165)
Actuarial Loss/ (Gain) due to change in

assumptions 0 0 0 0
Experience Adjustments on Plan Assets 0 0 0 0
Net Actuarial Loss/ (Gain) for the year 0 0 0 0
Actuarial Assumptions

Discount Rate 7.63% 7.53% 7.63% 7.53%
Expected Return on Plan Assets 0% 0% 0% 0%
Salary Escalation 7.00% 7.00% 7.00% 7.00%

19.

Defined Contribution plan : Contribution to the provident fund and pension fund
are defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the Company make monthly
contribution to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of employees
salary. The Company’s contributions are charged to Income and Expenditure

Account on an accrual basis when the contributions to the fund are due. There are
no other obligations other than the Contribution payable to PF authorities.

Cash flow : The cash flow statement has been prepared as per the “Indirect
Method” whereby net expenditure over income adjusted before tax is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non cash nature any deferrals or accruals of
past or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses
associated with investing or financing cash flow. The cash flows from operating
investing and financing activities are segregated. This statement is being presented

Annual Report 2017-15 |}

170



Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited Annual Report 2007-18 .

for the first time since the inception of the company as per the requirement of
AS-3 on Cash Flow Statement issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

20. The Corporation as per the decision of the 69th Board Meeting held on 04.01.2016
has shifted its corporate office from Rajajinagar to Khanija Bhavan. In this regard,
% 23,79,030/- has been spent for interior works. However, the Government vide
Order No. DOH HAM 2015, BANGALORE, dtd.12.04.2015 has instructed the
Corporation to shift back the office to again Rajajinagar premises as the present
premises in Khanija Bhavan needs to be provided to ACB. Accordingly, the
company has shifted its office back to Rajajinagar and the amount paid for interior
works has been relatively shown as receivable from Anti Corrupt Bureau (ACB).

21. Borrowing Cost : During the year, the Company has not borrowed any loan for

capitalizing its Assets.

22. Related Party Transactions :

Key management Nature of Payment 31.03.2018 | Key management 31.03.2017
personnel Amount %) personnel Amount(®)
Munish Moudgil Remuneration from Dr. K.G. Jagadeesha
April 2017 to 8,57,071 | (from April 2016 3,77,614
Aug 05" 2017 to July 25" 2016)
V. Anbukkumar Remuneration from Munish Moudgil
Oct 4™ 2017 to 11,42,192 | (from August 2016 |15,86,139
March 2018 to March 2017)
Total 19,99,263 19,63,753

In addition to the above the Company has paid % 92,000/- (Previous year
323,500/-) as sitting fees to the Directors.

23. Prior period adjustment account (Net) credit balance consists of the following.

Income 1,24,472/- Expenditure T 11,235-

24. Segment reporting : The prime segment of the Company is in implementation of

Government Housing schemes along with two other minor segments of
Construction/Development activities and Vocational training activities. Since
the transactions relating to the minor segments are not significant, segment details
are not maintained.

25. Foreign Currency : No foreign currency transactions have been made during the
financial year.

26. Deposit Contribution Works : The company has entrusted of providing Interior of 9"
floor in KHB Building to Public Work Department as deposit Contribution for
Rs.1,79,73,000/- So far the company has not received Work Completion Certificate.
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27. Earnings per share : The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the

Excess of Income over expenditure by the weighted average number of equity
share outstanding during the year.

Earning/ (profit) per share

(Figures in rupees except number of shares)

Year ended Year ended
31%t March, 2018 | 31st March, 2017

PARTICULARS

Excess Income over Expenditure for the period
attributable to equity shareholders (1,60,21,391) 25,68,45,505

Weighted average number of equity shares of

¥ 100 each used for calculation of basic
earnings per share 3,00,000 3,00,000

Earning/ (profit) per share Basic (53.40) 856.15

Weighted average number of equity shares of
% 100 each used for calculation of diluted
earnings per share. 3,00,000 3,00,000

Earning/ (profit) per share Diluted (53.40) 856.15

28. Previous year figures have been reclassified and regrouped wherever necessary.

Sd/- Sd/- TO BEREAD WITH OUR
DR.]J.RAVISHANKAR (L.A.S.) V.ANBUKKUMAR (L.A.S.) REPORT OF EVEN DATE
Director Managing Director For SUNDARRAJAN & HARISH

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN 004218 S

Sd/- Sd/-
B.N.BIRADAR (F & A) SANTHOSHS.
General Manager (Partner)

Membership No.212254

Place : Bengaluru
Date : 04-09-2018
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RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORI'ORATION LIMITED
9th Floor, E & F Block, Cauvery Bhavan, K. (. Road, Bengaluru - 560 0049

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018

Amount (T)
Particulars Mate Current Reporting Period Previous Reporting Period
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Funds
Share Capital A 3,00, 00,000 3,00,00,000
Reserves and Surplus B {23,90,51.412) [22.20.600021)
(20,90,81,412) (19,30,60,021)
Share application Maney
pending allotment
Non - Current Liabilities
Long Term Borrowings C 8,92,50,04, 797 10,67,32,23,800
Other Long Term Liabilitizs D 9,50,000 9,530,000
E 92,60,14,797 10,67,41,73,B60
Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities E 5,00,0/,80.6549 12,968,906 28,421
Cther Current Liahilities F 2,36,35,39.775 247,20,64,033
Short Term Provisions ¥1,80,085 23,594,157
743,15,11,114 15,46,46,86,621
Tatal 16,14,84,44,500 25,94,58,00,460
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Fixod Aszets
- Tangible Assels G B,5%9,28.934 £,27.39,609
Long Term Loans and Advances H F4,82,058 49,27 658
Other Non Current Assets I 40,385,277 500 a5,358, 10,525

47,72,39,052

42,15,32,792

i,
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Particulars Mate Current Reporting Period Previous Reporting Period
Current Assets
Invantories J 27,10,91,593 20,95,72,073|
Cash and Cash eguivalents K [15,00.37.60,724 25.05,89,60,390
Short Term Loans and Advances| L #5814 4968 4,953,32,038
Other Current Assets M 30,45,29,123 17,62,03,166
15,67,12,05,408| 25,52,42,67,668
Total 16,14,84,44,500 25,94,58,00,460
Significant Accounting Policies T
and Other Notes to Accounts

For and on behalf of the Board To be read with our Report of even date
Dr. ). RAVISHANKAR (1.A.5.) V. ANBUKKUMAR (1.A.5.) For M/fs. SUNDARARAJAN & HARISH
Director Mianaging Directar Chartered Accountants

(FR.M. 004218 5)

B.N. Biradar (F & A) Santosh 5.
General Manager Partner, Mem. No. 212254

Flace ; Bengaluru
Date : 04-09-201&

2




LA

R.‘-ijiv G;-lr!ld]"li Rural H{lu:ﬁnlﬁ'; fl‘_lrr.ri_'lrdﬁ{_'m !.i:'l'iil'l';‘:']

Annual Repart 2017-18 .

RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORI'ORATION LIMITED
9th Floor, E & F Block, Cauvery Bhavan, K. (. Road, Bengaluru - 560 0049

Income and Expenditure account
In Lieu of Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2018

Amount ()

Particulars

Mote | Current Reporting Period

Previous Reporting Period

INCOME

Rewvenue Fram Operations
Other Incame

Total Revenue - |

EXFENDITURE

Project Expenditure - Manna Mane

Employes Benefits Expanses

Depreciztion and Amaortisation Expenses

Other Expenses

Total Expenditure - |1,

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional
and extraordinary items and tax

Exceptional Items

Prafit / Lass before extracrdinary
items and tax

Extraordinary ltems
Prafit Before Tax
Tax Expenses:

1) Income Tax

2) Deferred Tax

29,24 847
17,20,40,960

17,4965 807

2,80,55 626
24,774,905

16,04,56,667

159,09,87,198

(1.60,21,391)

(1,60,21,391)

(1,60,21,391)

27,230,839
49,76,79,715

50,04,60,554

7,35,16,956
26,086,679

14,89,03,289
17,50,26,964

32,54,33,550

32.54,.33,590

32,5433 550

§,85,88,086

E)




. r R.‘-ijiv Gandhi Rural H{lu:ﬁnlﬁ'; fl‘_lrr.ri_'lrdﬁ{_'m Limuted Annual Repurt 2017-18 .

Particulars Mote | Current Reporting Period | Previous Reparting Period

Profit / (Loss) from the pariod fram (1,60,21,351) 25,65,45,505

continuing cperaticns

Profit / (Loss) from discontinuing
aperations

Tax expense of discounting operations

Prafit / (Loss) far the period (1.60,21.391) 25,68,45,505
For and on behalf of the Board o be read with our Report of even date
Dr. J. RAVISHANKAR, 1.A.5. V. ANBUKKUMAR, 1.a.5. For M/s. SUNDARARAJAN & HARISH
Director vanaging Director Chartered Accauntants
(F.R.N. 004218 S)
B.N. Biradar (F & A) Santosh 5§,

General Manapesr Partner, Mem. Mo, 212254

Place : Bengaluru
Date ; 04-09-2014
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RAJIV GANDHI RURAL HOUSING CORI'ORATION LIMITED
9th Floor, E & F Block, Cauvery Bhavan, K. (. Road, Bengaluru - 560 0049

Cash Flow Statement for the Year 2017-18

Amount (T)

Particulars

Current Reporting Perled

Previous Reporting Period

A, CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

and Expenditure Afc
Adjustment for :

Depreciation

Operating Deficit before working Capital Cha
Adjusted for :

Increase in Other Current Assets

Receivables

Increase in other Current Liabilities and

Frovisions

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

[ferease in Fived Adssots

Met Cash Flow from Investing Activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase) Decrease in Unsecured Loans
Interest / Decrease in Work in Process

Beneficiary Contribution
Increase / Decrease in Current Liabilities

Frogram Fund Utilized

Excess aof Income aver Expenditure as per Income

nges

(Increase)/Decrease in Loans & Advances &

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

(1,601,21,391)

24,74,905

(1,35,46,486)

(5,00,16,975)

(16,71,08,887)

1,51,77,150

{21,54,95,197)

(56,64,232)
(56,64,232)

{1,80,08 28 953)
(6,15,19,520)
21,65,000
{7,92,88,47,766)

0

25,68,45,503

216,06,679

25,94,52,184

(1,44,81,195)

1,24,49 35,078

11,10,65,87 437)

3,38,32,18,630

(10,34,747)
(10,34,747)

69,72,59,587
(4,00,18,680)
48,70,000
(1,86,16,01,804)

2,85,95,53,171

&1
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Particulars Current Reporting Period | Previous Reporting Period

MNet Cash Flow fram Financing Activities (0,25,80,31,237) 1,66,00,62,273

Net Increase / Decrease in Cash and Cash

Equivalent (10,07,91,90,666) 5,04,22,46,156

Cash and Cash Equivalent as at the beginning of

the year 25,08,392,60,320 20,04,67,14.,234

Cash and Cash Equivalent as at the end of the year 15,00,97,69,724 25,08,89,50,200
For and on behall of the Board T be read with our Report of even date

Dr. . RAVISHANKAR, 185 V. ANBUKKUMAR, 1.A.5. Far M/s. SUNDARARAJAM & HARISH

Chartered Accountants

Dircctor Managing Cirector :
[F.R.M, O04Z18 5)
B.N. Biradar (F & A) Santosh 5.
General Manager Partner, Mem. Mo, 212254

Flace : Bongaluru
Date : 04-09-2018
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2018

Mote - A

SHARE CAPITAL

Amount %) Amount (T}

Particulars Current Reporting Pericd | Previous Reporting Period

Authorised Share Capital :
10,000,000 Equity shares of Bs. 100,/ each 10,00,00,000 10,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up

3,00,000 Eouily shares of Rs, 100/- each 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000

As at 31 March 2018

Farticulars Current Re porting Period Mo. of Equity Shares

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
Add ;- Shares pssued doring the year - -
Less: Shares cancelled an buy back of Cquity Shares - -

Equity Shares at the end of the yaar 3,00,00,000 3,00,00,000

Equity Shares

The company has one class of Eguity shares having a par value of Rs.100/- each. Each equity share holder
carry Lhe right 1o vale (one vole per equily share) al the general meetings of the Company. Equity shares
have the residual rights to dividend, profits and capital. These shares are not repayable during the
lifetime of the Company, exceplin cases of buy back, capital reorganisation etc. under the Companies Act
of 2013, Inthe event of liguidation, the equity shareholders are aligible to raceive the remaining assets of
the Company after distribution of all the preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

2,89 993 shares (@ Rs.100/- each are held by Hizs Excellency the Gavernor af Karnataka on behalf of
Government of karnataka and remaining seven shares @ Rs.100/- each are held by seven nominees of
the Government of Karnataka,
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The Details of Shareholders holding mare than 5% shares :
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Mame of the Shareholder

Current Reporting Pericd

Previous Reporting Period

Mo, of Shares held

Mo, of Shares % of Holding

His Excellency The Governar of Karmataka
an the behalf of Government of Karnataks

2,949,493

2,559,893 S8 998%

Particulars

Current Repaorting Period

Previous Reporting Period

Fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without
payment being received in cash

3,00,000

3,00,000

Fully Paid up by way of bonus Shares

Shares bought back

The cempany has neither issued any 2quity shares far consideration other than eash nor any bonus
shares during the immediately preceding 5 financial years. Also there has been no buy back of shares

pither in the afaresaid periad.

Convertible Instruments - The Company has not issued any kind of convertible securities / instruments
which would be converled Lloeguily sharesin the near fulurea,

Unpaid Calls

Current Reparting Period

Previous Reporting Period

By Directors

By Olficers

Forfeiture of Shares- Mone of the shares have heen forfeited during the year.

ESOP - Mo equity shares of the campany has been reserved towards Employee Stock Option Plan.

g
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Mote - B

RESERVES AND S5URPLUS

Particulars

dmount (T}
Current Reporting Perod

Amount (T)
Previows Reporting Period

Opening Balance

(22,30,60,021)

(47,99,05,526)

Add: Profit/(Loss) for the period

(1,60,21,391)

25,68,45,505

Total (23,90,81,412) 122,30,60,021)
Mote - C
LOMG TERM BORROWINGS
Particulars AmuuntrlE] . Amount .Hl
Current Reparting Paricd Pravious Reporting Pariod
Unsecured

Opening Balance:

Add: Received during the year From
Banks/Fl s

Less: Repaid during the year

Closing Balance A

The Above Balance Comprises of :-

HUDCO

IMG VWysya Bank (Kotak Mahindra Bank)

Urion Bank of India

[ndian Bank

Less : Amount shown under Current
maturities of Long term Loans under
Current Liabilities B

12,55.74,85,692

10,53,83,17,011

9,45 05 005

5,32 85,420

7,55,304

12,55,74,85,692

1,86,08,28,952

10,68, 76,56, 740

1,76,25,91,942

11.86.08,86,105

2,71,80,00,000

12,26,19,47,017

18,60,08,418

10,52,00,515

43,729,741

14,57,82,26,105

2,02,07,40,413

12,55,74,85,692

1,88.42,61,832

TOTAL (A-B)

8,92,50,64,797

10,67,32,23,860

Mote = Out of the above balance, Rs.1,76,25,91,242 [~ is shown under Current Liabilities as "Current maturities of Long term Loans"
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Mote - D
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
el Amount [T) Amount (T)
Particulars Current Reporting Period Previous Reporting Perind
Rental Deposit 9.50,000 %,590,000
TATAL 9,50,000 9,50,000
Note - E
CURRENT LIABLITIES
particul Amount (7) Armount (7)
articulars Current Reporting Perind Previous Reporting Periad
1. Subsidy Received from Government &
Government Institutions
(a) Received during 2000-01 to 2016-17 | .65,61,32,16,561 1,29,39,37.26,361
Less: Subsidy Utilised towards
programmes (2000-01 to 2016-17) 1,50 80,08 27,473 1,2062,8L55,579
Cpening Balance
Less: Amount returnad to the
Education Department 20,25,00,000
TOTAL 5,63,949,19,0689 E,76,55,71,183
(b) Add: Received during the year
2017-18
Received from Housing Department 41,97 44,583,000 33.28,71.19,700
Received from BCWD 38,99,20,000 £3,37.20,000
Received from Women Cevelooment
Corporation. 22.30,00,000 20,000,041, 303
Received from Instilule for Socizl &
Eco Change 537,435 500,000
Reoceived from KBITS 2AE37S
Received from Industries &
Cormmerce Dept. 10,30,00,00C 500,00,300
Received from H & T Department 10,00, 060,070 10,0000, 301

o 1823 »
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Particulars o Amuunttff:l . . Amount {f]- .
rrent Reporting Period Previous Reporting Period

Recetved from Reverue 20.00,000

Received from Labour 1,35,80,000

Received from Directorate of SC/5T 45, 00,00,a00

Received from Lidkar 22,00,00,000 B, Ti,00,000

Recetved from MSDP 57,27,000

Received from SWD FE,00,00,000

Received from Fisheries Dept 20, 70, 00,000

Fecelved from Education Department G4,15,000

Recetved from DMWA-RAY & Piay (U] 595,3%,47,738

Total Received during 2017-18 44,19,15,76,549 36,24.95,19,700

[c] Add: Interest earned on

Programme funds

Opening Balance 3,896,015 Bd, 508 3,08,72. 60,745

Add: Received during the vear G2.68,20,615 1,06.51E0,11L

Less: Interest funds utilised during

the year 2,90, 75,633 20,18 76,180
<,01.83,06,673 3,50,05,64,595

Less: Subsidy Utilsed fowards

prograrmmeas (2017-201H5) 50,13, 2% BB, JI3 0,15,28. 71,195

Total 4,32,6%,15,524 ©,80,29,63,785

(d] Transferred from GOK fund towards

repayment of interest an Hudco/Fls
loans

Less: Utilized for repayment af
Interest an HUDCD / Fis loans
(Refer Mote No. T-1=-5)

Total I.

1,105,654, 50,571

1,05,89,20,578

4,32,65,15,5249

1,08,47 07,509

10892 0 529

5,80,29,E3,785

d
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Particulars

Amaunt (T)
Current Regorting Period

Armount (T}
Previous Reporting Perind

. Grants from Govt, of Karnataka towards

HUDCO / Fis

Loan Repayment

Opening Balance

Add: Received during the year
Less: Transferrad to Subsidy Fund

Less: Closure of scrics Set off against
program fund utilised

Total 11

Armount transfarred out of old schemes

from Districts

Opening Balance of DCCEQSKHR'S

Unspent Funds
Add: Received during the year

Less; LHilized During the year

73,38,46,129

19,000

3,79,88,40, 167

4,10,27,14,001

3,94, 87,55, 801

73,3766, 492

FE R T

2.45,17,98,507

Tatal 1l

¥3,38,46,119

73,38,46,129

TOTAL : 111+

5,06,07,80,654

12,98,96,25,4921

d
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MNote - F

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars

Amaunt {7
Current Reporting Period

Amount (1)
Previous Reporting Perind

Current maturibies of Long Lerm Loans

1, 7R, 25 01,942

1,58.42, 51,222

Beneficiary Contribution Recaives

2,07,55,357

GovtGuarantoe Commission payable to GOK

12,77,80,541

12,20,92,513

Mannz Mane Project initial Deposit

28,88,05,237

78,71,89,317

Slaiutory Dues Payable (TDS Payable) 20,29,557 £,31.586
Protassional Feas [LC| payable 3.99,000 2,538,750
Project amount payable to Nis 21,53,595 21,55,685%
Tendar Deposit Amount Payable 14,25,(HN 14,725,000
Loan recovery payable to Govt, 22.60,264 16,91,549
Payable to DC Turmkur 17,000,000 17, 00,000
Labour Cess payahle (Infrastructure) 410,244 410,244
Imtersst on Loan payahle 7A8 BE Q83 #,94,31,965
Payable to DC Bellary 32 42,960 22,482,560
Payable to EQ TF Manwi 72,000 F2000
Payable ta OO0 TMC Humnabad 5,223,000 5,25.000
Expenses Payabls F.44 29 014 1,i12,51,441
Payable ta Kousaalye Shaale 500
Koushalya Shaale Expenzes Pavakble 50,54,075 51,64,439
TMO's Hanerarium Payahle 3.32,19,149
KSHC OMee Renovalion 3.1a,7 76 4,78, 738

Chl One Lac Housing Project Dxpensas Pavazle

26305316

Wirang entry payable to Canarz Bank

1,49,300

TaTaL

2,36,35,39,775

2,47.20,64,033
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MNote - H

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

bs per Paint No.BL of General Instructions for Preparation of Balance Sheet

Particulars Ama unt.tfj . . Amount m .
Current Reporting Period Previous Reporting Period
Unsecured, Considerad Good:
BESCOM Deposits 2,28,000 2,2E,000
Other Deposits 11,808 11,808
rargin Money an BG for LID 25,000,000 0
Rent Depasits to KSIDC 47,43,080 47,43,050
TOTAL 74,82,658 49,82,658
Note - |
OTHER NOM CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars Amum.m . . Amount ?ﬂ ,
Current Reporting Period Previgus Reporting Period
Tan Deducted at Source 33,28,05,524 28.87,88,549
Add: Income Tax Paid 14.40.51,4926 14.40,51, 420
MAT credit emtitlerment for 2015-16 £,33,33,528 5,33,33.528
MAT credit emtitlement for 2016-17 2,044,049 8,64 649
53,70,55,127 418,70,38,152
Less: Provision for [T MAT for A, 2007-08
& 08-09 104,241,364 104,41 364
Provision for Income Tax [MAT) for 2015-15 5.33.33,528 5,33.33,528
Provision for Income Tax (MAT] for 201617 6,94,52,735 5,94,52,735
13,32,27,627 13,32,27,627
Less: Refund received during the year - -
TOTAL 40,38,27,500 35,38,10,525

g
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Mote - )
INVENTORIES
Particul Amount {T) Amount ()
articulars Current Reporting Perind Previous Reporting Periad
Project Waork In process
Wark in process: Nanns Mane Project 27,10,91,593 2095, 2003
(Refer Mate No. T-11-11)
MNote - K
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
particul Amaunt (1) Amount (7]
articufars Current Reporting Period Previous Reporting Period
Bank Balances

i) With Scheduled Banks

Savings Accounts
al at H.0. Bengalury
b} at Districts

il Cash-in-hand

iii) Fixed Deposits
d| Fixed Deposits at HO Bengaluru

b} Fixed Deposits at Districts

TOTAL

10,75.8L 7,953

75,80,35,944

£,025

141,67 54,250

£,

11,51,62,33,435

3,49,35,36,289

15,00,97,60,724

4,57,74,07,140

E2,63,13,170

14,923

13El 325,150

B,27,35,35,233

15,81,54, 75,151

25,08,59,60,330

2
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MNote - L

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars Amount (%) Amount (%)
Current Reporting Period Previous Reporting Period
Prepaid Expenses 10,04,557 9,653,585
Advance to Manna Mane Project 6,01,28 522 4.57,66,971
Advance paid to KHB for Land 26,79 275
Advance paid to KSHC for KHE Interiar Work 34,56,400 -
Advance pald to PWE tor EHE Interior Work 1,79,73,000 -
Festival Advanece to Staff 7.000 45,000
Advance paid to Sira CWIC for 500G Scheme 32,4, 000 -
Advance Faid to 5taff 479 77,207
TOTAL: §,58,14,958 4,95,32,038
Mote - V]
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars Amo unt.ﬁ:l . . Amount fﬂ .
Current Reporting Peripd Previous Reporting Period
A, Recelvable fram Government of Karnataka
Repayment Erants Recelvable from GOE 12,2882 43249
TOTAL : A 18,83,92,439 0
B. Other Receivables
al Receivables Othars 11858931 1,03,03,610
3} Depaosits
il Telephone Deposit 38,504 28,005
il Wehicles - Fuel Deposit 150,911 50,000
) Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits 174 27 253 490,39 376
d) Project amount Boooivablos £,23,50,825 £,23,50,825
2| Koushilya Shaale Reczivacles 35,76,750 44,722,750
fi Lease &mount Recerables 2,33,500 78,600
TOTAL: B 11,56,36,084 17,64,03,166
TOTAL : &+B 30,45,29,123 17,62 03,166

J
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“;-'Iji\-‘ Gandhi Rural H{luﬁi]l_ﬁ {:‘I_'Irl":l oration Limited

MNotes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2018

Mote - N
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Particul Amaunt () Armount (1)
articulars Current Reporting Perlod Previous Reporting Period
Incarne from the Prajects 3,25 387 1,06,151
Rent Received 25,92 460 24,74 588
TOTAL 29,24 847 27,80,834
Mote -0
OTHER INCOME
Particulars Amount 3 ALt ()
Current Reporting Period Previous Reporting Period
Misc. lncome 3,165,480 92,159
Grants Recd. from GOK 1owards
Estzblishiment Exp. £,52,00,000 5,53,00,000
Grants Recd. from GOE towards Paymeant
of Govt. Guorantoe Commission 11,63,00,000 44,22,00,000
Priar Perind Income 1,24.437% B7.55R
TOTAL 17,20,40,960 49,76,79,715

Note - P
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods Work-in-Progress and Stock-Trade
particul Arnount (T Amount (T)
articulars Current Regorting Period Provicus Reporting Period
Opening WIP 20,95,72,073 16,95,53,393
Expenses during the year £,15,15,520 4,00,15,620
Less : Closing WP 27,10,91,593 2008,72,073
TOTAL : ] 0

d
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Note - Q
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
Particul Amount {T) Amount ()
articulars Current Reporting Perind Previous Reporting Periad
Salary & Salary Arrzars to Staft 155,287,532 1.64,74,518
Leave Salary & Pension J PF Contribution 35,12,437 23,863,515
Gratuity to staff and Officors 12,821,194 12,19,124
Staff Walfare Cxpenses 987731 10,714,061
Rermuneration to Managing Director 19,95 263 15,63,753
Koushalya Shaale Salzries bHF 469 h3,353
Legislative Scorotary Staff Salarics 4,18.572
TOTAL 2,80,55,626 2,35,16,996
Mote - R
OTHER EXPENSES
Particul Amount () Amount (7)
articuiars Current Reporting Period Previous Reporting Period

Guarantee Comm. to Gowt. an

HUDCO/TIS Leans 12, 10,88 028 12,02,65.831
Travailing expenses 18,320,508 1€,14 377
Chairman office expenzes 3,08 542 1,222,318
Board Mesting Cxpensas 3,17.604 1,07.272
Dher Meeting Expensaes BG 725 1,300,841
Advertisment Exponsos 11,758,938 82,209
Dasara Exhibition Charges 9,45,360 G, 54,406
Wewspaper, Books, Penodicals & Subscription b7 E2E 2131
Conveyance reimbursement 10,211,561 11,500,584
Insurance 148877 73431
Office General Expenses 23, 22799 15,02,377
Maintenance of Office Equipment 21,84,536 23,056,717
Postape & Couner 2,39 226 2,840,793
Printing & Slationary 12,14,251 &,50.554




Rajiv Gandhi Ruaral Housing Corporation Limited

Particulars Amount (<) Amount (7)
Current Reporting Period Previous Reporting Perlod
K5/10C Building Maintenance charges 32.08,781 22,589,610
Rent Charges 1,57,01,037 1,71,75,810
Telephone, Maobile and Intermet
Connection charges 18,672,895 14, 81,885
Vehicle Maintenance 26,155,851 11,46,673
‘Webcite Maintenance charpes 1,14,697 -
Registration, ROC, License & Legal Fees 5,37,935 6L, 776
koushalya Shazle Training Expenses 1,66,365 99,272
Utilization Certificate Fess 59,000 1,007,000
Statulory Audil Fees 2,45,000 1,50,000
Tax Audit Fees 50,000 25,000
Service Tax on Audit Fess - 31,060
Software Development & Hardweare
Maint. charges 13,726,745 9,13,367
Wages to office boys 742,640 £.53,600
Professinnal Charges 7,240,997 f,38,011
Prior Period Expenses 11,235
TOS & Othor Taxcs Paid 5,445 G.097
Interest on TG & NPS Faid 1,725,469 -
TOTAL 16,04,56,667 14.89,03.239
Note - &
TAX EXPENSES
Particulars Amount (7} Amount ()
Current Reporting Period Pravious Reporting Period
Income Tax
Frovision for Current Year Income Tax - 0,594,528, /35
Less @ MAT credit entitlement - A,04,6419
Provision Income Tax of carlier years - -
TOTAL 0 6,85,88,036

o
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Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited

{89105

Houses Completed as on 31.12.2018
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Urban Ashraya - Spl Backlog and Vajapayee Urban Housing Schemes

Series-wise Targets & Houses Completed as on 31-12-2018
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Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited

Dr. B. R. Ambedkar Nivas Yojana Series Year wise Targets
& Houses Completed as on 31-12-2018
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National Awards Distribution Function
11 freer, 2018
o wam, =% feeeht
11th September, 2018
Vigyan Bhavan, New Delhi
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Rajiv Gandhi Rural Housing Corporation Limited

(BrReces BeeTa 2.0t ewsdh) (A Government of Karnataka Enterprises)
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9th Floor, ‘E & F’ Block, Cauvery Bhavan, K. G. Road, Bangalore - 560 009.
Helpline No. : Tel : 080-23118888, Fax : 22247317
E-mail : rgrhcl@rediffmail.com, Website : https:\\ashraya.karnataka.gov.in



